Public Document Pack

A meeting of the Council will be held in the Civic Hall, Leeds on Wednesday, 12th
January, 2022 at 1.00 pm
Members of the Council are invited to attend and transact the following business:

1

Minutes of the last Meeting

5 - 24

To approve the minutes of the Council Meeting held on 10th November 2021.
2

Declaration of Interest
To disclose or draw attention to any interests in accordance with Leeds City
Council’s ‘Councillor Code of Conduct’.

3

Communications
To receive such communications as the Lord Mayor, the Leader, Members of
the Executive Board or the Chief Executive consider appropriate.

4

Report on Attendance at Meetings

25 - 26

To consider the report of the City Solicitor on attendance at meetings.
5

Report on the Calculation of the Council Tax and Business
Rates Tax Bases for 2022/23

27 - 76

To consider the report of the Chief Officer – Financial Services seeking
agreement to the 2022/23 council tax bases for Leeds and the parish/town
councils set out in the report and providing indicative business rates shares for
2022/23 and to request Council to give delegated authority to the Chief Officer
– Financial Services to finalise the shares and to submit them in the National
Non-Domestic Rates 1 Return 2022/23 on or before the 31st January 2022.
6

Report on Procurement of External Auditor

77 - 84

To consider the report of the Chief Officer Financial Services setting out a
recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Audit committee at its
meeting on the 26th November 2021, and based on the evaluation of the
advantages and disadvantages of the three options, that Council accepts
Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector led option for
the appointment of external auditors from 2023/24.
1

7

Report on Scrutiny Annual Report

85 - 104

To consider the report of the City Solicitor presenting to Council the Scrutiny
Annual Report for 2020/21. It also provides opportunity to further update
members on the role of scrutiny in the response to, and subsequent recovery
from, the Covid-19 pandemic.
8

Recommendations of Executive Board -Report on Leeds
Youth Justice Plan 2021-24

105 - 160

To consider the report of the Director of Children and Families recommending
to Council to approve and adopt the Youth Justice Plan 2021 – 24 as part of
the Budget and Policy Framework.
9

Recommendations of Executive Board -Report on Safer,
Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)

161 - 196

To consider the report of the Director of Communities, Housing and
Environment presenting the Safer, Stronger Communities:Leeds Plan (202124) for approval and adoption.
10

Executive Questions
To deal with executive questions and provide written responses after the
meeting.

11

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the
Executive Board

197 - 230

To receive the minutes in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2(i).
12

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Lewis) Integrated Rail Plan

231 - 232

This Council believes the Integrated Rail Plan does not deliver the current
Government’s promises to improve rail services for the people of Leeds and
Yorkshire and follows decades of underinvestment from successive
governments.
Council is concerned that the plan does not address the shortage of capacity
at Leeds Station or the network around Leeds that we know impacts existing
local and national rail services today and will affect future growth until it is
resolved.
Council further calls for a swift resolution for residents and businesses in
Leeds affected by safeguarded directions that are currently in place.
Council resolves to work with local leaders across the north and midlands on
rail improvements; supports the Executive Board’s response to the plan; and
2

calls on ministers to provide clarity for Leeds residents and businesses on how
and when it will finally deliver the promised rail and mass transit improvements
our city desperately needs and deserves.
13

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Robinson) Commercial Lets

233 - 234

This Council notes with concern the recent YEP article relating to the Fantasia
knife store on Ludgate Hill and is deeply concerned about the Council’s
commercial involvement in those premises.
Council calls for the establishment of a refreshed and more robust policy,
including the power of veto, that ensures commercial lets of this nature cannot
happen again.
This Council therefore asks for a report to be brought to the February
Executive Board addressing this issue, including a review of all current
commercial lets and setting out a new proactive policy approach that will
ensure council owned premises are never used for this purpose again.
14

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Pryor) Great Jobs Agenda

235 - 236

This Council believes that everyone should be paid the Real Living Wage and
is proud to be leading the way by paying its employees the Real Living Wage
since 2015.Council notes that the Government has so far failed to ensure the
National Living Wage matches the Real Living Wage and so accurately reflects
rising living costs.
Council further notes with regret that a worker earning the National Living
Wage would today earn £1,930 a year less than a worker earning the Real
Living Wage.
Council recognises the devastating impact of Covid-19 on many people’s lives
including pushing many more into poverty and job uncertainty and supports the
establishment of a Fair Work Charter as proposed by the West Yorkshire
Mayor.
Council believes that Leeds is ideally placed as a desirable location for
businesses and recognises the success of attracting businesses such as
Channel 4, Utterberry, Covance/Labcorp, Snowflake, Aspire, and Burberry into
the City.
Council is proud that its Employment Agenda is in alignment with the Great
Jobs Agenda as we continue to be a key influencer in terms of good
employment practice which includes our condemnation of the ‘fire and re-hire’
practices undertaken by some companies.
Council commits to promoting both the Real Living Wage and the Great Jobs
Agenda across the City through our Anchor Institutions who form an integral
part of the ambition to make Leeds a Real Living Wage City as this is
something that can only be achieved through partnership working across all
sectors. Council notes the Leeds Anchors Network contains 13 organisations
3

who employ over 58,000 people in Leeds, and is made up of: Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust, Leeds Beckett University, Leeds City College, Leeds and
York Partnership Foundation NHS Trust, University of Leeds, Leeds College of
Building, Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust, Leeds Trinity University,
Leeds City Council, NHS Digital, Yorkshire Water, British Library and Northern
Gas Networks.
Council calls on Government to:
 Introduce the Real Living Wage as a replacement to the National Living
Wage to ensure residents of Leeds and across the Country can meet
rising living costs.
 Commit to the principles of the Great Jobs Agenda
 Support the establishment of a Fair Work Charter.

Tom Riordan CBE
Chief Executive
Civic Hall
Leeds
LS1 1UR

Please Note: Members of the public are now able to attend the meeting in
person, but please be mindful that Coronavirus is still circulating in Leeds.
Therefore, even if you have had the vaccine, if you have Coronavirus
symptoms: a high temperature; a new, continuous cough; or a loss or change
to your sense of smell or taste, you should NOT attend the meeting and stay at
home and get a PCR test. For those who are attending the meeting, please
bring a face covering, unless you are exempt.
Note to observers of the meeting: To remotely observe this meeting, please
click on the ‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the
meeting’s webpage (linked below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will
become available at the commencement of the meeting
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=111&MId=11484
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the City Council’s website on the internet
- at the start of the meeting the Lord Mayor will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed. The images and
sound recording may be used for training purposes by the Council. Generally the public gallery is not filmed. However,
by entering the Council Chamber and using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If you have any queries
regarding this, please contact the City Solicitor.
Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take
place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the
clerk.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice

4

a)

b)

Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the recording was
made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a clear identification of the main speakers and their
role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or
misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts; recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material
between those points must be complete.

Meeting called at short notice to allow political discussion on the business to be transacted as
a result of the coronavirus pandemic.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1

Proceedings of the Meeting of the Leeds City Council held
Civic Hall, Leeds on Wednesday, 10th November, 2021

PRESENT:

The Lord Mayor Councillor Asghar Khan in the Chair.

WARD

WARD

ADEL & WHARFEDALE

CALVERLEY & FARSLEY

Caroline Anderson
Billy Flynn
Barry John Anderson

Amanda Carter
Peter Carlill
Andrew Carter

ALWOODLEY

CHAPEL ALLERTON

Neil Alan Buckley
Peter Mervyn Harrand
Dan Cohen
ARDSLEY & ROBIN HOOD

Mohammed Rafique
Jane Dowson
Eileen Taylor
CROSS GATES & WHINMOOR

Lisa Mulherin
Karen Renshaw
ARMLEY

James Gibson
Jessica Lennox
Pauleen Grahame
FARNLEY & WORTLEY

James McKenna
Lou Cunningham

David Blackburn
Ann Forsaith
Ann Blackburn

BEESTON & HOLBECK

GARFORTH & SWILLINGTON

Gohar Almas
Andrew Scopes
Angela Gabriel
BRAMLEY & STANNINGLEY

Sarah Field
Suzanne McCormack
Mark Dobson
GIPTON & HAREHILLS

Caroline Gruen
Julie Heselwood
Kevin Ritchie
BURMANTOFTS & RICHMOND HILL

Arif Hussain
Kamila Maqsood
Salma Arif
GUISELEY & RAWDON

Asghar Khan
Denise Ragan
Ron Grahame

Paul Alderson
Paul John Spencer Wadsworth
Graham Latty

1

Page 7

HAREWOOD

MORLEY NORTH

Sam Firth
Ryan Stephenson
Matthew James Robinson
HEADINGLEY & HYDE PARK

Robert Finnigan
Robert Gettings MBE JP
MORLEY SOUTH

Alison Garthwaite
Neil Walshaw
Jonathon Pryor

Jane Senior
Wyn Kidger
Judith Elliott

HORSFORTH

OTLEY & YEADON

Jonathon Taylor
Jackie Shemilt
Dawn Collins
HUNSLET & RIVERSIDE

Sandy Edward Charles Lay
Ryk Downes
Colin Campbell
PUDSEY

Mohammed Iqbal
Paul Wray
Elizabeth Nash
KILLINGBECK & SEACROFT

Dawn Seary
Trish Smith
Simon Seary
ROTHWELL

David Jenkins
Katie Dye
KIPPAX & METHLEY

Conrad Hart-Brooke
Diane Chapman
Barry Stewart Golton
ROUNDHAY

James Lewis
Mirelle Midgley
Mary Elizabeth Harland

Lisa Martin
Jacob Goddard
Zara Hussain

KIRKSTALL

TEMPLE NEWSAM

Fiona Elizabeth Venner
John Anthony Illingworth

Helen Hayden
Nicole Sharp
Debra Coupar
WEETWOOD

LITTLE LONDON & WOODHOUSE
Javaid Akhtar
Abigail Marshall-Katung
Kayleigh Brooks
MIDDLETON PARK
Sharon Burke
Paul Anthony Truswell
Kim Groves
MOORTOWN
Sharon Hamilton
Mohammed Shahzad
Rebecca Charlwood

Emma Flint
Chris Howley
Jonathan Bentley
WETHERBY
Alan James Lamb
Norma Harrington

2

Page 8

40

Announcements
(a) The Lord Mayor welcomed members to this meeting of Full Council and also any
members of the public who were joining the meeting and reminded those
present that the meeting was to be streamed live.
(b) The Lord Mayor also welcomed Students from Leeds Beckett University who
were observing the meeting and 2 students shadowing Councillor Cohen
(c) The Lord Mayor informed Council of the risk management work that had been
undertaken to ensure the safety of the Chamber and that the ventilation system was
working well and both he and whips would be kept informed of the CO2 levels within
the Chamber.
(d) The Lord Mayor also congratulated Councillor Smart and her husband on the
birth of their son Oscar.
(e) The Lord Mayor also reminded Members that there would be a short service at
the war memorial on the 11th November for Armistice Day and a larger parade on
Sunday for Remembrance Sunday.
(f) The Lord Mayor informed Council of the recent death of Honorary Alderman
Lorna Cohen, Former Lady Mayoress Marjorie Rushworth and the tragic death of Sir
David Amess MP.
Council stood in silent tribute.

41

Minutes of the last Meeting
It was moved by Councillor Lennox, seconded by Councillor Cohen and
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 14th September 2021 be
approved.

42

Declaration of Interest
There were no declarations of interests.

43

Communications
The Chief Executive informed Council that a response to a Council resolution had
been received from Will Quince MP, Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for
Children and Families in respect of the White Paper considered by Council in
September 2021 on the Ofsted visit to Children’s Services.

The response had previously been circulated to all Members of Council.
44

Deputations
Four deputations were admitted to the meeting and addressed Council, as follows:1)

Leeds Childrens Mayor

2)

GALBA

3)

Students at Abbey Grange Academy

4)

‘A Place to Sit’

3

Page 9

RESOLVED – That the subject matter in respect of deputation 1 and 3 be referred to
the Director of Children and Families for consideration in consultation with the
relevant Executive Member, that the subject matter in respect of deputation 2 be
referred to the Director of Resources and City Development for consideration in
consultation with the relevant Executive Member and that the subject matter in
respect of deputation 4 be referred to the Director of City Development for
consideration in consultation with the relevant Executive Member.

45

Recommendations of the Executive Board - Gambling Act 2005 Statement of
Licensing Policy
The report of the Director of Communities, Housing and Environment seeking
Council approval of the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing Policy 2022-2024
to have effect from 31st January 2022 was moved by Councillor Coupar, seconded by
Councillor Wray and

RESOLVED - That the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing Policy 2022-2024
be approved to have effect from 31st January 2022.
46

Recommendations of the General Purposes Committee - Amendments to
Constitution - Best City Ambition
The report of the Chief Officer Strategy and Improvement setting out
recommendations of General Purposes Committee in relation to proposed
amendments to Part 2, Article 4.1 (ii) of the council’s constitution to specify the Best
City Ambition as part of the Budget and Policy Framework was moved by Councillor
Lewis, seconded by Councillor Coupar and
RESOLVED –
a) That the recommendations of General Purposes Committee to make the
amendments set out in Appendix 1 to the Budget and Policy Framework in
Part 2, Article 4.1 (ii) of the council’s constitution be accepted.
b) To agree that a further report be received in February 2022 detailing the full
proposals for the adoption of the Best City Ambition.

47

Report on Appointments
It was moved by Councillor Lennox, seconded by Councillor Coupar that the report of
the City Solicitor on appointments be approved as follows;
RESOLVED – That in accordance with Community Committee Procedure Rule 2.4
the Members of the Inner East Community Committee appointed Councillor Arif
Hussain as Chair of the Inner East Community Committee.

48

Executive Arrangements
It was moved by Councillor Lewis seconded by Councillor Lennox that the report of
the City Solicitor setting out the amendments the Leader has made to the Executive
arrangements and presenting them to Council in accordance with Rule 1.3 of the
Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules be noted.
RESOLVED – To note that an amendment to Part 3 Section3B(c) Deputy Support to
Executive Members has been made with effect from the 2nd November 2021.

49

Report on Plans Panel and Development Plan Panel Annual Report 2020-21
4

Page 10

It was moved by Councillor Hayden, seconded by Councillor Walshaw and
RESOLVED – That the report of the Chief Planning Officer presenting to Council the
2020-21 Plans Panel and Development Plan Panel Annual Report be received and
noted.
50

Report on the Annual Report of the Corporate Governance and Audit
Committee
It was moved by Councillor Maqsood, seconded by Councillor Truswell and
RESOLVED - That the report of the Chief Officer Financial Services be received and
the matters set out in the annual report reflecting the work of the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee in the 2020-21 municipal year be noted.

51

Executive Questions
Q1
Councillor Amanda Carter to the Executive Member (Resources):Would the Executive Member for community safety explain why the Council
feels it is acceptable to lease a shop unit that is used to sell, among other
items, machetes, swords, and tomahawks?
The Executive Member (Resources) replied.
Q2

Councillor Golton to the Executive Member (Environment and Housing)
Given the fact that Wakefield has suffered no ‘Covid-related’ disruption to
waste collections this year, and the city recently announced an extension of
citywide garden waste collection, can the Executive Member for Environment
and Housing please confirm whether he is willing to consult his equivalent in
Wakefield to better understand how to improve waste collection performance?
The Executive Member (Environment and Housing) replied.

Q3

Councillor Ragan to the Executive Member (Public Health and Active
Lifestyles):Please could the Executive Member with responsibility for sport comment on
the city’s relationship with Yorkshire County Cricket Club?
The Executive Member (Public Health and Active Lifestyles) replied.

Q4

Councillor Gabriel to the Executive Member (Communities):Could the Executive Member please update Council on the impact of the
Government’s Autumn Budget and Spending Review 2021 on Leeds’ lowpaid and vulnerable residents?
The Executive Member (Communities) replied.

Q5

Councillor Wadsworth to the Executive Member (Environment and Housing):Would the Executive Member for Environment and Housing please provide a
full breakdown of the projected £5.1m overspend in the refuse department for

5

Page 11

the current year, with particular reference to the amounts spent on staff
overtime and on agency workers.
The Executive Member (Environment and Housing) replied.
Q6

Councillor Golton to the Leader of Council:Can the Leader of Council confirm that his front bench provide oversight of
the written responses to Elected Members’ questions made at Full Council to
ensure that what is received is both truthful and timely?
The Leader of Council replied.

Q7

Councillor Marshall-Katung to the Executive Member (Economy, Culture and
Education):Can the Executive Member update Council on school funding?
The Executive Member (Economy, Culture and Education) replied.

At the conclusion of question time, the following questions remained unanswered and
it was noted that, under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 11.6, written
answers would be sent to each Member of Council:Q8

Councillor Ragan to the Executive Member (Public Health and Active
Lifestyles):-

Q9

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q10

Councillor Bentley to the Leader of Council

Q11

Councillor Jenkins to the Executive Member (Adult & Children’s Social Care &
Health Partnerships).

Q12

Councillor Flynn to the Executive Member (Resources).

Q13

Councillor Campbell to the Executive Member (Public Health and Active
Lifestyles).

Q14

Councillor Firth to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q15

Councillor Hart-Brooke to the Executive Member (Public Health and Active
Lifestyles).

Q16

Councillor D Seary to the Executive Member (Resources).

Q17

Councillor Campbell to the Leader of Council.

Q18

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q19

Councillor Golton to the Executive Member (Economy, Culture and
Education).

Q20
Q21

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).
Councillor Golton to the Executive Member (Economy, Culture and
Education).

6

Page 12

52

Q22

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q23

Councillor Campbell to Councillor Groves.

Q24

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Public Health and Active
Lifestyles).

Q25

Councillor Golton to the Leader of Council.

Q26

Councillor B Anderson to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q27

Councillor Campbell to the Executive Member (Environment and Housing).

Q28

Councillor Firth to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Q29

Councillor Firth to the Executive Member (Resources).

Q30

Councillor Firth to the Executive Member (Infrastructure & Climate).

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board and the Executive Board
It was moved by Councillor Lewis, seconded by Councillor Lennox that the minutes
be received in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2(i).
RESOLVED – That the minutes be received in accordance with Council Procedure
Rule 2.2(i).

Council Procedure Rule 4, providing for the winding up of business, was applied prior
to all notified comments on the minutes having been debated.

At the conclusion of this item Council adjourned from 16.18 to 16.50
53

Procedural Motion
It was moved by Councillor Lennox, seconded by Councillor Cohen and
RESOLVED - That Council Procedure Rule (CPR) 22.1 (Suspension of CPRs), that
CPR 12.2 (motions and amendments) be suspended to allow the introduction of an
additional White Paper which would be heard first.

54

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Golton) - Housing
It was moved by Councillor Golton, seconded by Councillor Campbell that this
Council regrets that the current Administration’s delivery of affordable housing for the
people of Leeds has been sub-optimal, and in particular has led to a worsening
shortage of affordable homes to rent and buy:
The Council’s mismanagement of the much-vaunted Council Housing Growth
program has delivered considerably less than the promised 300 homes per year; The
Housing Company promised to help deliver affordable homes has been abandoned
before even being constituted; the tendency to accept commuted sums, and the
Council’s reliance on city centre schemes to achieve its citywide housing targets has
allowed the lowest percentage of affordable homes built through private development
for years.

7

Page 13

Council therefore calls on the Administration to review its current Council Housing
Growth Strategy to:
Vary the housing delivery options allowed within the business model; constitute a
housing company to enable council housing growth opportunities in communities with
little council owned land; commit to refurbishing properties to create new council
housing; ensure that policy compliant affordable housing is built within and reflects
the needs of individual local communities; commit to delivery of new Council housing
in every Leeds City Council ward within the next five years.
An amendment was moved by Councillor B Anderson, seconded by Councillor
Collins
Delete all after ‘homes to rent and buy’.
And replace with:
Council recognises the use of innovative measures such as commuted sums, which
can enable funding to be prioritised to sites and areas that need affordable housing
the most and also notes that City Centre and Inner Area development has, following
the regrettable involvement of the High Court, led to reduced development on
Greenfield and Greenbelt sites in the city. However, Council is concerned that the
Council Housing Growth programme has delivered considerably less than the
promised 300 homes per year and is disappointed by the failure to constitute a
housing company after finally appearing to agree with opposition groups that have
been proposing one for years.
Council notes the lack of attendance at the recent SAP remittal public inquiry, which
confirmed the removal of Greenbelt sites from the Site Allocations Plan, from both
the Administration and Liberal Democrat Group.
Council calls on the Administration to review its current Council Housing Growth
Strategy to:
Vary the housing delivery options allowed within the business model; constitute a
housing company to enable council housing growth opportunities in communities with
little council owned land; commit to refurbishing properties to create new council
housing; ensure that policy compliant affordable housing is built within and reflects
the needs of individual local communities; commit to the delivery of the right homes
in the right places in every ward in the city.’
Motion will read:
‘This Council regrets that the current Administration’s delivery of affordable housing
for the people of Leeds has been sub-optimal, and in particular has led to a
worsening shortage of affordable homes to rent and buy.
Council recognises the use of innovative measures such as commuted sums, which
can enable funding to be prioritised to sites and areas that need affordable housing
the most and also notes that City Centre and Inner Area development has, following
the regrettable involvement of the High Court, led to reduced development on
Greenfield and Greenbelt sites in the city. However, Council is concerned that the
Council Housing Growth programme has delivered considerably less than the
promised 300 homes per year and is disappointed by the failure to constitute a
housing company after finally appearing to agree with opposition groups that have
been proposing one for years.

8

Page 14

Council notes the lack of attendance at the recent SAP remittal public inquiry, which
confirmed the removal of Greenbelt sites from the Site Allocations Plan, from both
the Administration and Liberal Democrat Group.
Council calls on the Administration to review its current Council Housing Growth
Strategy to:
Vary the housing delivery options allowed within the business model; constitute a
housing company to enable council housing growth opportunities in communities with
little council owned land; commit to refurbishing properties to create new council
housing; ensure that policy compliant affordable housing is built within and reflects
the needs of individual local communities; commit to the delivery of the right homes
in the right places in every ward in the city.’
A second amendment was moved by Councillor Hayden, seconded by Councillor
Ragan
Delete all after “This Council” and replace with:
“is proud of its ambitious Council House Building Programme, established in
2014/15, and its work with Registered Providers to deliver thousands more
affordable, high quality, green homes across Leeds.
Council condemns the Government’s systematic and harmful underfunding of Local
Authorities though 11 years of Austerity introduced by the Conservatives and Liberal
Democrats at a time when the need for more affordable housing has increased
dramatically.
Council calls on the Government to abolish No Fault Evictions, reform Right to Buy,
strengthen Tenant’s Rights, reduce the lobbying power of private developers, and
provide more power and funding to Local Authorities to enable more council houses
to be built.”
The amendment in the name of Councillor B Anderson was declared lost, the
amendment in the name of Councillor Hayden was carried and upon being put to the
vote it was
RESOLVED – That this Council is proud of its ambitious Council House Building
Programme, established in 2014/15, and its work with Registered Providers to deliver
thousands more affordable, high quality, green homes across Leeds.
Council condemns the Government’s systematic and harmful underfunding of Local
Authorities though 11 years of Austerity introduced by the Conservatives and Liberal
Democrats at a time when the need for more affordable housing has increased
dramatically.
Council calls on the Government to abolish No Fault Evictions, reform Right to Buy,
strengthen Tenant’s Rights, reduce the lobbying power of private developers, and
provide more power and funding to Local Authorities to enable more council houses
to be built.
55

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Andrew Carter) - Community
Safety
It was moved by Councillor Andrew Carter, seconded by Councillor Lamb that this
Council calls on the administration to make community safety and the prevention of
crime and disorder a priority for funding and resources.

9

Page 15

Council remains concerned about the administration’s February budget decision to
cut funding for Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). At a time when
residents are concerned about crime and disorder, and when central government is
providing substantial funds to recruit more police officers, the local Leeds decision to
cut community safety funding will seem inexplicable to many communities, and risks
undermining wider efforts to build back better after the pandemic.
Whilst supporting the right to peaceful protest, Council also notes events in other
parts of the country which have highlighted concerns about some protest groups,
whose extreme actions threaten to damage the economy and cause an unacceptable
level of disruption to the public.
Council also notes recent tragic events which have highlighted the specific threats
posed to elected representatives carrying out their duties on behalf of the public.
Council calls on the administration to work with the West Yorkshire Mayor and other
partners to urgently action the following:
1. Reverse the budget cut to PCSOs and uphold the long-standing Leeds
commitment to financially support PCSO deployment across the city to boost
community safety for residents;
2. Put in place local measures and allocate sufficient resources to ensure Leeds is
prepared to respond effectively if disruptive protests of the type seen elsewhere
come to the streets of Leeds and threaten to damage the city’s post-pandemic
recovery;
3. Ensure the appropriate level of resources are provided for the safety and
protection of council officers in front-line roles and elected members carrying out their
responsibilities.
An amendment was moved by Councillor D Blackburn, seconded by Councillor A
Blackburn;
Delete the whole of Paragraph 3 and the whole of the second bullet point. The
amended White Paper would then read:
This Council calls on the administration to make community safety and the
prevention of crime and disorder a priority for funding and resources.
Council remains concerned about the administration’s February budget decision to
cut funding for Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). At a time when
residents are concerned about crime and disorder, and when central government is
providing substantial funds to recruit more police officers, the local Leeds decision to
cut community safety funding will seem inexplicable to many communities, and risks
undermining wider efforts to build back better after the pandemic.
Council also notes recent tragic events which have highlighted the specific threats
posed to elected representatives carrying out their duties on behalf of the public.
Council calls on the administration to work with the West Yorkshire Mayor and other
partners to urgently action the following:
1. Reverse the budget cut to PCSOs and uphold the long-standing Leeds
commitment to financially support PCSO deployment across the city to boost
community safety for residents;

10

Page 16

2. Ensure the appropriate level of resources are provided for the safety and
protection of council officers in front-line roles and elected members carrying out their
responsibilities.
A second amendment was moved by Councillor Bentley, seconded by Councillor
Chapman
Remove all after the first paragraph, and insert:
Council regrets the February budget decision to remove the funding of ward based
Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). At a time of increased fear of crime
and violence, especially towards women and girls, the administration’s decision to cut
community safety spending is rightly condemned by communities across the city.
Council believes that:
•
Everyone, regardless of identity, has a right to live a life free from fear and
violence.
•
Investing in raising awareness, education and policies aimed at prevention is
vital and avoids greater long-term costs.
•
Ending violence against women and girls must be a top priority for all levels of
government.
Council therefore calls on the administration:
•

To reinstate funding for ward based PCSOs.

•
To work with the police, the community and other partners to identify problem
areas and devise interventions to detect and prevent crime.
•
To ensure that Licensing make public safety, especially the safety of women
and girls, central to licensing decisions and conditions.
•
To work with school leaders to ensure that all school staff are trained in
correctly and sensitively handling incidences of abusive, violent and bullying
behaviour.
•
To call on the government to increase efforts to prevent and detect violence
against women and girls including setting up an independent commission to ensure
accountability and progress.”
The amended White Paper will then read:
This Council calls on the administration to make community safety and the
prevention of crime and disorder a priority for funding and resources.
Council regrets the February budget decision to remove the funding of ward based
Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). At a time of increased fear of crime
and violence, especially towards women and girls, the administration’s decision to cut
community safety spending is rightly condemned by communities across the city.
Council believes that:
•
Everyone, regardless of identity, has a right to live a life free from fear and
violence.
11

Page 17

•
Investing in raising awareness, education and policies aimed at prevention is
vital and avoids greater long-term costs.
•
Ending violence against women and girls must be a top priority for all levels of
government.
Council therefore calls on the administration:
•

To reinstate funding for ward based PCSOs.

•
To work with the police, the community and other partners to identify problem
areas and devise interventions to detect and prevent crime.
•
To ensure that Licensing make public safety, especially the safety of women
and girls, central to licensing decisions and conditions.
•
To work with school leaders to ensure that all school staff are trained in
correctly and sensitively handling incidences of abusive, violent and bullying
behaviour.
•
To call on the government to increase efforts to prevent and detect violence
against women and girls including setting up an independent commission to ensure
accountability and progress.
A third amendment was moved by Councillor Coupar, seconded by Councillor
Garthwaite
Delete all and replace with:
“Council thanks all members of the Police Service for their frontline work during the
Covid-19 pandemic.
Council reaffirms its commitment to Community Safety and tackling crime and this is
reflected in the priority issues within the new 2021-2024 Safer Leeds Executive
Strategy. These include tackling crime and ASB, serious violence, domestic violence
and developing enhanced arrangements aimed at keeping women and girls safe.
Council will continue to work closely with a full range of partners including West
Yorkshire Police and the Mayor and Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime to mitigate
as much as possible the continuing funding pressures on services.
Council regrets the cuts of over £2.3bn to policing since 2010 and recognises the
loss of 21,000 police officers from the frontline between 2010 and 2020. Council
notes with disappointment that the recent Government announcement of ‘additional’
police officers will still not replace the number lost.
Council believes these cuts have directly led to rising anti-social behaviour, record
levels of knife crime and almost nine in ten crimes going unsolved.
Council calls on Government to restore funding and staffing levels to a minimum of
2010 levels to properly invest in these vital services, and in particular the
Neighbourhood Policing Teams.”
The amendments in the name of Councillor D Blackburn and Councillor Bentley
were declared lost, the amendment in the name of Councillor Coupar was carried
and upon being put to the vote it was
12

Page 18

RESOLVED – That Council thanks all members of the Police Service for their
frontline work during the Covid-19 pandemic.
Council reaffirms its commitment to Community Safety and tackling crime and this is
reflected in the priority issues within the new 2021-2024 Safer Leeds Executive
Strategy. These include tackling crime and ASB, serious violence, domestic violence
and developing enhanced arrangements aimed at keeping women and girls safe.
Council will continue to work closely with a full range of partners including West
Yorkshire Police and the Mayor and Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime to mitigate
as much as possible the continuing funding pressures on services.
Council regrets the cuts of over £2.3bn to policing since 2010 and recognises the
loss of 21,000 police officers from the frontline between 2010 and 2020. Council
notes with disappointment that the recent Government announcement of ‘additional’
police officers will still not replace the number lost.
Council believes these cuts have directly led to rising anti-social behaviour, record
levels of knife crime and almost nine in ten crimes going unsolved.
Council calls on Government to restore funding and staffing levels to a minimum of
2010 levels to properly invest in these vital services, and in particular the
Neighbourhood Policing Teams.
On the requisition of Councillor Campbell and Cohen the voting on the second
amendment in the name of Councillor Bentley was recorded as follows;
YES – 35
Alderson, B Anderson, C Anderson, Bentley, A Blackburn, D Blackburn, Buckley,
Campbell, Amanda Carter, Andrew Carter, Chapman, Cohen, Collins, Downes,
Finnigan, Firth, Flynn, Forsaith, Gettings, Golton, Harrington, Hart-Brooke, Howley,
Kidger, Lamb, G Latty, Lay, Robinson, D Seary, S Seary, Senior, Smith, Stephenson,
J Taylor and Wadsworth.
NO - 50
Akhtar, Arif, Brooks, Burke, Carlill, Charlwood, Coupar, Cunningham, Dowson, Dye,
Flint, Gabriel, Garthwaite, Gibson, Goddard, P Grahame, R Grahame, Groves, C
Gruen, Hamilton, Harland, Hayden, Heselwood, A Hussain, Z Hussain, Illingworth,
Iqbal, Jenkins, Lennox, Lewis, Maqsood, Marshall-Katung, Martin, McKenna,
Midgley, Mulherin, Nash, Pryor, Rafique, Ragan, Renshaw, Ritchie, Scopes,
Shahzad, Sharpe, E Taylor, Truswell, Venner, Walshaw and Wray.
ABSTAIN - 3
Dobson, Field and McCormack
On the requisition of Councillor Lennox and Coupar the voting on the third
amendment in the name of Councillor Coupar was recorded as follows;
YES – 49
Akhtar, Arif, Brooks, Burke, Carlill, Charlwood, Coupar, Cunningham, Dowson, Dye,
Flint, Gabriel, Garthwaite, Gibson, Goddard, P Grahame, Groves, C Gruen,
Hamilton, Harland, Hayden, Heselwood, A Hussain, Z Hussain, Illingworth, Iqbal,
13

Page 19

Jenkins, Lennox, Lewis, Maqsood, Marshall-Katung, Martin, McKenna, Midgley,
Mulherin, Nash, Pryor, Rafique, Ragan, Renshaw, Ritchie, Scopes, Shahzad,
Sharpe, E Taylor, Truswell, Venner, Walshaw and Wray.

NO – 32
Alderson, B Anderson, C Anderson, Bentley, A Blackburn, D Blackburn, Buckley,
Campbell, Amanda Carter, Andrew Carter, Chapman, Cohen, Collins, Downes, Firth,
Flynn, Forsaith, Golton, Harrington, Hart-Brooke, Howley, Kidger, Lamb, G Latty,
Lay, Robinson, D Seary, S Seary, Smith, Stephenson, J Taylor and Wadsworth.
ABSTAIN - 6
Dobson, Field, Finnigan, Gettings, McCormack and Senior.
56

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Forsaith) - COP26
It was moved by Councillor Forsaith, seconded by Councillor A Blackburn that this
Council notes the crucial UN Climate Change Conference summit (COP26) currently
underway in Glasgow aimed at limiting global temperature rise to 1.50C. Leeds City
Council declared a climate emergency in March 2019, with the target of 2030 for
achieving carbon neutrality, recognising the part Leeds has to play in this global
challenge.
Council recognises that some communities in Leeds have far larger carbon footprints
than others. Climate change is already affecting most those who are least able to
pay, whilst those with higher incomes add proportionally more to carbon emissions in
the City. Council therefore understands that positive actions by more affluent
communities and sectors to reduce their carbon emissions can contribute most
effectively to ensuring our City reaches net zero carbon by 2030.
Whilst supporting the current work of Leeds City Council on a range of issues that
includes fuel poverty reduction and home insulation, Council resolves to focus Leeds
City Council carbon reduction plans, and any related policies, on those sectors and
those communities that through reducing their high carbon footprints will contribute
most to reaching our carbon neutral target. In this way, Council’s response can aim
to deliver climate and social justice together with carbon neutrality by 2030.
An amendment was moved by Councillor Hart-Brooke, seconded by Councillor
Howley
Remove all after the first paragraph and insert:
Council recognises that all residents and communities have a part to play in
effectively ensuring our City reaches net zero by 2030. Those who pollute most have
the most change to make. The city has a vital role in providing residents the systems
and infrastructure to enable a greener more pleasant environment for all.
Council therefore calls on the administration to:



Take clear steps to reverse the cities decline in recycling by introducing
city wide glass and food waste collections.

14

Page 20





Roll out Hubbub style yellow and orange recycling bins to all
community centres to establish habits in readiness for Deposit Return
Scheme introduction.
Work with Universities and businesses to develop our own
infrastructure for biogas generation and renewable energy production
using council land.
Introduce a clean air zone that would see heavily polluting commercial
vehicles charged to go through the city centre.

The amended White Paper would then read as follows:
This Council notes the crucial UN Climate Change Conference summit (COP26)
currently underway in Glasgow aimed at limiting global temperature rise to 1.50C.
Leeds City Council declared a climate emergency in March 2019, with the target of
2030 for achieving carbon neutrality, recognising the part Leeds has to play in this
global challenge.
Council recognises that all residents and communities have a part to play in
effectively ensuring our City reaches net zero by 2030. Those who pollute most have
the most change to make. The city has a vital role in providing residents the systems
and infrastructure to enable a greener more pleasant environment for all.
Council therefore calls on the Administration to:






Take clear steps to reverse the cities decline in recycling by introducing
city wide glass and food waste collections.
Roll out Hubbub style yellow and orange recycling bins to all
community centres to establish habits in readiness for Deposit Return
Scheme introduction.
Work with Universities and businesses to develop our own
infrastructure for biogas generation and renewable energy production
using council land.
Introduce a clean air zone that would see heavily polluting commercial
vehicles charged to go through the city centre.

A second amendment was moved by Councillor Buckley, seconded by Councillor
Robinson
Delete all after first paragraph and insert the following:
“Council notes the progress being made locally towards reducing carbon emissions
and making wider environmental improvements in Leeds, and supports local
initiatives such as the transition to electric vehicles, roll out of the district heating
network, and tree planting.
“Council is also mindful of the need to ensure a strong economic recovery from the
pandemic, one that will benefit all our communities, and believes climate and
economic priorities need to be balanced to ensure communities who are least able to
pay are not adversely affected.
“Council calls for a report to be brought to Executive Board setting out how the
administration intends to meet the city’s climate goals in the context of promoting
economic growth.”
Motion would read:
15

Page 21

“This Council notes the crucial UN Climate Change Conference summit (COP26)
currently underway in Glasgow aimed at limiting global temperature rise to 1.50C.
Leeds City Council declared a climate emergency in March 2019, with the target of
2030 for achieving carbon neutrality, recognising the part Leeds has to play in this
global challenge.
“Council notes the progress being made locally towards reducing carbon emissions
and making wider environmental improvements in Leeds, and supports local
initiatives such as the transition to electric vehicles, roll out of the district heating
network, and tree planting.
“Council is also mindful of the need to ensure a strong economic recovery from the
pandemic, one that will benefit all our communities, and believes climate and
economic priorities need to be balanced to ensure communities who are least able to
pay are not adversely affected.
“Council calls for a report to be brought to Executive Board setting out how the
administration intends to meet the city’s climate goals in the context of promoting
economic growth.”
A third amendment was moved by Councillor Hayden, seconded by Councillor
Walshaw
Delete all after paragraph two and replace with:
“Council welcomes current work underway towards helping the City reach net
zero, including:
• Planting over 5.8m trees through the Woodland Creation Scheme over the
next 25 years.
• Reducing the council’s carbon emissions by more than half by 2025
• The largest fleet of council electric vehicles in the country.
• Removing 2434 tonnes of carbon from Council buildings through the
installation of solar panels and heat pumps.
• Removing 5000 tonnes of carbon through the provision of insulation and
energy efficiency measures to over 3000 Council homes and 1400 private
homes.
• The Council’s flagship District Heating Scheme, which has helped employ
more than 430 people in the local low carbon sector including 36 apprentices.
• Embedding sustainable travel at the heart of our transport vision
• Grey to green work including the city park
• Undertaking a Climate Emergency focused Local Plan update that will
ensure that future development in Leeds is zero carbon with a focus on
reduced energy and travel needs, where people can make a choice not to
need a car and where services are more locally based
• securing £25.3 million to decarbonise 38 publicly owned buildings, slashing
the city’s carbon emissions by nearly 4,000 tonnes.
Council notes that work has been done alongside the WWF to understand the
climate footprint in all areas of the city. Whilst this information informs the
work being done and helps define areas of focus, Council notes it is important
that green works not only hinder carbon creation but actively support the most
deprived communities of the city to deliver climate and social justice
alongside carbon neutrality by 2030.”
Full text of amended motion reads:
16

Page 22

“This Council notes the crucial UN Climate Change Conference summit
(COP26) currently underway in Glasgow aimed at limiting global temperature
rise to 1.50C. Leeds City Council declared a climate emergency in March
2019, with the target of 2030 for achieving carbon neutrality, recognising the
part Leeds has to play in this global challenge.
Council recognises that some communities in Leeds have far larger carbon
footprints than others. Climate change is already affecting most those who
are least able to pay, whilst those with higher incomes add proportionally
more to carbon emissions in the City. Council therefore understands that
positive actions by more affluent communities and sectors to reduce their
carbon emissions can contribute most effectively to ensuring our City reaches
net zero carbon by 2030.
Council welcomes current work underway towards helping the City reach net
zero, including:
• Planting over 5.8m trees through the Woodland Creation Scheme over the
next 25 years.
• Reducing the council’s carbon emissions by more than half by 2025
• The largest fleet of council electric vehicles in the country.
• Removing 2434 tonnes of carbon from Council buildings through the
installation of solar panels and heat pumps.
• Removing 5000 tonnes of carbon through the provision of insulation and
energy efficiency measures to over 3000 Council homes and 1400 private
homes.
• The Council’s flagship District Heating Scheme, which has helped employ
more than 430 people in the local low carbon sector including 36 apprentices.
• Embedding sustainable travel at the heart of our transport vision
• Grey to green work including the city park
• Undertaking a Climate Emergency focused Local Plan update that will
ensure that future development in Leeds is zero carbon with a focus on
reduced energy and travel needs, where people can make a choice not to
need a car and where services are more locally based
• securing £25.3 million to decarbonise 38 publicly owned buildings, slashing
the city’s carbon emissions by nearly 4,000 tonnes.
Council notes that work has been done alongside the WWF to understand the
climate footprint in all areas of the city. Whilst this information informs the
work being done and helps define areas of focus, Council notes it is important
that green works not only hinder carbon creation but actively support the most
deprived communities of the city to deliver climate and social justice
alongside carbon neutrality by 2030.”
The amendments in the name of Councillor Hart-Brooke and Councillor
Buckley were declared lost, the amendment in the name of Councillor Hayden
was carried and upon being put to the vote it was
RESOLVED – That this Council notes the crucial UN Climate Change
Conference summit (COP26) currently underway in Glasgow aimed at limiting
global temperature rise to 1.50C. Leeds City Council declared a climate
emergency in March 2019, with the target of 2030 for achieving carbon
neutrality, recognising the part Leeds has to play in this global challenge.
Council recognises that some communities in Leeds have far larger carbon
footprints than others. Climate change is already affecting most those who
are least able to pay, whilst those with higher incomes add proportionally
17

Page 23

more to carbon emissions in the City. Council therefore understands that
positive actions by more affluent communities and sectors to reduce their
carbon emissions can contribute most effectively to ensuring our City reaches
net zero carbon by 2030.
Council welcomes current work underway towards helping the City reach net
zero, including:
• Planting over 5.8m trees through the Woodland Creation Scheme over the
next 25 years.
• Reducing the council’s carbon emissions by more than half by 2025
• The largest fleet of council electric vehicles in the country.
• Removing 2434 tonnes of carbon from Council buildings through the
installation of solar panels and heat pumps.
• Removing 5000 tonnes of carbon through the provision of insulation and
energy efficiency measures to over 3000 Council homes and 1400 private
homes.
• The Council’s flagship District Heating Scheme, which has helped employ
more than 430 people in the local low carbon sector including 36 apprentices.
• Embedding sustainable travel at the heart of our transport vision
• Grey to green work including the city park
• Undertaking a Climate Emergency focused Local Plan update that will
ensure that future development in Leeds is zero carbon with a focus on
reduced energy and travel needs, where people can make a choice not to
need a car and where services are more locally based
• securing £25.3 million to decarbonise 38 publicly owned buildings, slashing
the city’s carbon emissions by nearly 4,000 tonnes.
Council notes that work has been done alongside the WWF to understand the
climate footprint in all areas of the city. Whilst this information informs the
work being done and helps define areas of focus, Council notes it is important
that green works not only hinder carbon creation but actively support the most
deprived communities of the city to deliver climate and social justice
alongside carbon neutrality by 2030.”
On the requisition of Councillors Lennox and Brooks the voting on the substantive
motion was recorded as follows;
YES – 52
Akhtar, Arif, A Blackburn, D Blackburn, Brooks, Burke, Carlill, Charlwood, Coupar,
Cunningham, Dowson, Dye, Flint, Forsaith, Gabriel, Garthwaite, Gibson, Goddard, P
Grahame, Groves, C Gruen, Hamilton, Harland, Hayden, Heselwood, A Hussain, Z
Hussain, Illingworth, Iqbal, Jenkins, Lennox, Lewis, Maqsood, Marshall-Katung,
Martin, McKenna, Midgley, Mulherin, Nash, Pryor, Rafique, Ragan, Renshaw,
Ritchie, Scopes, Shahzad, Sharpe, E Taylor, Truswell, Venner, Walshaw and Wray.
NO - 0
ABSTAIN - 17
Bentley, Campbell, Chapman, Dobson, Downes, Field, Finnigan, Firth, Gettings,
Golton, Hart-Brooke, Howley, Kidger, Lay, McCormack, D Seary and Senior.

18

Page 24

57

White Paper Motion (in the name of Councillor Coupar) - Funding
It was moved by Councillor Coupar, seconded by Councillor Lewis that this Council
regrets the additional funding identified by the cross-party Local Government
Association as essential to help councils maintain services just at 2019/20 levels
wasn’t in the Chancellor’s budget. Council is very concerned by the effect this will
have on services for the people of Leeds and calls on the Government to rethink.
An amendment was moved by Councillor Andrew Carter, seconded by Councillor
Flynn
Delete all after “This Council” and replace with:
“welcomes the new government grant funding of £4.8bn for councils over the next
three years to support vital local services, and the £2.6 billion for school places for
children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND).
“Council also welcomes other funding announcements in the Chancellor’s Autumn
Statement that will benefit Leeds and the wider region, as part of the government’s
support for levelling up across the UK. This includes:





£20m from the Levelling Up Fund to deliver improved transport connections
across West Leeds;
£830 million for West Yorkshire as part of the City Region Sustainable
Transport Settlement;
£16 million for the Northern Forest to support new woodland creation;
£77 million for the redevelopment of the British Library Boston Spa.

“Leeds will also benefit from its share of national programmes, including over £2.6
billion for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, focused on helping people into jobs,
including giving adults the opportunity to develop their numeracy skills through the
Adult Numeracy Programme ‘Multiply’.
“Council further notes the huge amount of Covid-related financial support provided by
the government, amounting to £618.81m in grants to the Leeds City Region, helping
to support the Council, external bodies, businesses, and other programmes,
including:





£7.6m Council Tax Support hardship funding;
£79.5m in Business Rate grants;
£99.63m to support additional expenditure and loss of income incurred by the
Council due to Covid;
£283.26m in grants for businesses.

The amendment in the name of Councillor Andrew Carter was declared lost and
upon being put to the vote it was
RESOLVED – That this Council regrets the additional funding identified by the crossparty Local Government Association as essential to help councils maintain services
just at 2019/20 levels wasn’t in the Chancellor’s budget. Council is very concerned by
the effect this will have on services for the people of Leeds and calls on the
Government to rethink.
On the requisition of Councillors Lennox and Coupar the voting on the motion in the
name of Councillor Coupar was recorded as follows;

19

Page 25

YES – 52
Akhtar, Arif, A Blackburn, D Blackburn, Brooks, Burke, Carlill, Charlwood, Coupar,
Cunningham, Dowson, Dye, Flint, Forsaith, Gabriel, Garthwaite, Gibson, Goddard, P
Grahame, Groves, C Gruen, Hamilton, Harland, Hayden, Heselwood, A Hussain, Z
Hussain, Illingworth, Iqbal, Jenkins, Lennox, Lewis, Maqsood, Marshall-Katung,
Martin, McKenna, Midgley, Mulherin, Nash, Pryor, Rafique, Ragan, Renshaw,
Ritchie, Scopes, Shahzad, Sharpe, E Taylor, Truswell, Venner, Walshaw and Wray.
NO - 20
Alderson, B Anderson, C Anderson, Buckley, Amanda Carter, Andrew Carter, Cohen,
Collins, Firth, Flynn, Harrington, Lamb, G Latty, Robinson, D Seary, S Seary, Smith,
Stephenson, J Taylor and Wadsworth.
ABSTAIN - 7
Dobson, Field, Finnigan, Gettings, Kidger, McCormack and Senior.

Council rose at 8.02 pm

20

Page 26

Agenda Item 4
Report author: Kevin Tomkinson
Tel: 88659

Attendance at meetings
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: City Solicitor
Report to: Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions
1 Further to a report considered by Council in April 2020 this report seeks authorisation of the
Council to the absence of all Councillors from meetings of the authority from the date of this
meeting for a period of 6 months in order that any Members not having the opportunity to
attend a qualifying meeting prior to and during the period of the Pandemic are not at risk of
inadvertent disqualification.
Recommendations
2

Council is asked to approve the absence of all Councillors from meetings of the authority
from the date of this meeting for a period of 6 months.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
3 Section 85 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 makes provision in relation to member
attendance at meetings. It provides that if a member fails to attend qualifying meetings for a
period of 6 consecutive months from the date of their last attendance, they shall cease to be
a member of the authority unless, before the expiry of that period the authority has approved
such non-attendance.
4 As a result of the ongoing concerns of the Coronavirus, and particularly the recent
emergence of a new more transmissible variant, some meetings of Committees, Boards,
Panels and Full Council have been cancelled.
5 Where qualifying meetings have been cancelled, in some cases Members have come
together as a consultative forum but in these circumstances attendance by Members does
not amount to qualifying meeting under the Local Government Act 1972.
6 In order to avoid Members being inadvertently disqualified the City Solicitor advises that in
the circumstances it would be reasonable for full Council to grant a general authorisation of
absence for all members from the date of this meeting and for a period of up to 6 months,
with this permission being reviewed as soon as possible before the expiry of this period
should normal meeting arrangements recommence.
Page 27

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

7 This decision will prevent any Member of Council not having the opportunity to attend a
qualifying meeting prior to and during the period set out being at risk of inadvertent
disqualification.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
8 Group Whips have been notified of the intention to bring this report to full Council for
consideration.
What are the resource implications?
9 There are no specific resource implications associated with this report.
What are the legal implications?
10 Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that a member of a local authority loses
office if they do not attend a meeting at least once in any six-month period.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
11 The key risk would be Members of Council not having the opportunity to attend a qualifying
meeting prior to and during the period set out being at risk of inadvertent disqualification.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
12 In the current climate of uncertainty regarding the Coronavirus and the recently identified
variant it is important to have in place arrangements that would ensure the Council still has
all 99 Councillors representing their wards and constituents.
How will success be measured?
13 Ensuring that all 99 Members of the Council are eligible to remain a Councillor.
What is the timetable for implementation?
14 The implementation of the decision would be immediately after the decision is made.
Appendices
15 None.
Background papers
16 None

Page 28

Agenda Item 5
Report author: Victoria Bradshaw
Tel: 88540

Calculation of the Council Tax and Business Rates Tax
Bases for 2022/23
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions
•

The purpose of this report is to:
o seek agreement to the 2022/23 council tax bases for Leeds and the parish/town
councils set out in the report
o Provide indicative business rates shares for 2022/23 and to request Council to give
delegated authority to the Chief Officer – Financial Services to finalise the shares and
to submit them in the National Non-Domestic Rates 1 Return 2022/23 on or before
the 31st January 2022.

•

The Council Tax Base and business rates share for Leeds for 2022/23 are used to identify
the Council’s Net Revenue Budget, that is, the core locally generated resources to support
the 2022/23 Revenue Budget which will be presented to Full Council in February 2022/23.
The 2022/23 budget will target resources towards the Council’s policies and priorities as set
out in the Best Council Plan.

•

The figures are further explained in Appendix 1 and set out in detail in Appendix 2 to this
report, but the headline amounts for 2022/23 are as follows:
Leeds Council Tax Base:

235,758.0

Business Rates:
Amount to be retained by Leeds under
the Rates Retention scheme:
Amount to be paid to Central
Government:
Amount to be passed to West Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Authority:

Page 29

£160,077,000
£163,344,000
£3,267,000

•

The Council Tax Base for the 34 parish and town councils have been calculated as shown in
Table 1 and detailed in Appendix 2.
Table 1: Parish and Town Council Tax bases 2021/22 and 2022/23

Recommendations
Members are requested to:
a) Agree that, in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) (England)
Regulations 2012, the amount calculated by the Council as its council tax base for the year
2022/23 shall be 235,758.0 for Leeds, as detailed in Appendix 2, and for each parish as
detailed in Appendix 2.
b) Note the indicative business rates shares set out in Appendix 3, and delegate authority to
the Chief Officer – Financial Services to make detailed calculations and to submit the final
Page 30

figures to the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities on or before the 31st
January 2022.
Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 Each year, under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, Leeds City Council is required to
calculate a council tax base for Leeds and for each parish or town council within the Council’s
area. These tax bases are used to calculate the council tax to be levied in Leeds and in each
parish/town council for the year.
2 There is also a requirement for the Council to prepare an estimate of business rates income it
will collect in the coming year.
3 The Council is required to finalise the council tax bases (for Leeds and the parish/town councils)
and the business rates estimates by 31st January 2021.
4 The 2022/23 council tax base for Leeds and the parish/town councils are set out in this report.
This report also provides an indicative business rates share for 2022/23. These items are used
to identify the Council’s Net Revenue Budget for 2022/23, which will support the 2022/23
Revenue Budget to be presented to Executive Board and Full Council in February 2022. The
calculation of the Council Tax Base will also allow the Council to set a legal Council Tax in
2022/23.
What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

5 The calculations presented in this report are made in accordance with the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 are not subject to consultation.
6 The 2022/23 council tax bases for Leeds and the parish/town councils set out in this report,
alongside the indicative business rates share for 2022/23 will be used to identify the Council’s
Net Revenue Budget for 2022/23, which will support the 2022/23 Revenue Budget and the
setting of a legal Council Tax for 2022/23. The budget proposals that will be contained in the
2022/23 Revenue Budget will be, where appropriate, the subject of the Council’s Equality
Impact Assessment process and mitigating measures put in place or planned where
appropriate. As such, an Equality Impact Assessment will be provided alongside the 2022/23
Revenue Budget and Council Tax Report to be presented to Executive Board and Full Council
in February 2022.
7 The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have “due regard” to the need to eliminate
unlawful discrimination and promote equality of opportunity. The law requires that the duty to
pay due regard be demonstrated in the decision-making process. Assessing the potential
equality impact of proposed changes to policies, procedures and practices is one of the key
ways in which public authorities can show due regard.
8 The Council is fully committed to ensuring that equality and diversity are given proper
consideration when we develop policies and make decisions. In order to achieve this the
Council has an agreed process in place and has particularly promoted the importance of the
process when taking forward key policy or budgetary changes. Equality impact assessments
also ensure that we make well informed decisions based on robust evidence.
Page 31

9 The proposals within this report have been screened for relevance to equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration (Appendix 3) and a full strategic analysis and assessment will be
undertaken on the 2022/23 Revenue Budget and Council Tax report which will be considered
by Executive Board and subsequently by Full Council in February 2022. Specific equality impact
assessments will also be undertaken on all budget decisions identified as relevant to equality as
they are considered during the decision-making process in 2022/23.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
10 The calculations presented in this report are in accordance with the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 and are not subject to consultation.
11 The Council Tax Base and business rates share for Leeds for 2022/23 are used to identify the
Council’s Net Revenue Budget, that is, the core locally generated resources to support the
2022/23 Revenue Budget to be presented to Full Council in February 2022.
12 The Authority’s financial strategy is driven by its ambitions and priorities as set out in the Best
Council Plan. The current Best Council Plan was approved by Council in February 2020
following consultation with members and officers throughout its development, with additional
extensive stakeholder consultation carried out on the range of supporting plans and strategies.
These arrangements will continue to inform further updates to the strategic plan as it transitions
to a new ‘City Ambition’.
13 The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 – 2026/27, received at Executive
Board in September 2021, was informed by the public consultation exercise carried out
between January and February 2021 on the Council’s 2021/22 budget proposals. Whilst the
consultation covered the key 2021/22 proposals, it also included the principles of how we
should be funded, proposed changes to Council Tax, how we plan to spend the revenue
budget, and respondents’ service priorities. Additional areas were explored including:
perceptions of the Council, attitudes around our social contract with citizens, and how people
are coping and their concerns around the COVID-19 pandemic. This supplemented the ongoing
process of consultation through which residents are consulted on a variety of issues throughout
the year.
14 The approach for the public consultation on the proposed Budget for 2022/23 has followed a
similar approach to that taken last year, with the primary method being an online survey. This
will be carried out: with the public via the council’s website, social media and the Citizens’
Panel; with staff through the intranet; and with stakeholders, including representatives from the
Third Sector and the Business sector. A change from recent years, the consultation will be
hosted through an engagement platform (YourVoice), enabling key information and participants’
ideas to be shared in one place. Staff at the council’s customer community hubs will provide
support to members of the public requiring assistance to complete the online survey. The
consultation began once the proposed Budget for 2022/23 report was initially agreed by
Executive Board and will run for four weeks, with findings timetabled to be reported at the
following meeting, prior to finalisation of the Budget. The Budget public consultation will be
delivered in parallel to the Best City Ambition consultation, helping residents and respondents to
consider these two important matters together. Efforts will be made to cross-reference and
signpost between the two consultations.
What are the resource implications?
15 This report requests that Council approve the 2022/23 council tax base for Leeds and the
parish/town councils set out in the report. This report also provides an indicative business rates
Page 32

share for 2022/23. These items are used to identify the Council’s Net Revenue Budget for
2022/23 which support the 2022/23 Revenue Budget and allow the Council to set a legal
Council Tax for 2022/23.
What are the legal implications?
16 The decisions requested in this report will enable the City Council to fulfil its responsibilities
under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and Local Government Finance Act 2012 in
relation to council tax discounts and exemptions. The decisions relating to council tax bases
and business rates estimates will enable the Council to finalise its budget and set a legal
council tax for 2022/23.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
17 In the equivalent tax base report presented to Council on 13th January 2021, an assessment
was made of the ongoing impact of restrictions due to the coronavirus crisis on the council tax
base. At that time the impacts were highly uncertain but an increase in demand for Council Tax
Support (CTS) due to expected increases in unemployment, as forecast by the Office Budget
Responsibility (OBR) and the primary driver of applications for CTS to working age claimants,
and a reduction in the collection rate as residents of Leeds experienced the impact of an
expected economic downturn were incorporated into estimates of the 2021/22 tax base. Both
these factors resulted in the tax base for Leeds for 2021/22, which usually increases from yearto-year, reducing by 1,888 band D equivalents.
18 However, as 2021/22 progressed, it became clear that unemployment did not reach the levels
originally forecast by the OBR, resulting in a lower demand for CTS than forecast in the 2021/22
tax base. Although levels of CTS remain slightly higher than pre-pandemic levels, the level of
CTS in forecast for 2022/23 compared to 2021/22 has been reduced and this has had an
impact of increasing the tax base by 1,768 band D equivalents.
19 It has also become apparent that the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 crisis on collection rates
is not as severe as expected. Therefore, in the forecast of the 2022/23 tax base the collection
rate of council tax has been returned to its historical average of 99% from 98% in 2021/22. This
has added 2,435 band D equivalents to the 2022/23 tax base compared to the 2021/22 tax
base.
20 However, the reported forecast does not reflect the potential effects of any further local or
national lockdown arrangements not yet introduced which could impact on these financial
projections. The continuing coronavirus situation poses a significant risk to these forecasts and
will be closely monitored in the coming months.
21 Further risks associated with the council tax base and the business rates estimates will be
assessed as part of the budget-setting process and will be included in the budget proposals to
be considered by Executive Board and Council in February 2022.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

22 The Best Council Plan is the Council’s strategic plan which sets out its ambitions, outcomes and
priorities for the City of Leeds and for the Local Authority. The Three Pillars of inclusive growth,
health and wellbeing and the climate change emergency underpin this vision and these can
only be delivered through a sound understanding of the organisation’s longer-term financial
sustainability which enables decisions to be made that balance the resource implications of the
Page 33

Council’s policies against financial constraints. This is the primary purpose of the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy which provides the framework for the determination of the Council’s annual
revenue budget.
23 This report needs to be seen in context of the requirement for the Council to be financially
sustainable and deliver a balanced budget position in 2022/23 so that resources can continue to
be targeted at the Council’s priorities.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
24 Not applicable.
How will success be measured?
25 Not applicable.
What is the timetable for implementation?
26 The statutory deadline for a billing authority to approve its council tax base for 2022/23 and
inform any local or major preceptors of relevant council tax bases in its area is 31st January
2022.
27 The statutory deadline for a billing authority to forecast its Non-Domestic Rating Income for
2022/23 and submit this forecast to central government and any major preceptor in its area is
31st January 2022.
Appendices
28 The following appendices are attached to this report:
• Appendix 1 – background information, detailed narrative regarding the calculated Council
Tax Base for Leeds for 2022/23 and the indicative business rates shares for 2022/23
•

Appendix 2 – Detailed calculations of the Tax Base for the purpose of calculating council
tax 2022/23

•

Appendix 3 – Equalities Impact Assessment for the Council Tax Base Report to Council on
12th January 2022

Background papers
29 None.

Page 34

Appendix 1

Calculation of the Council Tax Base and indicative Share of
Business Rates Income for Leeds in 2022/23
1. Purpose of this Report
1.1.

The purpose of this report is to:

1.1.1. Seek agreement to the 2022/23 council tax bases for Leeds and the
parish/town councils set out in this report;
1.1.2. Provide indicative shares of business rates income for 2022/23 and to request
Council to give delegated authority to the Chief Officer – Financial Services to
finalise the shares and to submit them in the Nation Non-Domestic Rates 1
Return 2022/23 on or before 31st January 2022.
2. Background information
2.1.

From 2013/14 the Government made major changes to the funding regime for
local government. The long-established formula grant system, where funding
depended upon local needs and resources, was replaced by a system based
upon the capacity to deliver housing and business growth.

2.2.

At the same time a number of council tax exemptions were removed and
council tax benefit was replaced by the Council Tax Support scheme (CTS). In
2013/14 government funding for CTS was reduced by 10% compared to the
previous year, and for 2014/15 onwards funding from Government has no
longer been separately identifiable.

3. Main issues
3.1.

Impact of Covid-19 on the Council Tax base assumptions

3.1.1. The economic impact of the coronavirus crisis has affected all areas of local
government. The assumptions within this tax base report are set within the
context of that crisis. In the assumptions underlying the 2021/22 tax base
calculations it was assumed that the collection rate for council tax would reduce
from the historic average of 99% to 98% given the financial difficulties expected
to be faced by the residents of Leeds. It was also assumed that the number of
claimants for Council Tax Support (CTS) would increase significantly given the
forecasts of unemployment then forecast by the Office for Budget Responsibility.
Unemployment is the primary driver of demand for additional support with
Council Tax amongst the working age population. These two factors resulted in
the tax base in 2021/22, which normally increases year-on-year, being reduced
by 1,888 band D equivalents when compared to 2020/21.
3.1.2. As 2021/22 has progressed these assumptions have proven to be pessimistic.
Although both rates of non-collection and demand for CTS within Leeds are now
slightly worse than they were pre-pandemic it has been possible to scale back
these assumptions for 2022/23. It is therefore forecast that in 2022/23 levels of
collection of council tax in Leeds will return to 99%, increasing the tax base by
2,435 compared to 2021/22. It is also expected that levels of demand for CTS
will return to almost average levels of CTS which has added a further 1,768.8
band D equivalents to the tax base compared to 2021/22.
3.1.3. Further to this there has been an acceleration of development in the city in
2021/22, as developers have caught up with work delayed by the 2020/21

Page 35

Appendix 1

lockdowns, although a slowing down of this is forecast for 2022/23. This
underlying growth has resulted in a net 2,205.3 additional band D equivalents
added to the 2022/23 Council Tax Base for Leeds.
3.2.

Council Tax Support Scheme

3.2.1. The Council Tax Support scheme operates as a discount on the same basis
as other discounts currently in place, with protected groups currently receiving a
100% discount. At its December 2016 meeting, Executive Board agreed to
recommend to Full Council the replacement of the previous Council Tax Support
Scheme with a scheme aligned with Universal Credit. Full Council supported the
adoption of the proposed scheme at its January 2017 meeting, with it taking
effect from 1st April 2017. Customers now move on to this new scheme when
they transfer to Universal Credit, at which time eligible customers will move off
the scheme of automatic protections. Non-protected recipients of council tax
benefit continue to be required to pay 25% of their council tax bills.
3.2.2. The localisation of CTS has the effect of reducing the overall tax base for
Leeds. Based on the current scheme, as outlined in Section 3.2.1, the tax base
will be reduced by 30,860.6 band D equivalents properties for 2022/23. The
number of CTS claimants has decreased from the 2021/22 tax base calculation
by 1,768.8 band D equivalents. This is due to the reduced demand for CTS as
outlined in Paragraph 3.1.2.
3.3.

Empty Homes Premium

3.3.1. Under section 11B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, from 1st April
2013 to 31st March 2019 Leeds City Council charged a 50% council tax
premium on empty dwellings that have been unoccupied for more than two
years. The Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council Tax (Empty
Dwellings) Act 2018, which received Royal Assent on 1st November 2018,
permitted councils to increase this premium on dwellings unoccupied for more
than two years to 100% from 1st April 2019, to increase the premium on
dwellings unoccupied for more than five years to 200% from 1st April 2020 and
to increase the premium on dwellings unoccupied for more than ten years to
300% from 1st April 2021.
3.3.2. Leeds City Council has implemented these premiums on long-term empty
properties alongside a policy allowing certain properties to exempted and to
allow officers discretion in its application in certain cases.
3.4.

Calculation of the Council Tax Base

3.4.1. Under the Local Government Act 1992 and accompanying regulations,
detailed procedures are laid down for calculating the tax base which will be used
for calculating council tax. The tax base for the Leeds area is expressed as the
number of Band D equivalent properties and will be used both to calculate Leeds
City Council’s element of council tax and to notify to the West Yorkshire Police
and Crime Commissioner and the West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority for
them to calculate their own elements of council tax. The Police and Crime
Commissioner and the Fire & Rescue Authority have to be notified of the tax
base by 31st January 2022.
3.4.2. In addition to calculating the tax base for the Leeds area as a whole, a
separate tax base has to be calculated for each part of the Council’s areas to

Page 36

Appendix 1

which a “special item” of expenditure relates. In Leeds, it is considered that only
parish precepts should be treated as special items for these purposes and a tax
base is therefore also calculated for each parish/town council.
3.4.3. Details of the calculations for Leeds as a whole and for each individual parish
are given in Appendix 2. In summary, the council tax base for Leeds is
calculated at 235,758.0 Band D equivalent properties. This is calculated
estimating changes from the Valuation Office Agency’s Valuation List that will
take place during 2021/22 by reference to the following:
•

provision for successful appeals,

•

provision for exempt properties,

•

changes in number of properties (demolitions and new additions),

•

estimated single person and other discounts,

•

and estimated collection rate.

3.4.4. The equivalent amount for each of the parish and town councils are:
PARISH OF
Aberford and District
Allerton Bywater
Alwoodley
Arthington
Austhorpe
Bardsey cum Rigton
Barwick in Elmet and Scholes
Boston Spa
Bramham cum Oglethorpe
Bramhope and Carlton
Clifford
Collingham with Linton
Drighlington
East Keswick
Gildersome
Great and Little Preston
Harewood
Horsforth
Kippax
Ledsham
Ledston
Micklefield
Morley
Otley
Pool in Wharfedale
Rawdon
Scarcroft
Shadwell
Swillington
Thorner
Thorp Arch
Walton
Wetherby
Wothersome

Page 37

Taxbase
Numbers
2021/22
771.3
1,465.6
3,586.4
287.9
60.3
1,129.9
2,026.0
1,996.8
730.2
1,990.9
828.1
1,698.2
1,896.3
581.1
1,829.5
605.9
1,813.2
7,323.8
3,052.5
94.0
148.4
611.8
10,993.3
5,000.4
955.1
2,725.8
811.5
958.0
940.2
748.5
396.8
113.9
4,986.0
7.6

Taxbase
Numbers
2022/23
772.8
1,462.9
3,633.3
294.5
60.9
1,146.5
1,998.4
1,999.1
744.0
2,034.8
840.3
1,713.0
1,973.4
595.1
1,853.7
616.7
1,839.7
7,431.0
3,102.1
96.9
152.4
775.8
11,293.5
5,076.7
974.2
2,756.0
833.9
972.6
957.7
752.9
435.1
115.1
5,052.0
8.6

Appendix 1

3.4.5. The council tax requirement for 2022/23, which will be decided by Council in
February 2022, will be divided by the calculated council tax base to arrive at the
council tax for a band D property, from which the council taxes for other
valuation bands will be calculated.
3.5.

Business Rates

3.5.1. Under the current Business Rates Retention Scheme, introduced by the Local
Government Finance Act 2012, the Council has to calculate the amounts of
business rates it will collect in 2022/23. Under this scheme, the Business Rates
collected have to be shared between Leeds City Council, Central Government
and the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority in the following proportions:
•

50% passed to Central Government;

•

49% retained by Leeds;

•

1% passed to West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority.

3.5.2. The headline amounts are currently estimated as follows:
•

Total Business Rates collected

£326,688,000

Of which:
•

To be paid to Central Government

£163,344,000

•

To be retained by Leeds

£160,077,000

•

To be passed to West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority

£3,267,000

3.5.3. In December 2020, Government announced that the application of the Leeds
City Business rates to be designated as a Pool for the purposes of the Business
Rates Retention Scheme had been successful. The Leeds City Region Pool was
established on the 1st April 2021, with Leeds as the lead authority. The following
authorities are members of the Pool:
•

Bradford

•

Calderdale

•

Harrogate

•

Kirklees

•

Leeds

•

Wakefield

•

York

3.5.4. Under the 50% scheme the advantage of forming a business rates pool will be
the retention of levy payments within the region that would otherwise have to be
paid to central government. Current estimates are that this will be a net gain to
the region of £5.4m with Leeds City Council’s financial commitment to the Pool
currently estimated to be in the region of £0.9m. Current budget estimates
recognise that Leeds City Council will be required to make this payment in
2022/23, either to Government or to the Pool.
3.5.5. The application itself is not binding. Any member of the proposed Pool will still
be able to withdraw during the statutory 28-day window after the Government

Page 38

Appendix 1

designates the Pool, as set out in the provisional Local Government Finance Act
2012. It must be noted however that, should any member withdraw, not only
would the Pool be revoked but there would be no fall back on existing pooling
arrangements.
3.5.6. The final estimated amount of business rates to be retained for Leeds will be
used in the development of the 2022/23 budget which is to be considered by
Executive Board on 9th February 2022 and agreed by Full Council on 23rd
February 2022.

Page 39

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE WHOLE OF:

Appendix 2

LEEDS

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

= "H" in formula 2

BAND
A

403 141,140
0
9,565
403 131,575

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

77,978
5,774
72,204

70,812
2,467
68,345

35,650
1,190
34,460

21,966
481
21,485

10,440
105
10,335

7,159
73
7,086

678
10
668

366,226
19,666
346,560

1
1

Page 40

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

33

17,397

7,284

5,543

2,278

1,070

478

274

34

34,391

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

498

174

138

68

37

20

12

3

949

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

1

144

549

654

387

67

7

10

5

1,824

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

124

31,160

7,271

3,300

816

315

106

43

2

43,138

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

137.1 55,773.3 45,400.6 53,594.2 31,820.1 24,692.7 14,123.4 11,318.0

1,278.8

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

238,138.2

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

3

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

235,757

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

LEEDS
1
2
3
4

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band

1.2
235,758.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

ABERFORD and DISTRICT

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

75
2
73

103
0
103

110
3
107

147
1
146

201
0
201

92
0
92

63
0
63

5
0
5

797
6
791

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

13

10

12

10

8

3

2

0

58

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

1

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

2

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

18

11

1

5

4

1

0

0

40

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.6

28.4

63.9

84.6

131.9

232.0

126.7

102.6

10.0

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

Page 41

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

780.7

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

772.8

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

ABERFORD and DISTRICT
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
772.8

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

ALLERTON BYWATER

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 42

= "H" in formula 2

3
0
3

1,068
12
1,056

662
9
653

479
2
477

103
0
103

32
0
32

1
0
1

1
0
1

1
0
1

2,350
24
2,326

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

119

60

24

4

1

0

0

1

209

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

4

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

5

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

2

0

0

0

0

3

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

1

168

35

17

3

1

0

0

0

225

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

1.1

514.8

433.5

388.4

98.0

37.8

1.4

1.7

1.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,477.7

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,462.9

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

ALLERTON BYWATER
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,462.9

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

ALWOODLEY

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
D

BAND
C

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

39
0
39

178
1
177

1,108
20
1,088

1,170
14
1,156

567
9
558

279
3
276

344
2
342

53
0
53

3,738
50
3,688

1
1

Total

= "Q" in formula 2

0

7

25

94

78

33

17

14

2

269

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

1

0

5

2

0

1

0

0

9

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

1

0

3

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

5

16

52

32

8

3

1

0

117

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

18.8

105.4

841.5

1,050.4

632.3

372.2

547.4

102.0

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

Page 43

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

3,670.0

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

3,633.3

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

ALWOODLEY
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
3,633.3

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

ARTHINGTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 44

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

1
0
1

18
0
18

26
0
26

24
0
24

39
0
39

24
0
24

89
1
88

14
0
14

235
1
234

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

2

2

1

2

2

4

1

13

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

4

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

5

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

6

3

1

0

0

0

0

10

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

2.8

7.6

18.6

22.0

46.7

32.5

140.8

26.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

297.5

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

294.5

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

ARTHINGTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
294.5

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

AUSTHORPE

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 45

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

2
0
2

7
0
7

18
0
18

11
0
11

11
0
11

0
0
0

49
0
49

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

1

2

1

0

0

3

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

6.5

20.2

15.2

17.8

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2
0

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

61.5

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

60.9

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

AUSTHORPE
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
60.9

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

BARDSEY cum RIGTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 46

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

19
1
18

57
0
57

40
1
39

138
2
136

215
0
215

246
2
244

225
2
223

14
0
14

954
8
946

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

2

5

5

11

14

11

8

0

57

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

2

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

1

4

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

6

8

2

6

1

2

2

0

27

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

6.4

34.4

28.2

119.0

246.1

334.9

359.6

29.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,158.1

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,146.5

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

BARDSEY cum RIGTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,146.5

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

BARWICK in ELMET and SCHOLES

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 47

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

112
3
109

225
2
223

809
16
793

459
7
452

342
5
337

208
2
206

93
1
92

4
0
4

2,253
37
2,216

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

17

25

63

36

22

9

4

0

175

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

1

1

0

0

1

1

0

5

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

1

0

2

2

1

0

0

0

6

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

42

25

35

10

6

1

1

0

120

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.6

33.8

135.4

620.4

408.4

379.3

284.9

147.8

8.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

2,018.6

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,998.4

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

BARWICK in ELMET and SCHOLES
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,998.4

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

BOSTON SPA

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 48

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

100
0
100

386
6
380

335
11
324

347
9
338

392
4
388

311
3
308

215
4
211

27
0
27

2,113
38
2,075

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

17

40

41

37

27

12

8

0

182

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

2

1

0

0

1

0

4

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

4

1

7

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

39

72

37

7

5

1

0

0

161

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

28.9

207.8

220.4

295.5

434.7

428.6

347.5

55.9

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

2,019.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,999.1

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

BOSTON SPA
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,999.1

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

BRAMHAM cum OGLETHORPE

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 49

= "H" in formula 2

3
0
3

111
0
111

117
2
115

85
0
85

81
1
80

158
2
156

103
0
103

95
0
95

5
0
5

758
5
753

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

1

14

10

11

7

7

6

3

0

58

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

1

4

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

3

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

1

18

9

5

0

2

1

1

0

37

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.8

52.3

74.3

61.7

75.4

183.2

138.9

152.4

12.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

751.5

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

744.0

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

BRAMHAM cum OGLETHORPE
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
744.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

BRAMHOPE and CARLTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 50

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

70
6
64

12
0
12

133
2
131

344
11
333

309
3
306

421
4
417

355
5
350

29
0
29

1,673
31
1,642

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

9

2

14

33

19

20

12

1

110

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

0

4

0

0

0

5

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

70

45

0

0

0

0

115

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

14

1

10

13

5

5

1

1

50

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

27.5

7.1

158.0

331.6

348.7

566.5

561.6

54.4

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

2,055.4

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

2,034.8

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

BRAMHOPE and CARLTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
2,034.8

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

CLIFFORD

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 51

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

53
2
51

107
1
106

171
1
170

157
3
154

97
0
97

163
0
163

101
1
100

3
0
3

852
8
844

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

9

11

20

18

6

6

3

0

73

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

1

1

0

1

1

0

0

4

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

1

0

1

1

0

3

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

16

14

9

5

0

0

1

0

45

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

17.2

64.0

126.0

132.2

112.0

229.3

162.1

6.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

848.8

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

840.3

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

CLIFFORD
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
840.3

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

COLLINGHAM with LINTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 52

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

22
2
20

67
2
65

108
3
105

81
4
77

148
1
147

292
4
288

484
4
480

109
0
109

1,311
20
1,291

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

3

6

13

9

10

18

17

2

78

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

2

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

2

5

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

6

7

8

2

4

2

3

0

32

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

7.2

41.6

74.5

66.4

162.2

388.9

771.9

217.6

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,730.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,713.0

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

COLLINGHAM with LINTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,713.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

DRIGHLINGTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 53

= "H" in formula 2

3
0
3

627
4
623

455
7
448

837
9
828

298
1
297

268
2
266

65
0
65

20
0
20

3
0
3

2,576
23
2,553

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

78

45

68

18

10

2

0

0

222

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

1

0

4

0

0

0

0

0

5

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

30

35

0

0

0

0

65

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

1

114

31

30

12

4

1

1

0

194

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

1.1

288.0

289.2

678.5

301.7

308.0

89.5

31.3

6.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,993.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,973.4

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

DRIGHLINGTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,973.4

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

GILDERSOME

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 54

= "H" in formula 2

5
0
5

641
10
631

733
18
715

811
9
802

216
1
215

219
0
219

40
0
40

8
0
8

1
0
1

2,674
38
2,636

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

1

88

70

61

10

9

1

0

0

239

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

1

1

1

1

0

1

0

0

6

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

2

156

54

34

5

7

1

0

0

259

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

1.4

259.3

460.0

629.6

201.2

248.6

57.4

12.9

2.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,872.4

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,853.7

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

GILDERSOME
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,853.7

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

GREAT and LITTLE PRESTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 55

= "H" in formula 2

3
0
3

269
4
265

105
0
105

265
2
263

105
1
104

88
0
88

9
0
9

7
0
7

0
0
0

851
7
844

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

27

9

19

6

3

0

1

0

64

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

1

59

9

6

2

1

0

0

0

78

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

1.1

119.0

67.9

211.5

96.3

103.3

13.0

10.8

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

622.9

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

616.7

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

GREAT and LITTLE PRESTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
616.7

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

HAREWOOD

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 56

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

8
0
8

31
0
31

311
2
309

331
4
327

228
3
225

262
5
257

337
5
332

87
0
87

1,595
19
1,576

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

1

1

5

28

28

17

11

13

3

106

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

2

6

2

2

1

0

14

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

4

1

1

2

0

8

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

1

7

20

8

7

5

2

0

50

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

-0.3

3.8

15.2

234.2

300.7

250.4

352.8

533.7

167.8

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

1,858.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

1,839.7

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

HAREWOOD
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
1,839.7

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

HORSFORTH

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 57

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

912
31
881

2,674
109
2,565

2,380
47
2,333

1,665
21
1,644

982
9
973

565
1
564

184
0
184

11
4
7

9,374
221
9,153

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

147

271

212

103

44

20

6

1

804

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

1

2

5

2

0

0

0

0

11

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

2

7

1

1

0

0

0

0

11

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

1

202

259

76

20

9

4

1

0

572

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

-0.1

356.6

1,590.6

1,823.5

1,523.7

1,124.2

780.3

295.8

11.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

7,506.1

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

7,431.0

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

HORSFORTH
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
7,431.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

EAST KESWICK

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 58

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

13
0
13

64
1
63

32
1
31

44
1
43

60
0
60

84
1
83

188
0
188

7
0
7

492
4
488

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

2

5

4

6

6

3

9

0

35

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

1

0

1

1

0

3

1

0

7

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

4

10

1

1

1

0

1

0

18

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

5.2

37.8

24.0

37.5

64.8

119.9

297.9

14.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

601.1

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

595.1

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

EAST KESWICK
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
595.1

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

KIPPAX

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 59

= "H" in formula 2

4
0
4

1,408
19
1,389

1,141
8
1,133

1,196
2
1,194

531
5
526

195
0
195

43
1
42

4
0
4

0
0
0

4,522
36
4,486

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

163

106

74

27

6

3

1

0

380

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

1

2

4

0

0

0

0

0

7

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

2

4

5

1

0

0

0

12

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

228

97

51

14

2

0

0

0

392

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

2.2

665.9

726.3

956.8

489.8

230.4

56.7

5.3

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

3,133.4

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

3,102.1

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

KIPPAX
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
3,102.1

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

LEDSHAM

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 60

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

0
0
0

12
0
12

3
0
3

6
0
6

10
0
10

10
0
10

36
0
36

1
0
1

78
0
78

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

3

0

0

1

0

2

0

6

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

3

0

0

0

1

0

0

4

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

0.0

4.9

2.4

5.8

11.3

14.8

56.7

2.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

97.9

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

96.9

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

LEDSHAM
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
96.9

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

LEDSTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 61

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

60
0
60

33
1
32

6
0
6

13
0
13

16
0
16

23
0
23

23
1
22

0
0
0

175
2
173

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

6

2

1

1

1

1

2

0

12

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

3

3

0

0

0

6

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

11

3

1

1

1

0

1

0

18

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.6

28.8

21.1

4.0

14.3

20.8

31.8

32.5

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

153.9

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

152.4

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

LEDSTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
152.4

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

MICKLEFIELD

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 62

= "H" in formula 2

7
0
7

572
9
563

122
0
122

131
0
131

109
0
109

53
0
53

33
0
33

6
0
6

0
0
0

1,033
9
1,024

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

2

68

15

9

5

2

1

0

0

100

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

1

14

42

39

22

1

1

0

120

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

3

108

6

2

3

0

1

0

0

123

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

1.3

259.0

89.3

144.3

140.5

90.9

46.6

11.7

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

783.6

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

775.8

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

MICKLEFIELD
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
775.8

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

MORLEY

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 63

= "H" in formula 2

24
0
24

6,164
76
6,088

3,783
32
3,751

3,960
49
3,911

1,596
11
1,585

1,079
1
1,078

189
0
189

62
2
60

1
0
1

16,858
171
16,687

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

3

844

396

305

73

40

6

2

1

1,669

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

22

5

5

2

2

0

2

0

39

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

70

41

0

0

0

2

113

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

8

1,124

286

185

32

17

3

0

0

1655

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

7.4

2,761.5

2,390.6

3,107.9

1,523.6

1,251.1

259.8

100.7

5.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

11,407.6

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

11,293.5

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

MORLEY
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
11,293.5

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

OTLEY

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 64

= "H" in formula 2

4
0
4

841
25
816

2,174
25
2,149

1,887
27
1,860

1,083
8
1,075

593
5
588

213
1
212

67
1
66

6
0
6

6,868
93
6,775

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

1

141

220

174

76

32

8

3

0

654

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

4

8

7

1

1

1

0

0

22

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

2

244

217

82

19

4

1

1

0

570

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.8

289.4

1,337.8

1,432.0

981.4

675.5

295.0

104.1

12.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

5,128.0

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

5,076.7

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

OTLEY
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
5,076.7

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

POOL in WHARFEDALE

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 65

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

51
0
51

154
1
153

213
1
212

182
1
181

133
0
133

138
1
137

119
0
119

6
0
6

997
4
993

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

10

14

19

15

8

7

3

0

76

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

13

14

6

4

3

2

0

0

42

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.4

19.0

97.0

166.1

162.5

148.8

184.5

194.2

11.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

984.0

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

974.2

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

POOL in WHARFEDALE
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
974.2

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

RAWDON

.

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

78
3
75

425
5
420

851
11
840

632
7
625

468
4
464

288
2
286

194
4
190

32
0
32

2,968
36
2,932

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

13

47

78

40

25

13

6

2

222

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

1

0

4

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

18

55

33

20

5

2

0

0

133

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

29.3

247.9

648.1

567.5

530.6

391.6

308.2

60.6

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

Page 66

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

2,783.8

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

2,756.0

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

RAWDON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
2,756.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

SCARCROFT

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

10
0
10

35
0
35

38
1
37

55
0
55

56
0
56

73
0
73

261
3
258

78
0
78

606
4
602

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

2

4

6

4

3

3

8

2

31

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

5

1

0

1

0

8

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

1

1

3

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

4

6

2

1

1

2

1

0

17

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

2.5

19.3

27.0

54.7

66.5

97.9

419.4

155.0

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

Page 67

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

842.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

833.9

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

SCARCROFT
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
833.9

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

SHADWELL

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 68

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

11
0
11

29
0
29

55
0
55

134
3
131

219
3
216

171
3
168

192
1
191

10
0
10

821
10
811

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

2

4

8

13

15

7

6

0

54

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

2

2

2

2

2

0

1

0

11

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

4.7

18.8

40.3

116.4

243.5

232.5

306.7

19.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

982.4

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

972.6

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

SHADWELL
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0.0
972.6

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

SWILLINGTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 69

= "H" in formula 2

4
0
4

648
11
637

329
2
327

323
10
313

113
0
113

64
0
64

25
1
24

7
0
7

1
0
1

1,514
24
1,490

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

1

74

29

20

10

4

2

0

0

138

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

4

1

1

1

1

1

0

0

9

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

0

0

2

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

2

144

23

19

4

0

0

0

0

192

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.6

282.1

214.9

245.8

101.7

75.1

33.9

11.3

2.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

967.4

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

957.7

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

SWILLINGTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
957.7

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

THORNER

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 70

= "H" in formula 2

1
0
1

68
0
68

90
0
90

105
1
104

109
2
107

157
0
157

76
1
75

124
1
123

20
0
20

750
5
745

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

13

10

10

11

13

5

5

1

66

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

2

1

0

0

0

4

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

1

2

2

0

0

5

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

28

9

7

6

1

1

1

0

53

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.6

18.1

55.5

77.5

93.9

179.3

102.6

195.0

38.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

760.5

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

752.9

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

THORNER
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
752.9

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

THORP ARCH

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 71

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

2
2
0

34
0
34

99
0
99

49
2
47

87
1
86

24
0
24

75
0
75

9
0
9

379
5
374

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

3

9

5

5

1

3

1

26

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

0

2

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

1

14

20

0

0

0

0

35

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

3

8

2

1

0

0

0

14

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

0.0

22.7

86.1

60.0

97.8

33.6

122.8

16.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

439.5

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

435.1

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

THORP ARCH
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
435.1

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

WALTON

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 72

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

2
0
2

2
0
2

14
0
14

11
0
11

21
0
21

15
0
15

32
1
31

3
0
3

100
1
99

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

2

2

1

2

0

8

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

2

0

4

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

1.2

1.4

10.7

8.3

23.2

20.6

45.4

5.5

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

116.3

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

115.1

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

WALTON
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
115.1

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

WETHERBY

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 73

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

276
7
269

1,117
25
1,092

1,116
15
1,101

814
18
796

1,220
9
1,211

579
5
574

389
3
386

26
0
26

5,537
82
5,455

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

44

132

118

72

69

34

14

2

484

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

2

2

0

1

0

0

0

0

6

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

7

21

4

11

4

1

0

48

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

80

180

73

15

10

3

0

0

361

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

98.4

614.2

827.3

713.8

1,397.1

781.7

622.5

48.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

5,103.0

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

5,052.0

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

WETHERBY
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
5,052.0

1

TAX BASE FOR PURPOSE OF CALCULATING COUNCIL TAX 2022/23
CALCULATION FOR THE PARISH OF:

WOTHERSOME

TAX BASE = A x B
(Formula 1)

Where "A" equals total of relevant amounts as calculated below
and "B" is the authority's estimation of its collection rate for the year

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH
BAND = ((H-Q+ E+J) -Z) x (F/G)
(Formula 2)
(paragraph 4 (1) of the legislation)

Where "H" is the number of chargeable dwellings on the relevant day
and "Q" is a factor to take account of the discounts to which the amount of council tax payable was
subject on the relevant day
and "E" is a factor to take account of the premiums, if any, to which the amount of council tax payable
was subject on the relevant day
and "J" is the amount of any adjustment in respect of changes in the number of chargeable dwellings
or discounts calculated
and "Z" is the total amount that the authority estimates will be applied in accordance with
the council tax reduction scheme in relation to the band
and "F" is the relevant proportion applicable to each band
and "G" is the relevant proportion applicable to band D
BAND
A (5/9)

Dwellings in valuation list
Less Exempt dwellings

BAND
A

BAND
B

BAND
C

BAND
D

BAND
E

BAND
F

BAND
G

BAND
H

TOTAL

Note

Page 74

= "H" in formula 2

0
0
0

1
0
1

2
0
2

4
0
4

0
0
0

1
0
1

0
0
0

2
0
2

0
0
0

10
0
10

1
1

Total discounts

= "Q" in formula 2

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

1

Total Premiums

= "E" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Additions less Reductions

= "J" in formula 2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

Reduction Scheme

= "Z" in formula 2

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

3

Proportion for relevant Band
Proportion for Band D

= "F" in formula 2
= "G" in formula 2

5
9

6
9

7
9

8
9

9
9

11
9

13
9

15
9

18
9

0.0

0.5

0.6

3.1

0.0

1.2

0.0

3.3

0.0

RELEVANT AMOUNT FOR EACH BAND

2
2

TOTAL RELEVANT AMOUNTS

= "A" in formula 1

8.7

4

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE

= "B" in formula 1

99.0%

5

UNADJUSTED TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX: ("A" x "B")

8.6

Addition by reference to payments from Secretary of State for Defence for Class O exempt properties (SI 1992/2943)
TAX BASE FOR CALCULATION OF TAX FOR:
Notes:

WOTHERSOME
1
2
3
4
5

From Valuation List / Council Tax records on 30 November 2020
Laid down in the legislation
Estimated
Sum of result of formula 2 for each band
As for the District as a whole (legal requirement)

0
8.6

1

Appendix 3
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
• the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
• whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has
already been considered, and
• whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate: Resources & Housing

Service area: Corporate Financial
Management

Lead person: R. Colley

Contact number: 0113 3789380

1. Title:
Is this a:
x

Calculation of the Council Tax and Business Rates Tax Bases for
2022/23

Strategy / Policy

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify
2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
The calculation of the Council Tax and Business Rates tax bases for 2022/23.

EDCI Screening

Template updated October 2012

Page 75

1

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or
the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a greater/lesser
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and any other relevant
characteristics (for example socio-economic status, social class, income, unemployment,
residential location or family background and education or skills levels).
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
• Advancing equality of opportunity
• Fostering good relations

Yes

No






If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
• Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
• Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.

EDCI Screening

Template updated October 2012

Page 76

2

4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
• How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)

• Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)

• Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)

EDCI Screening

Template updated October 2012

Page 77

3

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Naomi Eastwood
Head of Finance –
23rd December 2020
Strategy
7. Publishing
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to equality and diversity
has been given. If you are not carrying out an independent impact assessment the
screening document will need to be published.
If this screening relates to a Key Delegated Decision, Executive Board, full Council or
a Significant Operational Decision a copy should be emailed to Corporate Governance
and will be published along with the relevant report.
A copy of all other screenings should be sent to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk. For record
keeping purposes it will be kept on file (but not published).
Date screening completed
If relates to a Key Decision - date sent to
Corporate Governance
Any other decision – date sent to Equality Team
(equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk)

EDCI Screening

23rd December 2020
23rd December 2020

Template updated October 2012

Page 78

4

Agenda Item 6
Report author: Victoria Bradshaw
Tel: 0113 37 88540

Procurement of External Auditor
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: Chief Officer Financial Services
Report to: Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions
 The Council’s current external auditor is Grant Thornton who were appointed following the
Council’s decision on the 22nd February 2017 to opt into a sector led procurement via Public
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Limited. Their appointment covers the audit of the
Council’s statutory accounts for financial years 2018/19 to 2022/23. The Council now
needs to make the decision on how it will appoint external auditors for accounting periods
2023/24 onwards. External Auditors will need to be appointed for the accounting period
2023/24 by the statutory deadline of 31st December 2022.


This report sets out the proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for the
statutory financial accounts for the five year period from 2023/24.



As well as undertaking the statutory annual audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts, the
external auditor contributes towards providing the assurance that the Council has
established an effective financial control environment including robust arrangements for
strategic financial planning combined with effective financial management and control.



The Best Council Plan is the Council’s current strategic plan which sets out its ambitions,
outcomes and priorities for the City of Leeds and for the Local Authority. The Best Council
Plan can only be delivered through a sound understanding of the organisation’s longer-term
financial sustainability, which enables decisions to be made that balance the resource
implications of the Council’s policies against financial constraints. This is the primary
purpose of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the external auditor contributes
by providing the assurance that the Council has a robust financial framework for managing
the annual budget and has realistic plans to ensure that in future years its financial position
is robust, resilient, sustainable and affordable.

Page 79

Recommendation
a) As recommended by Corporate Governance and Audit committee at its meeting on the 26th
November 2021, and based on the evaluation of the advantages and disadvantages of the
three options, that Council accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into
the sector led option for the appointment of external auditors from 2023/24.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1 The appointment period for the Council’s current external auditor services expires after the
2022/23 financial year. Under the Local Government Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (“the
Act”) the Council is required to secure the appointment of an auditor to audit its accounts for
each financial year. In doing so the Council has three options;


To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in the Act.



To act jointly with other local authorities to procure an auditor following the procedures in
the Act.



To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body designated
by the Secretary of State as the “appointing person”. The body currently designated for
this role is Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA).

2 After consideration of the three options it is concluded that the sector wide procurement
conducted by PSAA will produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the Council
than a procurement undertaken locally because:


Collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual authorities
compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements;



if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the Council/Authority will need
to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent members
to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of an audit contract;



it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered auditor - there
are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local procurement would be drawing from
the same limited supply of auditor resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and



supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a continuing and
sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term.

3 The Council needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form specified by PSAA by
the close of the opt-in period (11th March 2022).
4 Whilst the terms of reference of Corporate Governance and Audit Committee include the
consideration of the Council’s arrangements relating to external audit requirements, Regulation
19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Persons) Regulations 2015 requires the decision to opt into
this procurement must be made by a meeting of the Council.
5 On the 26th November Corporate Governance and Audit Committee considered the three
procurement options and agreed that it would recommend to Full Council that the Council
accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector led option for the
appointment of external auditors from 2023/24.

Page 80

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☐ Yes

☒ No

6 To opt into the PSAA procurement process for an external auditor when the current contract
expires in 2022/23.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
7 Both the Deputy Leader/ Executive Member for Resources and the Director of Resources have
been consulted and support the recommendation

What are the resource implications?
8 The Council’s proposed external audit fee for 2020/21 is £275.6k. This current external audit
fee which is competitive was derived from the previous PSAA procurement exercise and it is not
anticipated that this process will deliver further savings. In fact there is every likelihood that
external fees will increase from this current budgeted amount.
9 Under the PSAA procurement option there will not be a fee to join the sector-led arrangements.
The audit fees that opted-in bodies will be charged will cover the costs to PSAA of appointing
auditors and managing the arrangements. Audit fees achieved through large contracts should
be lower than the costs that individual authorities will be able to negotiate. The fee for the audit
of a body that opts into the sector-led procurement will reflect the size, audit risk and complexity
of the work required. The PSAA have established a system for setting the fee which allocates
audit costs across all opted-in authorities based on these characteristics. As a not-for-profit
organisation, PSAA will be able to return any surpluses to opted-in authorities after all costs
have been met.
10 By opting into the PSAA led procurement the Council will avoid the costs of a local procurement
and management of a contract and also the requirement to set up an auditor panel with
independent members.
What are the legal implications?
11 Under the Local Government Audit and Accountability Act 2014 the Council is required to
appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.
12 Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that a decision
to opt in to the national appointment scheme must be made by a meeting of the Council.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
13 The Council must appoint its external auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later
than the 31st December in the preceding financial year. Therefore the Council must have
appointed its next external auditor by 31st December 2022. If it does not do so then the
Secretary of State can either appoint an auditor on the Council’s behalf or direct it to appoint a
particular auditor.
14 Opting into the sector wide procurement led by PSAA will ensure that the Council meets these
statutory requirements. It also likely that this option will reduce the risks to the Council in terms
of alleviating the need to manage a local procurement exercise and set up a local auditor panel
Page 81

and will be the most financially favourable in terms of the of the cost of the procurement
exercise and the level of audit fee.
Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

15 Supporting the Best Council Plan – the approved Medium Term Financial Strategy recognises
the Council’s ambition to be the best city by being a strong economy and a compassionate city
as well as achieving it best City priorities. Financial Services have a key role to play in this
around supporting the Council to realise its ambitions. As well as there being the continued
focus upon value for money, the approved budget means that the Council can target its
resources to drive inclusive economic growth, promote health and wellbeing, tackle deprivation
and other deep-rooted challenges to improve the quality of life for our residents.
16 The role of external audit is to provide the assurance to Councillors and the citizens of Leeds
that the annual statement of accounts give a true and fair view at the end of each financial year,
that they have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act.
17 In addition the external auditors give their opinion as to whether the Council has proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources .
Ensuring that the Council has appropriate financial management systems and procedures in
place is clearly a key aspect in providing assurance, albeit not comprehensive, hat money is
being spent wisely.

Options, timescales and measuring success
What other options were considered?
18 The options for appointing local auditors are a) to undertake an individual procurement and
appointment exercise, b) to undertake a joint procurement and appointing exercise with other
Local Authorities and c) join a sector led body arrangement as the Council did in 2018. In
respect of that last option, the Council will need to ‘opt in’ to the sector led body arrangement by
11th March 2022 having firstly obtained Full Council approval to do so. (A requirement of the
Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015).
19 The scope of external audit work is specified nationally by the National Audit Office in their
Code of Audit Practice. Not all firms are eligible to compete for the work as they need to be
registered with a Registered Supervising Body approved by the Financial Reporting Council. It
is unlikely that small local firms will meet the eligibility criteria to undertake the work. Given the
complexity of Local Authority audit work, it is envisaged that contracts would be awarded for a
minimum of 4 to 5 years.
20 For options a) and b) the Council would undertake the procurement exercise either itself (a) or
with its chosen partners (b) using an Auditor Panel. This will need to be done in accordance
with guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).
The membership of the Audit Panel must be wholly or have a majority of independent
members. Independent members for this purpose are independent appointees; this excludes
current and former elected members (or officers) and their close families and friends.
Therefore, elected members would not have a majority input to the selection and appointment
process. Independent members of the Audit Committee may be eligible but this would need to
be confirmed. If the Council decided to join with other authorities to establish a joint Auditor
Panel, this would again need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent members
with legal advice needed on the exact constitution, depending on the Councils involved.
Page 82

Option A:

Undertaking an individual auditor procurement and appointment

21 Advantages of this route include having local input to the decision as panel members could be
appointed locally. However, recruitment and servicing of the required Audit Panel, running the
bidding exercise and negotiating the contract would be time consuming and costly to the
Council. In addition, the Council would not be able to take advantage of reduced audit fees and
economies of scale that may be available through joint or national procurement contracts. The
council would also be procuring in what is a very challenging market currently.
22 Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded in 2017. At
that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few changes in audit
requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies
eligible opted into the national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The
resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018.
23 During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to questioning
about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four independent reviews were
commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s review of the Financial Reporting Council
(FRC), the audit regulator; the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir
Donald Brydon’s review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review
of local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now under
consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant reforms will follow. A new
audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and arrangements for system leadership in local
audit are to be introduced. Further change will follow as other recommendations are implemented.
24 The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, measurable
improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for audit firms to ensure full
compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations in every audit they undertake. By the
time firms were conducting 2018/19 local audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in
place to respond to a more focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary
improvements in audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work
to gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, posing a threat
to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for publication of audited
accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of the FRC’s drive to improve audit
quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. As a result, many more fee variation claims
have been needed than in prior years.
25 This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention challenges, the
complexity of local government financial statements and increasing levels of technical challenges
as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new or enhanced income streams to help fund
services for local people. These challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with
Covid-19 creating further significant pressure for finance and audit teams.
26 None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges have played out
in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing responses to tender invitations have
been experienced during the past two years.
Option B: Undertaking a joint audit procurement and appointing exercise with other
Local Authorities
27 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 enables the Council to join other local authorities in
setting up an Auditor Panel. Advantages of this approach include sharing the cost of setting up
the panel, running the procurement process and negotiating contacts across a number of
Page 83

authorities. It may also bring opportunity for negotiating economies of scale from a combined
contract value.
28 Disadvantages of this approach might include frustrations in the choice of auditor available.
Accountancy and Audit firms often complete non audit work for Local Authorities (e.g.,
consultancy/ advisory work) which may limit firms who are appointable by a joint process due to
independence issues. Should the firm selected be conflicted with Leeds City Council in any way
then the Council would then need to make a separate appointment.
29 The availability of this option to the Council will also depend on the extent to which the other Local
Authorities prefer to use either option A or C in preference to this.
30 The comments above in Option A about the state of the current market for the appointment of
external auditors and the challenge faced in addressing these also apply to Option B.
Option C: To opt into the Sector Led Arrangement operated by Public Sector Audit and
Appointments Ltd (PSAA Ltd)
31 In July 2016, the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local Government specified PSAA Ltd
as an appointing person for principal local government and police bodies for audits from 2018/19, under
the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Local Audit (Appointing Person)
Regulations 2015. PSAA Ltd has a responsibility for:








appointing auditors to all relevant authorities;
setting scales of fees, and charging fees, for the audit of accounts of relevant authorities
and consulting with relevant parties in relation to those scales of fees;
ensuring effective management of contracts with audit firms for the delivery of consistent,
quality and effective audit services to relevant authorities;
ensuring that public money continues to be properly accounted for and protected;
being financially responsible having regard to the efficiency of operating costs and
transparently safeguarding fees charged to audited bodies; and
leading its people as a good employer, ensuring that it continues to be fit-for-purpose;
motivating and supporting its staff; and communicating with them in an open, honest and
timely way.

32 The PSAA will appoint the external auditors for all opted in bodies for a period of 5 years with
an option to extend to for a further two years by mutual agreement.
33 Advantages of this approach include a fully independent approach to appointment of the
external auditors and saving time and resources by avoiding the need for setting up
independent audit panels and undertaking procurement processes. The costs of a procurement
and appointing exercise would be shared across participating councils. A national exercise
offering large contract values may also encourage participating firms to offer more realistic
prices in what is currently a challenging market. Independence issues would be managed by
PSAA Ltd who would have a number of contracted firms to call on.
34 The main disadvantage to this approach is the inability to influence the appointment and the
procurement negotiations to reflect the Council’s approach to procurement. To remain viable
and place itself well in terms of negotiating position, PSAA Ltd will need to secure opt in from a
good number of Councils. A consultation by PSAA Ltd asked for an indication of whether
Councils would opt into the scheme. 57% of eligible bodies answered ‘Yes’ with a further 34%
answering ‘Maybe’ which suggests this is not an issue.
35 PSAA Ltd have undertaken a consultation of authorities who opted into the first appointment
period arrangements (covering the audit of accounting periods 2018/19 – 2022/23) to learn and
Page 84

enhance arrangement going forward. Their findings are published and include a commitment to
further enhance arrangements related to monitoring quality of service, delays in audits and
auditors staffing issues, contract management and value for money in fee setting.

How will success be measured?
36 That an external auditor is appointed within statutory deadline of the 31st December 2022 and
the assurance that the costs associated with the requirement to appoint an external auditor
represent the best Value for Money for the Council.
What is the timetable for implementation?
37 The PSAA have advised an expected timetable as follows for the appointment process:







September 2021 – Councils receive their invitation to opt into the Sector Led
arrangement.
11th March 2022 – Deadline for formal ‘Opt in’ from Councils. (therefore Full Council
approval to ‘opt in’ will be required before this date)
Spring/Summer 2022 – Process for making individual appointments for opted in LA’s will
be published
August 2022 – Procurement of Audit Services will have been completed
Autumn 2022 – Consultation with opted in LA’s on proposed auditor appointments
31st December 2022 – Confirmation of appointed auditor received.

Appendices
38 None
Background papers
39 None

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Report author: Andy Hodson
Tel: 0113 37 88660

Scrutiny Annual Report 2020 to 2021
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: City Solicitor
Report to: Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution requires that the Council’s Scrutiny Officer reports to
Council annually about how the authority has carried out its overview and scrutiny functions.
The 2020/2021 Annual Report is appended.



The Annual Report illustrates those areas of work undertaken by Scrutiny which directly
contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Best Council Plan; as detailed within the schedule
included within this report.



The 2020/2021 report also sets out the role of scrutiny in supporting Leeds City Council’s
Covid-19 pandemic response and recovery period.

Recommendations
a) Council is asked to receive and note the Annual Report 2020/2021.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

This report presents to Council the Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/2021. It also provides
opportunity to further update members on the role of scrutiny in the response to, and
subsequent recovery from, the Covid-19 pandemic.

2

The 2020/2021 Annual Report is being considered later in the municipal cycle than
comparable reports in previous years given the unprecedented circumstances of recent
months. With public meetings halted during the initial period of response to the Covid-19
pandemic it was not possible for the Scrutiny Annual Report to be considered by full
Council in the typical cyclical manner.

3

Given that context for the timing of this report to Council, the 2020/21 report also outlines
the role of scrutiny during the initial pandemic response period and on-going activity during
the first three months of the new municipal year.

Page 87

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

4

☐ Yes

☐No

The attached Annual Report for 2020/2021 highlights the work originated by Scrutiny during
the last Municipal Year and reflects on the monitoring of past scrutiny activity to ensure
agreed recommendations stay on track.

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
5

The Scrutiny Annual Report for 2020/2021 was produced by the Head of Democratic
Services (designated as the proper officer for Scrutiny) in consultation with Scrutiny Chairs
and the Executive Board Member for Resources.

What are the resource implications?
6

There are no specific resource implications to this paper.

What are the legal implications?
7

This report has no specific legal implications.

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
8

There are no risk management implications relevant to this report.

Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth
9

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☒ Climate Emergency

The annual report illustrates those areas of work undertaken by Scrutiny which directly
contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Best Council Plan. The work programmes of all
the Scrutiny Boards reference all three of the Council’s key pillars.

Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
10 This report is intended to meet the requirement of Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution that
the Council’s Scrutiny Officer reports to Council annually about how the authority has
carried out its overview and scrutiny functions.
b) How will success be measured?
11 Members of Council are asked to note the summary of the work carried out by the Boards
in 2020/21 as set out in the Annual Report.
c) What is the timetable for implementation?
12 This is a factual report providing an overview of the work of the Council’s scrutiny function
for 2020/2021 and as such there are no implementation requirements.

Page 88

Appendices
13 The Scrutiny Annual Report is appended.
Background papers
14 None.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Annual Report
2020 - 2021

Page 91

Contents
PAGE
1

Introduction
Summary of Work 2020/2021

2-4

Highlights and Achievements

5-9

Page 92

Introduction

This Annual Report provides a general summary of the work undertaken by the scrutiny
function in Leeds during the 2020/2021 Municipal Year as well as setting out the key
highlights and achievements of the council’s individual Scrutiny Boards.
The council’s five Scrutiny Boards have continued to target their resources on priority areas
aimed at driving forward the council’s ambitions and making a real difference to the people of
Leeds. Across the five Boards 98 work items were considered. 61 of the Council’s 99
Members sit on Scrutiny Boards, supported by 9 co-optees.
The Best Council Plan is the council’s strategic plan, setting out the authority’s ambitions and
priorities for both the city (working in partnership) and the organisation. An updated Best
Council Plan 2020-2025 was launched in September 2020, placing emphasis on the role of
the Council’s priorities in establishing a ‘new normal’ for life in Leeds after COVID-19.
As well as having a key role in influencing the content of the Best Council Plan, Scrutiny plays
a fundamental part in promoting efficient and effective partnership working between the
Council and stakeholders to meet the Best Council Plan outcomes. This Annual Report
therefore illustrates how the work of Scrutiny has particularly contributed towards achieving
the key outcomes set out within the Council’s Best Council Plan.
This Annual Report also reflects on the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic emergency, which
led to the cancellation of meetings March to June 2020, the cancellation of the May 2020
local elections and the Annual Council Meeting, with executive and scrutiny arrangements
‘rolling on’ into the 2020/2021 Municipal Year. In February 2021, as the leadership
arrangements for Leeds Council changed, two new Scrutiny Board Chairs were appointed.
Leeds remains committed to providing dedicated officer support to the scrutiny function and
while the Council’s ‘Vision for Scrutiny’ agreement acknowledges that resources to support
the Scrutiny function are, like all other Council functions, under considerable pressure, there
has been continued effort to maximise available resources and prioritise areas of work that
will add value towards the delivery of the Best Council Plan and other strategic policy drivers.

1
Page 93

Summary of work 2020/2021
This section summarises the type of work undertaken by the Scrutiny Boards1 during the
2020/21 municipal year (June 2020 to May 2021), as well as looking at trends over the last
3 years.

25 Additional

44 Formal Scrutiny Board
Meetings

Working Groups

PROVIDING SUPPORT AND CHALLENGE FOR THE FOLLOWING OUTPUTS

19

20

8

Pre-Decision
Scrutiny
Work Items

Performance
Monitoring
Work Items

42

Recommendation
Tracking
Work Items

Policy/Service
Review
Work Items

PROPORTION OF WORKLOAD (%)

Work Item Trends
2018/19
to 2020/21
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
50
40
30
20
10

18 15 19

40 33 20

Pre-decision

Performance
monitoring

12 17 8

30 40 42

0
Recommendation Policy/Service review
tracking
WORK ITEM TYPE

2

1

This does not include the work of the Tenant Scrutiny Board as the responsibility for this function does not fall within Democratic Services.

Page 94

Collaborative working across the Scrutiny Boards
BUDGET
All Scrutiny Boards are consulted annually on the Council’s initial budget proposals and
any proposed changes to the Best Council Plan prior to formal approval. Observations
and recommendations are reported back to the Council’s Executive Board as one
composite report.
This year, Scrutiny undertook valuable early engagement on the Councils Budget
proposals, reviewing three sets of budget savings proposals for 2021/22 throughout
September, October and November 2020 and providing a composite Scrutiny Statement
summarising feedback from this first phase of consultation. The December Executive
Board considered additional potential savings and a further Phase 2 consultation was
conducted with the Scrutiny Boards during January 2021 with feedback on the proposals
provided to the February 2021 Executive Board meeting.
All Scrutiny Boards welcomed the opportunity to engage in the budget setting process
earlier in the municipal year and are keen that such consultation continues in future and
is not limited to the unprecedented circumstances of 2020/21. Moving forward, Scrutiny
Members will maintain a degree of oversight of the budget delivery process, alongside
the Executive Board, as well as continuing to monitor and review any consequential
service outcomes and impacts on citizens within the remits of each individual board
during the coming municipal year.
RESPONDING TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
All Scrutiny Board meetings were held as remote meetings under the Regulations that
ceased on 6th May 2021. In those initial months the scrutiny function faced three
challenges –




the stability of the meeting platform and reliance on home wi-fi connectivity;
striking a balance between enabling members to scrutinise the impact of the
pandemic on Leeds’ citizens and Council services while also minimising reporting
pressures on those working to provide the vital frontline pandemic response; and
the sustainability of the staffing levels required to support remote meetings as the
organisation returned to ‘business as usual.’

The 2020-21 Municipal Year has, as well as highlighting the resilience and flexibility of
the scrutiny function, delivered some unexpected benefits –



webcasting remotely held meetings has improved public accessibility and
engagement; we recorded 3201 views of webcast Board meetings
we have been told that remote meetings have made attendance by colleagues
and partners from external organisations, the Third and Voluntary Sectors easier;
and affording the Scrutiny Members the opportunity of meeting a wider range of
participants - ensuring the right people with the right knowledge are available to
share their experience at the right time.

3
Page 95

Throughout the year, Scrutiny Boards continued to focus on the COVID-19 pandemic,
with a view to supporting a robust and resilient recovery, highlights included:





Tackling health inequalities exacerbated during the pandemic.
The impact on existing winter pressures across the health and care system.
Support provided to care homes.
The importance of the Mental Health Service.






Addressing exam anxiety and delivering a quality remote learning offer.
The impact on child and adolescent mental health.
Recovery planning of local schools, including staff and pupil welfare needs.
Support measures to protect the most vulnerable children.

 The Voluntary and Third Sector response, including the infrastructure
required to successfully support and enable locally led initiatives
 The increased demand across all Community Care Hubs
 The impact on the Local Welfare Support Scheme (LWSS)
 The work and role of Neighbourhood Networks.
 Transport/Traffic and air quality
 Delivery of business support and the administration of business grants
 Re-energising city and district centres to support economic recovery
 Employment & Skills.
 Business Continuity during the Covid-19 pandemic
 How the Council has developed new ways of working and the approach to
home and agile working moving forwards
 Remodelling the estate to ensure it supports agile working and meets service
delivery requirements
 Collection rates for both Council Tax and Business rates.

Regional Health Scrutiny
The West Yorkshire and Harrogate Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(JHOSC) maintains oversight arrangements for the developing West Yorkshire and
Harrogate Health and Care Partnership across a range of programme areas and other
matters. The support resource for the JHOSC moved to the remit of our colleagues at
Calderdale Council with the Chair of Leeds Scrutiny Board Adults, Health and Active
Lifestyles continuing as Chair until February 2021. The JHOSC will appoint a new Chair
from its membership at its first meeting of 2021/22. The new arrangements have
cemented support for the delivery of regional joint health scrutiny arrangements –
improving collaboration between and across local authority health scrutiny functions
across West Yorkshire and Harrogate. This year the programme areas and other matters
considered by the JHOSC included:





Coronavirus pandemic response, recovery and Vaccination Programme
Assessment and Treatment Units (ATU’s)
Update on the Black Asian and Minority Ethnic Commission Review
Overview of proposed changes to vascular care through the North and West
Yorkshire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee
 Improving Population Health Inequalities
 Nightingale Hospital, Harrogate
The JHOSC also held two successful workshops with our Health and Care Partnership
colleagues – in September the Kings Fund facilitated a peer review workshop on the
JHOSC/HCP collaborative approach and in March the JHOSC and HCP discussed the
Department of Health and Social Care's legislative proposals for a Health and Care Bill –
“Integration and Innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all”.
Moving forward, the Authority will continue to participate in the function of the Joint
Committee as the JHOSC and HCP continue to work alongside each other as the
proposals for a new Integrated Care System for West Yorkshire develop.
4
Page 96

4

Page 97

Highlights and Achievements
Topic Area

Focusing on services for
adults and public health
services to monitor
progress towards
improving health,
lifestyles and quality of
care across the city; and
providing oversight of
service integration and
partnership working
within and between
health bodies. The Board
also oversees the sport
and active lifestyle
related functions and
activity across the city.

Associated BCP Outcome(s)

1. Adult Mental Health
Services



Engaging with health partners, the Board focused on the current impacts of
Covid-19 on mental health services across city, as well as considering
future implications linked to the delivery of the existing Leeds Mental
Health Strategy 2020-2025.




Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives
Live with dignity and stay
independent for as long as possible

2. Active Leeds Service



Reviewing the work of the Active Leeds Service, including an update on
Get Set Leeds and Physical Activity Ambition work; and specifically
focusing on work throughout the pandemic in terms of promoting physical
activity such as development of the Healthy at Home Website and an app
to deliver livestreaming classes, keeping customers engaged and staff
development; as well as looking ahead to opportunities to use Physical
Activity to aid recovery post COVID-19.




Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives
Live with dignity and stay
independent for as long as possible
Making better use of resources and
ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.



3. Hearing and Balance
Centre



Responding to matters of interest is at the heart of scrutiny, and this year
the Board received an update on proposals to temporarily relocate the
earing and Balance Centre to Seacroft Hospital whilst works to create a
Hospital for the Future on the LGI site will impact on delivery of the service
from the existing Brotherton Wing hub. The Board heard the patient
engagement undertaken had informed the relocation proposal and noted
the temporary Unit will open in April 2021, with the Service retaining the
Wharfedale Hospital spoke and other outreach services. The Board
welcomed the undertaking that, should this position need to change then
further engagement work with the Scrutiny Board and with patients would
be undertaken by the Trust; and additionally that consideration would be
given to explore provision of an outreach clinic in the South of the city.




Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives
Live with dignity and stay
independent for as long as possible
Working as a system to ensure
people get the right care, from the
right people in the right place

4. Women’s Health in
Leeds



The March Board was timetabled to consider women’s health – the Board
recognising recent events that had highlighted the need for greater focus
on women’s safety and wellbeing. A range of health partners contributed to
the session and discussed health outcomes for women in the city and how
their experiences have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
particularly for black and minority ethnic groups. The Board considered
specific issues including addressing health inequality through targeted
intervention; Domestic Violence; endometriosis and considered the
opportunity for Leeds City Council to join other organisations and City
Councils to sign up to the Inequalities in Health Alliance.




Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives
Live with dignity and stay
independent for as long as possible
Working as a system to ensure
people get the right care, from the
right people in the right place
Reducing health inequalities and
improving the health of the poorest
the fastest

Page 98

Chair –
Councillor H Hayden
(until Feb 2021)
Councillor A MarshallKatung (from February
2021)

Added Value/Impact




Page 99

5

Highlights and Achievements
Topic Area

Added Value/Impact

1. Inquiry into Exclusions,
Elective Home Education
and Off-Rolling



2. Future in Mind – Leeds
Strategy Refresh



Chair –
Councillor A Lamb

Page 100

Focusing on services
affecting the lives of
children and families
across the city to
monitor progress
towards becoming a
child friendly city, putting
children first
and developing active
citizens.

3. Child Poverty

4. Addressing the
immediate and long- term
impacts of Covid-19 on
children and young
people.





Associated BCP Outcome(s)

The Board had agreed to pause its inquiry whilst focusing its attention on
how the Council and its partners support all children and their families
during the pandemic. However, the research findings of the Royal
Society for the encouragement of Arts, Manufactures and Commerce
(RSA) on school exclusions had been shared with the Board, which
included Leeds City Council and local schools as key partners. The
Board also held an evidence session on alternative education provision
and gave a commitment to resume its ongoing inquiry work in 2021/22.



In November 2020, the Board considered a new 5-year “Future In Mind”
strategic plan created to continue the city’s journey to improve the mental
health and wellbeing of children and young people in the city. This
provided an opportunity for the Board to build on work undertaken in
2019; to review the draft priorities proposed for the refreshed strategy
and confirm the Board’s endorsement of the 7 priority areas identified as
part of the “Future In Mind” Strategy refresh.




The pandemic brought child poverty starkly into focus and the Board
considered an update to “Thriving: The Child Poverty Strategy for Leeds”
which was first launched in 2019. In recognising that experience of
poverty has a significant correlation to poorer outcomes across a wide
range of life indicators; the Board supported the partnership approach
and strategic framework set out in the Strategy which seeks to ensure
that poverty presents no barriers for children and young people, and
mitigates the impact of poverty whilst working as a city to improve the
structures around people who experience, or are at risk of, poverty.



The Board actively monitored and helped to inform some of the
immediate responses needed during the pandemic and gave particular
attention to the impact that lost learning and the uncertainty of future
pupil assessments had on pupils and teachers. In January the Board
discussed the national guidance on pupil assessments and relayed its
concerns in writing to the Secretary of State for Education and Ofqual,
which were echoed as part of a response to the DfE/Ofqual public
consultation on how GCSE, AS and A level grades should be awarded.
In March 2021, the Board then began to explore the long-term impacts of
Covid-19 and sought the views of a range of experts and young people,
with the intention of reporting on its findings in the new municipal year.














Do well at all levels of learning and
have the skills they need for life.
Be safe and feel safe.
Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives.

Be safe and feel safe.
Making better use of resources and
ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.
Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives.

Do well at all levels of learning and
have the skills they need for life.
Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives.
Making better use of resources and
ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.

Do well at all levels of learning and
have the skills they need for life.
Enjoy happy, healthy, active lives.
Making better use of resources and
ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.

Page 101

6

Highlights and Achievements
Topic Area
1. Supporting long term
resilience in the Third
Sector.

Added Value/Impact


In July 2020 the Board heard powerful evidence relating to the
voluntary sector response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Members
explored how the lessons learned from that experience could inform the
way in which the Council works with the third sector to ensure sector
resilience in the longer term. The Board returned to the issue in
November 2020, focusing particular attention on the work of the
Community Care Voluntary Hubs in local neighbourhoods.

Associated BCP Outcome(s)





2. River Cleanliness



Chair –
Councillor B Anderson

Page 102

Focusing on services and
issues affecting the lives
of citizens living and
working in the council’s
neighbourhoods to
monitor progress as a
citizen focused city,
prioritising environmental
sustainability.

3. Reducing poverty,
improving financial
inclusion and supporting
safe communities.

4. Carbon Reduction and Fuel
Poverty



In response to community concerns about river cleanliness, the Board
brought partners together to explore the health and environmental
impacts of river pollution. Particular consideration was given to the
practice of discharging raw sewage into local rivers and the Board
made a number of recommendations relating to the challenges of
complex landownership, environmental standards and changing
expectations in relation to the approach to local environments.



Examining sustainable, collaborative interventions designed to address
issues of financial exclusion and poverty continues to eb a long-term
priority for the Board. Members were particularly concerned this year to
explore the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic on vulnerable
citizens and to understand how the universal credit system responded
to the increasing numbers of people in need of financial support. The
Board has also been consulted about improving ways of working within
Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team to improve customer experience.



 Since the Council’s declaration of a climate emergency in 2019 there
has been increased focus by the Board on the climate implications of a
range of activities, services and strategies. The Board has engaged with
Climate Emergency Advisory Committee and has explored in detail work
to improve energy efficiency and carbon reduction in both Council
Housing stock and the Private Rented Sector. Similarly, the Board has
maintained its ongoing challenge in relation to tackling fuel poverty in
the city.








Keeping people safe from harm &
protecting the most vulnerable.
Helping people out of financial
hardship.
Being responsive to local needs,
building thriving, resilient
communities.
Promoting community respect
and resilience.

Improving air quality, reducing
pollution and noise; and
Improving the resilience of the
city’s infrastructure and the
natural environment, reducing
flooding and other risks from
future climate change

Helping people out of financial
hardship
Keeping people safe from harm,
protecting the most vulnerable
Targeting interventions to tackle
poverty in priority neighbourhoods

Improving energy performance in
homes, reducing fuel poverty

Page 103

7

Highlights and Achievements
Topic Area

Added Value/Impact

1. Digital Inclusion and
Smart City infrastructure

 The Board has had a long standing focus on Digital Inclusion, regularly
supporting and reinforcing the importance of the Smart Cities and 100%
Digital programmes and making these a Council priority. Members examined
evidence of how innovative interventions had successfully supported those
at risk of digital exclusion, particularly during the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Board concluded that the pandemic challenges had confirmed the vital
importance of the coordinating, connecting and enabling role of the 100%
Digital Leeds team and recommended that this be sustained and
strengthened.



Strengthening digital and data
‘Smart City’ infrastructure and
increasing digital inclusion

2. Inclusive Growth

 Inclusive Growth is a ‘golden thread’ running through the Board’s work
programme. The Board has explored how the Council’s commitment to
delivering Inclusive Growth can aid the city’s recovery from the coronavirus
pandemic and how this can be measured. Opportunities to deliver good
quality employment in new sectors was an area of particular interest. The
potential economic impact of devolution and the West Yorkshire Economic
Recovery Plan were also examined.



Supporting the city’s economic
recovery from COVID-19 and
building longer-term economic
resilience.
Supporting growth and
investment, helping everyone
benefit from the economy

3. Advancing Bus
Provision and improving
connectivity

 The importance of transport infrastructure to Inclusive Growth and the wider
city region’s Strategic Economic Plan has been an ongoing area of
investigation. Members engaged with the developing Connecting Leeds
Transport Strategy, explored the progress with the Leeds Public Transport
Investment Programme and brought partners together to explore proposals
for the transformation of the city’s bus networks.



Improving transport connections,
safety, reliability and affordability

4. Sustainable
Development & Housing
Mix

 Members explored the progress and challenges associated with delivering
‘local sustainability’ and regeneration, including consideration of the role of
Section 106 agreements, the Community Infrastructure Levy, and the
potential impact of the Government’s proposed changes to the planning
system. Progress towards previous recommendations relating to Housing
Mix was assessed. The Board also investigated the cumulative impact on
communities of delivering multiple small developments without sufficient
green space. This led to several recommendations being made to
Development Plans Panel ahead of DPP members considering the emerging
Local Plan Update.



Housing of the right quality, type,
tenure and affordability in the right
places

Chair –
Councillor P Truswell

Page 104

Focusing on
development and
infrastructure functions
and services to monitor
progress in relation to
transport and planning,
regeneration and
housing growth. The
Board also oversees
economic growth
functions and services to
monitor progress
towards being a strong
and compassionate city,
promoting opportunities
for access to learning,
skills and employment
for all.

Associated BCP Outcome(s)



8

Highlights and Achievements
Topic Area

Added Value/Impact

1. Agile Working and
Estate Realisation
Inquiry – Scrutiny
Inquiry



The Board undertook an inquiry to review how the Council is adapting to and
developing new ways of working in light of the pandemic whilst also
maintaining and improving council services. The Board focussed on staff wellbeing, staff consultation, staff development, the financial implications of
changes to the way the Council operates, technology and the provision of new
equipment to staff and the likely impact on the Council’s estate as it looks to
rationalise the estate to meet the ongoing financial challenge and make best
use of council owned office accommodation both now and in the future.

2. Welcome to Yorkshire



In accordance with its remit, the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board
undertook a review of the funding arrangements for WtY; including an
overview of the future plans for WtY given its new structure, leadership and in
response to the Coronavirus pandemic. This highlights the potential for
remote meetings to enhance the scope of scrutiny as James Mason CEO of
Welcome to Yorkshire was able to attend, lead the discussion and answer
questions.

3. Improving the
experience and
outcomes of Black,
Asian and Minority
Ethnic colleagues at
Leeds City Council



The Board reviewed the Council’s response to the call to action by the BAME
staff network, seeking to ensure that BAME colleagues are supported and are
treated equally when they work for the Council. This work naturally included
focus on the disproportionate impact of the pandemic on BAME colleagues
and communities and the Black Lives Matter movement that developed in
2020 and will continue to be a focus for the Board during the new Municipal
Year.

4. Budget Savings
Proposal



Chair –
Councillor M Harland
(until Feb 2021)
Councillor A Scopes
(from Feb 2021)

Page 105

Focusing on the
council’s central
strategic and regulatory
functions, including
financial services,
human resources, digital
and information services,
elections, registrars,
licensing, local land
charges and council tax
processing. The Board
also oversees cultural
related activities to
deliver the city’s cultural
ambitions.

Associated BCP Outcome(s)


Making better use of resources
and ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.



Making better use of resources
and ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.



Making better use of resources
and ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.
Be safe, feel safe




Throughout the year the Board has taken a keen interest in both the current
year (2020/21) financial position and the budget setting process for 2021/22.
There has been a focus on the impact of the pandemic on key income streams
to the Council and through budget working groups a more detailed and much
earlier focus on the budget setting process included detailed questions on the
‘business as usual’ approach and service review proposals contained in the
budget setting process.

Making better use of resources
and ensuring Leeds is an efficient
Council.

9

Scrutiny Annual Report 2020 - 2021
Published XX 2021
scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/scrutinyleeds

Page 106

11

Agenda Item 8
Report author: Rebecca Gilmour
Tel: 0113 37 82038

Youth Justice Plan 2021 - 24
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: The Director of Children & Families
Report to: Full Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐Yes ☒No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐Yes ☒No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions


This report provides the context to the requirement that the Leeds Youth Justice Plan 2021 - 24 is
formally adopted by full Council.



This Youth Justice Plan will contribute directly to the Best Council Plan (2020 – 25), specifically in
relation to the child friendly city and the safe, strong communities element, with its ambition to tackle
crime and anti-social behaviour and keep people safe from harm.

Recommendations
a) Council is recommended to approve and adopt the Youth Justice Plan 2021 – 24 as part of the
Budget and Policy Framework.

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

Local authorities have a legal duty under Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to produce
a Youth Justice Plan that shows how they will provide and fund youth justice services. The
completed Youth Justice Plan must be sent to the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales
(YJB) and published in accordance with the directions of the Secretary of State for Justice. This is
reinforced within the YJB’s terms and conditions of grant. This requirement is set out in the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and is included in the
council’s constitution.

2

A draft Youth Justice Plan 2021 – 24 was discussed by the Leeds Youth Justice Partnership Board
on February 10th, 2021 and approved on 19thJuly, 2021. The plan was submitted to the YJB in
order to meet terms and conditions of the Youth Justice Grant 2021/22 (totalling £1,321,446). Whilst
requiring submission by 30th June 2021, the YJB recognise that planning in the current context is
challenging and that youth justice plans are likely to be subject to regular review and amendment
and as such are ‘live’ documents.

3

Whilst statute requires the production of an annual plan, the YJB welcomes plans that cover more
than one year. Plans covering more than one year require an annual refresh and updating of key
information, particularly relating to finance, governance and key achievements from the previous
year.

Page 107

4

The Leeds Youth Justice Plan requires approval by full Council under the current constitution. The
production of a three-year plan, going to council every three years with annual updates to the Youth
Justice Board and Youth Justice Partnership Board in years two and three, is seen as the best
option in ensuring compliance with regulations and minimising the impact on the Youth Justice
Service and on full Council.

5

The Youth Justice Plan is consistent with the Safer, Stronger Communities Plan 2021 – 24 in that it
will contribute to the strategic priorities of keeping people safe from harm; preventing and reducing
offending and creating safer, stronger communities. A focus on children and young people at risk
and involved in the youth justice system will deliver on the ambitions stated in the Safer, Stronger
Communities Plan around early identification, prevention and intervention.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards Affected: All
☐Yes

Have ward members been consulted?

6

7

☒No

Leeds Youth Justice Plan 2021 -24 sets out our ambitions and priorities for the next three years,
including arrangements to ensure that we continue to deliver our successful Youth Justice
Partnership in the city. It provides the detail as to how Leeds Youth Justice Service intends to
deliver services to improve outcomes for children, families and communities through delivery of six
key priorities:


Reducing the number of children and young people entering or re-entering the criminal
justice system



Identifying and addressing racial inequality in the youth justice system and supporting
cultural cohesion



Doing the simple things better



Reducing serious youth violence



Attendance, achievement and attainment



Reducing custody and positive resettlement children and young people from custody

An equality, diversity, cohesion and integration screening has been completed, which identifies that
achieving the priorities identified in the plan would have a positive impact on equality characteristics
and promote strong and positive relationships between groups.

What consultation and engagement has taken place?
8

Consultation has taken place primarily through the multi-agency Youth Justice Partnership Board
which is the main forum for governance and oversight of the Youth Justice Service in Leeds. The
Youth Justice Partnership Board has good representation from all statutory partners and a range of
non-statutory partners to the YJS and includes the Lead Member for Children and Families.

9

The Youth Justice Plan was considered and approved by Scrutiny Board for Children and Families
on 13th September 2021, by the Executive Board on 17th November 2021 and was discussed and
endorsed by the Safer Leeds Executive on 22nd November 2021.

What are the resource implications?
10 There are no additional resource implications, and the plan will be delivered utilising existing
resource and multi-agency partnership work. Funding for Leeds Youth Justice Service is made up

Page 108

of contributions from statutory partners (NHS, West Yorkshire Police, the Probation Service, LCC);
the Youth Justice Board, the West Yorkshire Mayor and the West Yorkshire Violence Reduction
Unit.

What are the legal implications?
1

The Youth Justice Plan sits in the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework 4 1 (i) and is specified by
the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 2000 to require adoption by the full
Council. The development of the Plan is subject to the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules and has been presented to Scrutiny Board (Children & Families) as a matter of course. As
such the decision of Executive Board was not subject to call-in.

What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
2

Legislative changes, new youth crime trends, financial challenges and the social, health and
educational impact of the pandemic are key risks to the delivery of this plan. The Youth Justice
Partnership Board will respond flexibly and creatively to changes or emerging trends. The plan
itself will be refreshed annually with key information updated and will be reviewed by both the Youth
Justice Board for England and Wales and the Leeds Youth Justice Partnership Board. The next full
iteration of the plan will be brought to Council for adoption in 3 years.

Does this proposal support the council’s 3 Key Pillars?
☒Inclusive Growth
3

☒Health and Wellbeing

☐Climate Emergency

This plan will contribute to the inclusive growth ambition in the Best Council Plan by improving skills
for young people in order to help them reach their full potential. Our trauma informed, child-centred
approach will also support healthy lifestyles for our young people and our values are aligned to
those of our Child Friendly City.

Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
4

A one-year plan has been considered but rejected as a practical option, given the governance
processes as outlined above.

b) How will success be measured?
5

The plan includes six priorities with outcome measures, describing what success will look like.

c) What is the timetable for implementation?
6

Formal adoption by full Council in January 2022.

Appendices
7

Leeds Youth Justice Plan 2021 – 24.
Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and Integration Screening

Background papers
8

None.

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

Leeds Youth Justice Service
YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2021 – 24

Page

1. Introduction

3

2. Values and vision

3

3. Governance, leadership and partnership arrangements

6

4. Resources and services

7

5. Performance

8

6. Priorities

13

7. Workforce profile, learning and development needs

21

8. Response to the pandemic and recovery from COVID -19

23

9. Challenges and risks

24

10. Service improvement plan

26

11. Race and identity plan

34

Page 111

Chair’s forward
It is my great privilege to have assumed the role of chair of the Youth Justice Partnership and to
introduce our Youth Justice Plan setting out our ambitions for supporting children and young people
and preventing youth crime in the city.
This plan sets out our ambitions and priorities for the next three years, including arrangements to
ensure that we continue to deliver our successful Youth Justice Partnership in the city to achieve
improved outcomes for children.
At the time of setting out our plan, there has been a strengthening of our partnership with services
working effectively together in unprecedented times, rising to the challenges posed by the global
pandemic to ensure that we continue to maximise resources and support our children, young people,
families and communities.
The Leeds Youth Justice Service Partnership Board is a strong and broad collaboration of statutory, third
sector and elected members. We will ensure that our approach to young people who offend is driven by
child-first principles, restorative practice and on our ambition for Leeds to be a truly Child Friendly City.
Our plan demonstrates ambitious expectations for the way children should be treated and supported
when they come into contact with the justice system, our absolute focus on early intervention and
prevention and how our partnerships has the strength and depth to deliver on our priorities.

Julie Longworth
Deputy Director
Leeds Children and Families

Page 2 of 47

Page 112

1.

Introduction

Leeds Youth Justice Service (YJS) provides the functions of the statutory Youth Offending Team as set out
in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. We aim to be an excellent, innovative, learning organisation that
achieves the best outcomes for the children, young people, families and carers with whom we work, and
which develops and supports its staff to provide an outstanding service.
The strategic aim of the youth justice system is to prevent offending by children and young people as set
out in the Crime and Disorder act 1998. Leeds Youth Justice Service Partnership Board is responsible for
coordinating provision of youth justice services across the city, overseeing the Youth Justice Service (YJS)
which is our multi-agency service with representation from Her Majesty’s Probation Services, West
Yorkshire Police, Health Services, the Voluntary Sector and the Local Authority Children’s Services. We
aim to achieve this through the delivery of integrated services, based on child-first principles, which
ensure young people are safeguarded, the public and victims of crime are protected and those who enter
the criminal justice system are supported with robust safety planning and risk management
arrangements. Young people will be supported to reintegrate into their local communities and to engage
in positive activities. We are committed to a ‘Think Family’ approach and to working ‘with’ young people
alongside their families in order to achieve the very best results.
Our Youth Justice Plan in Leeds is complemented by, and contributes to, a number of key partnership
strategies in the city, including the Children and Young People’s Plan, the Best Council Plan, the Leeds
Safer, Stronger Communities Strategy, the West Yorkshire Police and Crime Plan, the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and the Future in Mind Strategy.
This Youth Justice Plan provides the detail as to how Leeds Youth Justice Service (YJS) Partnership Board
intends to deliver services to improve outcomes for young people, families and communities over the
next three years. Our last Youth Justice Plan covered the period April 2019 – April 2020. Preparation of
the new plan covering April 2020 to April 2021 was overtaken by the Covid 19 pandemic. In 2020, instead
of the traditional youth justice plan format, the Youth Justice Board (YJB) required the submission of a
Covid Recovery Plan, which detailed the challenges for Leeds Youth Justice Service posed by the
pandemic and the steps taken to address those challenges.
At the time of publishing this plan, Leeds Youth Justice Service was last inspected by HM Inspectorate of
Probation in June 2019, with the final inspection report published in early January 2020. The
inspectorate’s final judgement in that report was that overall we required improvement and since then
the service have undertaken a range of actions to address the recommendations set out in the inspection
report. A summary of the original inspection action plan, updated most recently in November 2021, is
available on p29.

2.

Values and vision

Leeds YJS Partnership Board actively promotes Child Friendly Leeds, striving to make Leeds the best city
for children and young people to grow up in; a place where children and young people: are safe from
harm; do well in learning and have the skills for life; choose healthy lifestyles; have fun growing up; and
are active citizens who feel they have voice and influence. We are committed to playing our part in
delivering on the priorities in the Children and Youth People’s Plan, focussing in particular on
improvement achievement and attainment for all; supporting young people to make good choices and
minimising risk taking behaviour and helping young people into adulthood, developing life skills and
being ready for work.
Our YJS continues to work with partners to ensure that we provide a high quality service to young people
and communities and maintain the levels of supervision, risk management and safeguarding which will
protect the public and support young people to stop offending. We work to the priorities of the West
Yorkshire Police and Crime Plan in respect of victims, restorative justice and reducing reoffending. We
have liaised closely with the Police Crime Commissioner and will work hard to form a positive and
Page 3 of 47

Page 113

productive partnership with the Office of the West Yorkshire Mayor around priority areas and work
streams. Our work is informed by the profile of Leeds as detailed in the Safer Leeds Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment and this plan is aligned with the priorities of the Safer, Stronger Communities Plan.
We have developed an explicit value set aligned with restorative practice which we share with children
and their families as well as partners to describe the principles by which we work:

Child-centred
Leeds has a vision and ambition to be a child friendly city; a city where all children and young people are
happy, safe, healthy, do well in learning, have voice and influence and are active citizens. This means
that young people who face disadvantage and who are involved in or at risk of offending have a right to
expect us all to address their needs and give them voice and choice.
We seek to maximise the potential of every child and young person involved with our service, encouraging
desistence from crime and positive life choices. We recognise that our child-friendly ambitions are
particularly important in the transition to adult services.
We believe that young people in the youth justice system are children first and offenders second. None
of them should be deemed beyond help or without capacity to change, regardless of offence or risk profile.
Custody should be reserved for children and young people whose offending is so serious that no other
sentence can be justified. We know that well-resourced, well-structured programmes of supervision and
support combined with practical advice delivered in the community by committed, caring and competent
staff can bring down the rate of offending and repair the damage done by crime in a way which custodial
sentences cannot.

Safe
Public safety is the principle aim of the work we do. We will work with others to protect victims and
reduce the likelihood of future victims of crime. We will keep the victim’s voice clear in the work we do
with young people.
We recognise that young people themselves are frequently victims of crime and often experience neglect,
trauma and abuse. We will do all we can to make our service an emotionally and physically safe place
where young people can begin to heal and thrive.

Relationship based
Trusting, respectful, sensitive relationships are needed to underpin engagement with young people and
families in order to achieve the best outcomes for them. We will employ staff who genuinely care about
and like the young people they work with, whilst being able to appropriately challenge some of the
decisions they make. We will invest in our relationships with young people, their families, carers and
each other and take responsibility for nurturing healthy and effective interactions at all levels.
Our approach and our relationships are underpinned by restorative principles. We will always work
‘WITH’ – creating a context of high support and high challenge with children, young people families,
carers and each other. This means we will ensure children, young people, families and carers are as fully
informed as possible and are involved in decisions that concern them, fostering resilience and
independence.

Fair
We endorse the Leeds City Council’s values of being open, honest and trusted and treating people fairly.
Our staff will champion these values in their interactions with others.
Many of the children and young people in the youth justice system are amongst the most vulnerable in
the city, experiencing multiple trauma, victimisation and disadvantage. Many have learning or
communication difficulties and a disproportional number are care experienced. We will challenge
discrimination and be advocates for our young people, to ensure the best possible outcomes. We
Page 4 of 47

Page 114

embrace diversity and believe that difference and diversity within our workforce strengthens the work we
do and the influence we have.
We accept our obligation as a public service to ‘explain or reform’ if there are differentials in outcomes
or processes for specific groups of young people. We will cast a critical eye over our data and be open
about what we find.
We will work to maximise restorative outcomes for victims and encourage young people to repair the
harm they have caused. We will offer victims a voice when decisions are made.

Working together
A youth justice service alone is often not enough to stop young people offending. We will work in
partnership with families, communities and other services to enhance the life chances of young people.
We recognise that family networks can be vital in supporting young people to make positive choices and
will work to utilise these networks where possible and appropriate.
We will co-ordinate our work with partners, sharing information appropriately and effectively to avoid
duplication and ensure a seamless service to young people that is fit for purpose.

Giving support at the right time
We believe that, wherever possible, minor crimes should be dealt with outside the formal youth justice
system and when a criminal justice response is required, children and young people should be dealt with
at the lowest possible tier. This will reduce the number of potential victims of crime and promote the
confidence and safety of our local communities.
We support Leeds’ ambition to engage young people, families and carers in appropriate and effective
support early in the life of a problem and be persistent in our approach when needed. Intervening early
will help prevent problems escalating.

Effective
Leeds Youth Justice Service is committed to innovative and effective practice, which is evidence- based
and anti-discriminatory. Our focus on outcomes will help us ensure we are making a positive difference.
Strengths based approaches value the capacity, skills, knowledge, connections and potential in
individuals and communities. Our interventions with children, young people, families and carers will be
effective because they build on strengths and celebrate successes.
Listening to young people, understanding their experiences, treating them as individuals and finding
ways to inspire and motivate them is what changes lives. We have a range of formal and informal ways
of getting feedback about our Service and finding out about what young people need, from surveys and
feedback questionnaires to themed focus groups and discussions. Put simply, we have learnt that it is
trusted relationships which matter to young people. They tell us they need understanding, reliability,
practical help and compassion. When our staff spend the time to get to know young people and their
families and what matters to them, when they do what they say, when they nurture the best in people
and address the barriers which face them, this can be transformational.

Page 5 of 47

Page 115

“You do great work, don’t ever forget that. You helped us all tremendously and I will never
forget you.” Victim feedback
“I can't thank you enough for what you have done. Although we aren't in a place I still wanted
us, we are in a place that is a little less chaotic. You are the only professional that has been
consistent and not given up on (my son)”. Parent feedback
“I feel very supported by the YJS staff who have helped me turn my life around. I have been
supported through a difficult period in my life and the emotional support and guidance has been
immeasurable. It has taught me to reflect and make better decisions.” Young person’s feedback

“My worker treats me with respect as I do her. I can trust her and I know that if I was in any
trouble I could confide in her.” Young person’s feedback
“My worker is a 10 out of 10 for how he has helped me, he has kept me out of jail and
helped me move away from Leeds and feel safe.” Young person’s feedback
“My YJS worker is an absolute star” Young person’s feedback

Over the next three years Leeds YJS will need to continue to be responsive, creative and adaptable in
order to meet the considerable challenges ahead. We know that inequalities within our city are profound
and that the pandemic will have impacted on the life chances of many of our young people. In times
like this our values are more importance to us than ever, indicating as they do our commitment to
ensuring Leeds is a Child Friendly City for all its young people.

3.

Governance, leadership and partnership arrangements

Governance arrangements for the YJS are provided through our Youth Justice Service Partnership Board
which is chaired by the Deputy Director of Children’s Services and includes executive leaders from across
partner services, political leadership and relevant contributory third sector organisations. The YJS
Partnership Board has an active role in informing strategic decision-making and is well placed to facilitate
resource allocation where required.
YJS performance is overseen and discussed at the Leeds YJS Partnership Board which receives quarterly
performance reports including trend analysis, performance against most similar family groups and more
detailed analysis of problem profiles where appropriate. YJS performance is driven within the service
through a monthly performance meeting which includes colleagues from Children’s Services
performance section. YJS performance data is also reported through Partnership structures where
shared priorities exist, including Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB), Safer Leeds Executive and the Leeds
Local Safeguarding Childrens Partnership (LSCP).
Leeds YJS is fully integrated into local partnership planning arrangements for both children and young
people and criminal justice services. The YJS has representation on a number of strategic groups
including the Local Children’s Safeguarding Partnership, the Prevent Silver group, the Corporate
Parenting Board, the Liaison and Diversion Board and the Safer Leeds Executive; reports are provided to
all Boards in relation to cross cutting safeguarding and youth crime related issues.
The YJS is represented on the thematic delivery groups for integrated offender management, alcohol
and substance misuse and reducing re-offending. We have contributed to the Safer Leeds strategic needs
assessment and the partnership has supported additional resources to further improve services around
anti-social behaviour, exploitation, domestic violence and victim work. The YJS has maintained a good
Page 6 of 47

Page 116

relationship with adult justice colleagues and meets regularly with colleagues from HM Probation
Services around the transition of young people to adult services.
The YJS is represented within the Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB) for West Yorkshire and sub-regional
management arrangements exist to enable county YJS managers to meet on a quarterly basis with senior
officers from the National Probation Service, Police, HM Courts and health to allow a coordinated
approach to service delivery. These sub-regional arrangements have allowed for good engagement with
the West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner and their office. The links with the PCC have been
strengthened by a shared YJS seat on the PCC’s Partnership Engagement Group and the PCC having been
the chair of the LCJB. These arrangement stand us in good stead to have a productive relationship with
the West Yorkshire Mayor and her office. The YJS is a key part of the strategy and governance
arrangements within Leeds around serious youth violence and is well engaged with the Violence
Reduction Unit (VRU), piloting arrangements funded by the VRU to develop an A & E pathway for young
victims of violent crime.
West Yorkshire YOTs have worked together productively for a number of years, recognising the benefits
of sharing good practice and problem solving. Whilst each has solid foundations in their local authority
structures, the county-wide nature of other criminal justice agencies have always provided an incentive
to co-operate across local authority boundaries. West Yorkshire Police, the Local Criminal Justice Board
and the Mayor and Probation Services all operate on a West Yorkshire structure, with HMTCS and the
Probation Service operating regionally. Liaison and Diversion services have been West Yorkshire wide
from April 2019.
West Yorkshire YOT service managers meet on a monthly basis to identify areas of common interest and
work together on joint projects. These projects have varied in scope and complexity over the years and
currently include developing child friendly Court processes, commissioning a county-wide appropriate
adult service and training and practitioner development. South and West Yorkshire YOTs continue to
support the regional resettlement consortium and Leeds YJS is taking the lead on behalf of the
consortium for the national resettlement pathfinder project funding by the Youth Justice Board (YJB).
Partner agencies are keen to see a consistent approach to youth justice across the county and there is
considerable pressure on local authorities to become more efficient and to innovate. It is likely that
there will continue to be opportunities for co-operation, integration and alignment, achieving economies
of scales whilst ensuring that youth justice provision remains attuned to the needs of local communities.

4.

Resources and Services

Leeds Youth Justice Service Partnership Board holds the responsibility to ensure that the Youth Justice
Service is adequately resourced and able to meet both the statutory requirements for the local authority
and our ambitions to support children and young people in Leeds to reach their potential and achieve
crime free lives.
Funding for Leeds Youth Justice Service for 2021/22 is made up of contributions from statutory partners,
Childrens Services, Probation, NHS, Police, Youth Justice Board, Police and Crime Commissioner’s
Community Safety Fund. The YJS also oversees the local authority budget provided to meet the cost of
young people remanded to the secure estate. Probation, Police and NHS resources are notionally
allocated based on staff seconded to the service. The terms and conditions of the Youth Justice Board
Effective Practice grant continue to include setting out a clear expectation for how this grant allocation
may be used.
The full contributions that make up the overall Youth Justice Service budget can be seen in the table set
out below.

Page 7 of 47

Page 117

There continues to be a significant pressure on services as overall funding to the Authority reduces.
Services are currently undergoing reviews to achieve greater synergies and efficiencies. The YJS utilises
the council’s approved supplier contract system and procurement team to ensure purchases for
operational goods and services are compliant with tendering processes and best value.
Costs are reported monthly to the YJS Service Manager, the local authority and quarterly to the YJS
Partnership Board. The vast majority of funding is expended on staffing.
The spending plans for 2021/22 will enable us to deliver upon our six priorities as outlined below from
p14.

5.

Performance

In the 2020-21 financial year, Leeds Youth Justice Service worked with a total of 589 young people on
any basis, either voluntarily or as part of a formal out of court disposal or Court sentence.
Gender

F
M
Total

Number %age
91
15.4%
498
84.6%
589 100.0%

Ethnicity

Ethnicity
Number %age
Asian or Asian British
25
4.2%
Black or Black British
40
6.8%
Chinese or other ethnic group 6
1.0%
GYPSY/ROMA
25
4.2%
Mixed
71
12.1%
Unknown
3
0.5%
White
419
71.1%
Grand Total
589 100.0%

White
Mixed
Asian
Black
Other

2011 Census
10-17 population
80%
5%
10%
4%
1%

2020 School
census (Yrs 7 to 13)
71%
6%
12%
7%
2%

Whilst numbers of Black and Minority Ethnic young people and White young people in the justice system
in Leeds are proportional to those in the city as a whole, this masks disparities in the representation of
specific ethnicities. Specifically, young people of mixed heritage make up over 12% of the offending
Page 8 of 47

Page 118

cohort, double the proportion of mixed heritage young people in Leeds as a whole (2011 Census and
2020 school census). Asian young people make up just 3% of the offending cohort, less than a third of
the overall proportion of Asian young people in the city. Gypsy/Roma young people are reported as a
distinct category as we are aware that there is over-representation of this cohort in Leeds YJS - 1% of
young people in the school census data identified as Roma.
The over-representation of mixed heritage boys in the justice system is longstanding in Leeds and we will
prioritise efforts to identify and address racial inequality in the youth justice system and support cultural
cohesion over the next three-year period.
Children Looked After
The following shows the percentage of Children Looked After in the cohort of young people known to
the justice system in Leeds in the overall cohort in the financial year ‘20 – ’21.

Looked after status
CLA
Remand only CLA
Not CLA
Grand Total

Number %age
61
10.4%
9
1.5%
519
88.1%
589 100.0%

This is a significant over-representation, given less than 1% of the 10 – 18 population in Leeds is a Child
Looked After. Not all of the young people working with the YJS in the year are on formal disposals or
sentences, however. Our Reducing Offending by Children Looked After Panel (ROCLA) identifies young
people in the care system who are at risk of offending and identifies services which could appropriately
address this risk, which may include a referral to the YJS on a prevention basis. In 2020/21, nine Children
Looked After received a service from the YJS on this basis.
Offence types (all offences)
The following shows all offences which were recorded on ChildView our electronic recording system in
2020/21 financial year (there will be some additional offences which have not yet had an outcome that
would be included if the report were run at a later date).

Offence type
Number %age
Arson
2 0.4%
Breach
7 1.5%
Criminal Damage
55 12.1%
Burglary
21 4.6%
Drugs
38 8.4%
Fraud And Forgery
2 0.4%
Motoring Offences
61 13.5%
Other
15 3.3%
Public Order
28 6.2%
Racially Aggravated
5 1.1%
Robbery
9 2.0%
Sexual Offences
1 0.2%
Theft And Handling Stolen Goods
35 7.7%
Vehicle Theft / Unauthorised Taking
23 5.1%
Violence Against The Person
151 33.3%
Total
453 100%
Of these offences, 50 were weapons offences, with breakdown as follows:

Page 9 of 47

Page 119

Weapon offences
Possess a firearm of length less than 30cm / 60cm - prohibited weapon 3
Possess an offensive weapon in a public place 3
Possess article with blade / sharply pointed article on school premises 3
Possess imitation firearm - committing Schedule 1 offence 5
Possess knife blade / sharp pointed article in a public place - Criminal Justice Act 1988 3
Possess offensive weapon on school premises 3
Threaten a person with a blade / sharply pointed article in a public place 3
Threaten a person with an offensive weapon in a public place 3
Total

1
15
6
1
23
1
2
1
50

Serious Youth Violence
Whilst this data, taken from the YJB’s Serious Youth Violence Toolkit and covering the period up to
September 2020, indicates a decreasing overall number of outcomes for young people involved in
serious youth violence in the city, this represents an increasing proportion of YJS business. The Safer
Leeds Strategic Assessment 2021 indicates increasing concern around boys and young men being linked
to (if not convicted of) violence, often involving large groups and weapons, with specific concerns around
links to street gangs and organised criminal groups. Serious youth violence is therefore an identified
priority in this plan.

First time entrants
The most recent published YJB data relates to the Jan – Dec 19 period. Looking at the rate per 100,000
population aged 10 - 17, Leeds performs better than comparators (Yorkshire and England & Wales).
Although all areas have decreased, Leeds has decreased at a slower rate and is now almost the same as
the England and Wales average.
Page 10 of 47

Page 120

FTEs per 100k population under 18
400
350

300
250
200

150
100
50

0

Jan 16 - Dec
16

Jan 17 - Dec
17

Jan 18 - Dec
18

Jan 19 - Dec
19

Leeds

302

287

226

205

Yorkshire

353

323

244

222

England & Wales

328

294

236

207

Custody
Use of custody per 1,000 population was published in June for the period to March 2021. The rate of
custody in Leeds has fallen along with its comparator groups but is still higher than Yorkshire and the
national rates. There have been no girls from Leeds sentenced or remanded to custody since 2013.
Custody per 1,000 population under 18
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1

0

Apr 17 - Mar
18

Apr 18 - Mar
19

Apr 19 - Mar
20

Apr 20 - Mar
21

Leeds

0.55

0.56

0.38

0.19

Yorkshire

0.37

0.39

0.34

0.11

England & Wales

0.37

0.3

0.22

0.13

Remands (locally produced data)
Remand numbers
35
30
25
20
15
10
5

0
Apr 17 - Mar 18

Apr 18 - Mar 19

Apr 19 - Mar 20

Apr 20 - Mar 21

Page 11 of 47

Page 121

Although overall numbers are small in each year, mixed heritage boys are over-represented in terms of
remands as well as custody, with the proportion remanded accounting for between 11% and 33% of the
overall remanded young people in each year.
Re-offending (YJB published data)
The most recent YJB published figures show that whilst Leeds remains higher than comparators, it is
reducing at a faster rate and has narrowed the gap in terms of the re-offending rate.

Reoffending rate (Reoffenders / Number in cohort)
50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

Apr 15 - Mar 16

Apr 16 - Mar 17

Apr 17 - Mar 18

Apr 18 - Mar 19

Leeds

41.6%

45.7%

41.5%

40.0%

Yorkshire

41.0%

41.8%

38.5%

39.1%

England & Wales

42.2%

40.9%

38.4%

37.8%

Re-offending (local data)
The following chart shows the re-offending rate in Leeds using the local monitoring system to provide
us with more up to date information. It does not include those over 18 and does not come via PNC data
so does not match the information reported by the YJB but allows monitoring of re-offending data
using more recent figures than those provided by the YJB. These show 12 month rolling figures and are
produced on a monthly basis.
Re-offending within 12 months - rolling 12 months
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

Page 12 of 47

Page 122

The success of our Youth Justice Partnership Board can be measured in regard to the service’s impact on
reducing the number of children and young people re-entering the criminal justice system as well as
keeping numbers of children and young people in custody to an absolute minimum. In addition to these
nationally monitored performance measures, Leeds YJS has set a number of priorities. As the key
statutory body responsible for all matters concerning youth crime and youth crime prevention in the city
our Board will be key to ensuring that the work of Leeds YJS in these priority areas is part of a broader
suite of ambitions, objectives and actions from key partners in the city. Integrated and cohesive planning
and delivery across service areas, directorates and sectors will be critical to our success.

Priority 1
Reduce the number of children and young people entering or re-entering the
criminal justice system.
Vision
The statutory aim of YOTs is to prevent offending and re-offending in young people. Preventing children
and young people entering or re-entering the criminal justice system is therefore a priority for the Youth
Justice Partnership Board. The prevention of youth crime is a shared ambition and requires an ambitious
partnership across sectors to succeed. Leeds has much to be proud of, including a vibrant third sector,
a well embedded child friendly, compassionate ethos and a robust early help and family support offer.
The Children and Young People’s Plan articulates how we will deliver on the Council’s ambitions for
young people, including working ‘WITH’ families, tackling child poverty, improving school attendance,
attainment and achievement and a commitment to improved social and emotional mental health
support. All this has helped us ensure that the numbers of young people who enter the youth justice
system in Leeds is consistently lower than regional or national comparators. Once young people have
entered the youth justice system, our aim is to promote desistence and give them the tools they need
to avoid further offending and lead healthy, happy lives and contribute positively to their communities
and the city.

The challenge
Although our Youth Justice Service has had success reducing the number of young people entering the
criminal justice system, we know that we have more to do to support children and young people to desist
from re-offending. Our analysis of our children and young people who commit re-offences demonstrates
a causal link to young people who are living in areas of the city which are most deprived and where
educational engagement is most challenging. We therefore know that supporting children young people
and their families at the earliest opportunity and working with them to maximise their access to
educational entitlements and opportunities is a crucial role for the service. We will need to continue to
target our early help and prevention services to areas of highest need.
It will be important to continue to prioritise supporting young people at risk of offending in a challenging
economic climate over the next three year period and at a time when the pressure on public services is
intense. The YJS Partnership will lead the youth crime prevention strategy for the city, ensuring that
services and resources are coordinated and that there is a consistent and considered city-wide approach
to identifying children and young people at risk of offending and ensuring they get the support they
need.
Our data also tells us that although numbers of children entering the criminal justice system for the first
time is low, the re-offending rate for Leeds, taken from the YJB published data is higher than regional
and national comparators and is therefore a particular concern for the city, with smaller numbers of
young people re-offending at a higher rate. Local data shows us that young people who have been
through the Youth Panel re-offend less frequently, although we can see that the monthly figures have
increased from an initial reduction during the first wave of the pandemic in the spring.

Page 13 of 47

Page 123

What will we do?
Our services are working more closely with children’s social work services, youth services and the city’s
early help services. We continue to develop our relationships with third sector partners in deprived
areas of the city. This enables us to work together to identify new children at risk of offending or
reoffending and ensure that they are accessing appropriate support and services in a timely manner. We
will work with our Early Help Hubs and family support services in the clusters to ensure we adopt a multidisciplinary approach at the most local level to identify children who are vulnerable to poor outcomes
and effectively share information and intelligence, thereby enabling a multi-agency, integrated clear plan
of early help. Leeds Children and Families directorate have agreed a focus on the development of trauma
informed therapeutic services and family and community hubs as part of a recent Early Help review and
the YJS is a key partner in this. We will continue to use ReThink Formulation to inform our work with
young people.
We will benefit from the West Yorkshire Early Intervention Pathfinder in developing this work. The
Pathfinder is funded by the YJB and will focus on developing an informed, consistent and effective
approach to out of court disposals across the county, including the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) Chance to
Change (deferred outcome) scheme. The Leeds YJS Service Manager will be representing the five West
Yorkshire YOTs on both the regional Pathfinder meetings and the steering group. We will also assess
the potential benefit of developing a ‘live tracker’ data set together with West Yorkshire Police to identify
the most at risk reoffending cohort.

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement

Outcome Measure
(Source)

Performance

Reduce the number of young people re-entering
the criminal justice system due to subsequent
disposals

Reoffending Data
PNC

Reduce the number of young people entering the
criminal justice system for the first time

First Time Entrant
Data PNC

Most recently
published two year
re-offending rate
(April 18 – March 19
is 40%)
185 young people in
calendar year

Priority 2
Identify and address racial inequality in the youth justice system and support
cultural cohesion
Vision
The Council’s vision for Leeds to have a strong economy in a compassionate city continues the drive to
decrease discrimination and ensure equity of outcomes, regardless of race, ethnicity, disability, sexuality
or gender. The task of creating a culturally competent society in which all individuals and communities
live side by side harmoniously, feeling respected, safe and valued, and having equal opportunities for
personal success and fulfilment, is complex but we are determined to play our part.
Leeds Youth Justice Service will continue to increase and embed positive cultural awareness and practice
in its workforce. We aspire to be an organisation which promotes equality and fully understands and
responds to the needs and experiences of all of the diverse communities in Leeds. We will be open about
our desire to address structural racism. We will take seriously our responsibility to ‘explain or reform’
as recommended by David Lammy’s independent review into the treatment and experiences of Black
and Minority Ethnic people in the criminal justice system. We are committed to educating and
challenging ourselves to address issues of unconscious bias and to be a workplace in which our Black and
Minority Ethnic staff feel safe and valued.

Page 14 of 47

Page 124

The Challenge
Local and national data tells us that racial inequality within the justice system remains an ongoing and
significant concern. Within the youth justice system we have a particular responsibility to address the
over representation of some groups; particularly boys from mixed heritage and Gypsy Roma or Traveller
backgrounds.
Leeds Youth Justice Service has contributed to the recent thematic inspection undertaken by HMIP on
YOT services to black and mixed heritage boys. Whilst we await the full report, due to be published in
the autumn of 2021, we know that the findings of the enquiry are likely to identify further opportunities
for youth justice system to address discrimination of these over-represented groups. The process of
contributing towards the thematic inspection identified a number of opportunities for our local
partnership to develop our own multi-service response to this issue. We know, for example that we
need to engage black and mixed heritage boys at the earliest opportunity in order to avoid any escalation
in offending.

What will we do?
Leeds Youth Justice Service is working together with the Local Criminal Justice Board to establish a
common data set across West Yorkshire to help identify trends and areas for services to address. Working
with our partners to ensure that our race and equality action plan includes learning from others alongside
our own data analysis enables us to design and steer our resources and interventions to address specific
inequalities. We will continue to use the disproportionality toolkit provided by the YJB to support this
work.
The Service produces a detailed annual race and identity action plan (see appendix 1), detailing our
ambitions and how we plan to achieve them in this important area. The plan, which covers
organisational culture, examination of datasets, direct work with young people and partnerships, will be
presented to the YJS Partnership Board in an annual basis. We will continue to listen to young people
and parents/carers from all backgrounds and ethnicities to enable them to share their views in order to
shape and influence service delivery in the YJS.
The Cultural Cohesion Quality Mark (CCQM) provides a platform to increase and embed positive cultural
awareness and reduce segregation and inequality across Leeds communities and beyond. Over the next
three years, Leeds YJS will work towards the CCQM, helping us develop the knowledge, understanding
and behaviours needed to become an organisation where cultural diversity and cohesion is recognised,
appreciated and promoted. We will continue to undertake an annual staff survey and will invest in
training and development opportunities for staff. Leeds Children and Families directorate is part of a
national initiative focussed on developing Workforce Race Equality Standards and the YJS will benefit
from this learning. The YJS has representation at the Children and Families directorate Equality and
Diversity Strategic group which presents an opportunity to promote learning and ideas across services.

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement

Source of outcome
measure

There is a proportionate representation to the
demographic of Leeds in the youth justice service
cohort
The Service monitors and analyses
disproportionality in respect of:
• The cohort as a whole
• Assetplus needs analysis
• Compliance and breach
• Engagement in services
• Disposal and sentence outcome
• Custody

Performance at
March 2021

Childview
GRT and mixed
YJB disproportionality heritage boys
toolkit
significantly overrepresented
Childview
Detailed analysis of
performance
detailed in Needs
Analysis presented
to YJS Partnership
Board on 06/05/21

Page 15 of 47

Page 125

All staff in the YJS feel respected and valued

Staff survey

The Service delivers on its race and identity
action plan

Review of plan

See survey
presented to YJS
Partnership Board
on 06/05/21
Plan presented to
Board on 06/05/21.
Review due April
2022.

Priority 3
Doing the simple things better
Vision
The Children and Young People’s Plan 2018 – 23 describes the importance of a mind-set where staff
strive to always ‘do the simple things better’. The simple things start with listening to the voice of the
child and family, having quality conversations and developing quality connections and relationships with
children, families, and professionals. Our child-first values help us in this task.
Doing the simple things better involves improved consistency in our delivery of services to children and
young people and ensuring that our assessments, plans, interventions and reviews are timely, informed
by the child’s individual needs and circumstances and based on best practice principles. Our outcomesfocussed approach and commitment to improvement will be demonstrated by a rigorous approach to
quality assuring our work and learning lessons from both good practice and from when things go wrong.
A well trained, well supported and motivated workforce will enable us to deliver these improvements.

The Challenge
Our updated Service Improvement Plan can be found on page 28 of this report. The original plan was
drawn up following our HMIP inspection in 2019 and addressed the recommendations in the inspection
report published in January 2020. Whilst the individual actions specified in the Service Improvement
Plan and submitted to HMIP have been completed, it is important that we do not lose sight of the
objectives, which remain relevant and ambitious:
• To (continue to) improve the quality of assessment and planning in out of court disposals
• To have rigorous and effective management oversight of all cases
• To ensure assessment of risk of harm to others is analytical and robust, drawing key information
together and to (continue to) improve risk planning and reviewing
• To reduce barriers to delivering safeguarding and educational services to children and young people
in the justice system
• To ensure the Youth Justice Partnership has a clear overview of practice and good attendance at
meetings
We are able to demonstrate progress in all the key improvement areas identified in our 2020 inspection
report and have added new tasks for 2021. Nonetheless, we are not complacent and remain committed
to improving our performance and to doing the simple things better in order to provide the best possible
service to the children and young people.

What will we do?
We will need to remain focussed on excellence in core practice skills whilst also remaining creative,
positive and child focussed as we face the challenges of the next three years. We will ensure our staff
have the necessary training and support to produce assessments and plans which are timely and
effective, taking account of each individual child’s needs and identity. We will give staff the tools to
monitor their own performance in relation to timeliness, and support managers to use the suite of
available performance management and quality assurance tools to best effect. We will keep our focus
Page 16 of 47

Page 126

on risk management, to keep young people and the public safe.
Our management oversight
arrangements include the Partnership Board, who also review and audit our work. Restorative practice
underpins our practice, with high support and high challenge in our relationships with young people and
their families as well as between colleagues. Quality, outcome focussed reflective supervision is based
on these restorative principles and will ensure that our staff have the greatest impact in their work.

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement

Delivery of Service Improvement Plan
(see below)

Source of Outcome Measure

Performance at
March 2021

Service Improvement Plan (to be See below.
reviewed in YJS Partnership
Board meetings twice yearly)

Priority 4
Reducing Serious Youth Violence
Vision
Children involved in violence are some of the most vulnerable in our society and are often subject to
exploitation or abuse. They need high-quality, evidence-based support, delivered in the right way by the
right people to help them build critical social and emotional skills, develop resilience and lead safe,
healthy and law-abiding lives. Our vision is to reduce the instances of serious youth violence across the
city and to ensure that we have effective multi-agency systems for quickly identifying and intervening at
the earliest opportunity to prevent violence.

The Challenge
Like many core cities nationally we have seen an increase in the number of young people engaged in
serious youth violence, including knife crime. The Safer Stronger Leeds Strategic Assessment 2021
identifies on-street and youth gang violence as increasing in the city and observes that conflicts often
target individuals from other street gang groups, their associates and/or families. Some incidents can be
highly impactive, with violence and damage occurring in public locations, often with a number of
witnesses and many incidents show willingness by offenders to deliberately inflict injuries on the
victim(s). There can be rapid escalation of violence in reciprocal altercations. There are trends in
violence/abuse relating to offending against “authority” figures (police, teachers and retail staff) across
all age groups. Street gangs often have links to more organised criminal groups, especially relating to
drug supply.

What will we do?
At the time of writing the Youth Justice Service has commissioned an external report exploring the nature
and extent of serious youth violence in Leeds from the national Violence and Vulnerability Unit. We are
working in partnership with the West Yorkshire Violence Reduction Unit, West Yorkshire Police,
Children’s Services, the LSCP and our Safer and Sustainable Leeds Teams to support the development of
a public health approach to serious youth violence. This will help us identify the key drivers for serious
violence and child exploitation and develop an integrated response to how to tackle them, using an
outcome based accountability approach. The partnership will have a particular focus on transitional
safeguarding.

Page 17 of 47

Page 127

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement
A reduction in the number of young
people convicted of serious violence
offences

A reduction of the number of young
people presenting to the emergency
department of Leeds hospitals with
injuries caused through violence

A reduction in the number of young
people convicted of knife crime
offences

Source of Outcome Performance at March 2021
Measure
YJB SYV toolkit
Any drug, robbery
or violence against
the person offence
that has a gravity
score of five or
more
Data from A and E
navigator

Childview

Number of outcomes SYV
offences in Leeds in 2020 was
63; with a rate of 9.1 per 10,000
10-17 year olds in the general
population

The Emergency Departments at
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS
Trust received approximately
159 recorded attendances due
to assaults per month, of which
40% involve those below the
age of 25 (Jan 2020 dataset).
50 weapons related offences in
2020/21

Priority 5
Attendance, achievement and attainment
Vision
Leeds Children and Young People’s Plan 2018 – 23 and the Children and Families ‘3 As Strategy’ commits
us to ‘place a disproportionate focus on learning, and readiness for learning, so we narrow the gap, and
enable all children and young people - particularly those learners who are vulnerable to poor outcomes
to realise their potential’.
Children and young people in the justice system should be able to access inclusive, high quality education
and training services and support, with additional needs being identified and met at the earliest
opportunity. Educational outcomes for young people in the justice system will be improved by the
successful implementation of the city’s SEND and inclusion strategy where:
• Additional needs are met at the earliest point and barriers are removed to enable inclusion
• Services across education, health and care work together, in partnership with the child and family
• Support and services are personalised and recognise children and young people’s individual needs,
cultural backgrounds and goals.
• A range of high-quality specialist services and support is offered, to meet diverse needs
• Families and young people have access, choice and control

The Challenge
Leeds is one of the wealthiest cities in the country, yet a quarter of Leeds children and young people live
in the top 10% most deprived areas in England. We know that young people in the justice system have
disproportionally high levels of SEND and/or additional needs and that their learning outcomes are often
poor. Needs which could have been met at an earlier stage have often not been recognised and
problems have escalated, resulting in high levels of absence and part-time timetable. The impact of the
pandemic, including poverty, is likely to be felt by our most disadvantaged communities and children
and young people in the justice system may fall further behind their peers as a result.

Page 18 of 47

Page 128

Over the last year the YJS Partnership Board has examined the barriers to accessing appropriate
education, training and employment for young people known to Leeds Youth Justice Service and remains
committed to improving what is currently a bleak picture.

What will we do?
There are well established links between being missing from or excluded from education and offending.
And we know that engagement in education or access to the right training course or job opportunity can
transform a young person’s expectations and life chances. Improving both the offer to and engagement
in appropriate education, training and employment for our young people will therefore be a priority for
the YJS Partnership in the next three years.
Working in partnership with the Area Inclusion Partnerships, the clusters, the Educational Psychology
Service, the Virtual School, services for vulnerable learners, the Pathways team and education and
training providers, we will improve the education and training offer to our vulnerable learners and
support them to attend and thrive in those settings.
We will continue to identify and tackle the barriers to young people engaging in education and
successfully transitioning into appropriate employment and training. We will work with our partners
across the city to increase opportunities for training, work and enrichment opportunities for our young
people. The Skill Mill will provide supported work placements for young people who would otherwise
struggle to enter the employment market. Our longstanding partnership with PATH also provides
traineeships to people from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic communities, providing them with
experiences they need to become part of the youth justice workforce.

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement
Young people are engaged in suitable education,
training or employment through the course of
their intervention with the Youth Justice service
that is sustained after their order

Outcome Measure
(Source)

Performance at
October 2020

Childview:
ETE hours offered
ETE hours engaged in

41% of school aged
children were being
offered full time
education
43% of post 16
children were not in
receipt of any hours

Priority 6
Reducing custody and positive resettlement of children and young people
from custody
Vision
Whilst the numbers of young people from Leeds entering custody are relatively low, we know that
custody disrupts lives and can be traumatic. We have a responsibility to protect the public from harm
but recognise that custody is often an expensive way of containing a problem rather than finding a
solution to it. We believe custody should be reserved for children and young people whose offending is
so serious that no other sentence can be justified and will work hard to present viable, safe ways of
keeping young people in the community where ever possible. When custody is the only option, young
people need resettlement services which are planned and delivered carefully.
The resettlement of children from custody is a statutory responsibility of local authorities, in partnership
with the police, the National Probation Service (NPS), health services and Her Majesty’s Prison and
Probation Service Youth Custody Service (HMPPS YCS). While good resettlement work does not
guarantee that children will do well, it does offer the best opportunity for them to change and become
Page 19 of 47

Page 129

productive members of their communities. In Leeds we aim to work together across agency boundaries
to ensure that accommodation, education, training and employment, and support services are in place
for young people on release.
We have noted the findings of the HMIP thematic inspection of resettlement published in 2019 and have
committed ourselves to improving our resettlement practice, to ensure it is focussed from the outset on
promoting a sustainable and safe return to the community. We have recently articulated an ambitious
‘resettlement promise’ to our young people which will require excellent partnership working on all seven
resettlement pathways in the city.

The Challenge
The rate of custody in Leeds has fallen along with its comparator groups but is still higher than Yorkshire
and the national rates. Our reviews of individual young people have told us that those young people
entering custody (both remanded and sentenced) have usually committed violent offences involving
serious injury and have had poor experiences of the education system, have had little contact with early
help services and have some of the most complex and challenging backgrounds and circumstances.
Many of the young people remanded or receiving custodial sentences are also repeat offenders and
therefore require intensive support and supervision to support desistance. Often young people in
custody have been exploited into crime and have links to serious youth violence and organised crime
groups. Families may need to relocate to avoid escalating or retaliative violence and push and pull
factors into and away from crime are complex and multi-layered. Whilst the public need to be protected,
those imprisoned for serious violent offending have often been victims of crime themselves.
Our targets around serious youth violence, attendance, achievement and attainment, preventing
offending and re-offending and addressing inequalities will support us to reduce the numbers of young
people in custody further.
Release from custody presents a ‘teachable moment’ and working in partnership with public protection
and safeguarding services is a key aspect of our work with this cohort.

What will we do?
Over the next three year period we will continue to prioritise work with our young people at risk of
custody, working in partnership with our placements team, EDT, Liaison and Diversion and statutory
partners to provide safe, viable alternatives to custody wherever possible. We will continue to deliver
on our resettlement promise for those who end up in custody, whether via remand or sentencing routes.
Leeds provides the strategic lead for our sub-regional South and West Yorkshire Resettlement
Consortium and the national Resettlement Pathfinder. This will enable us to be at the forefront of
developments in this hugely important practice area.
We will continue to use formulation in order to review plans for young people at risk of custody or
being resettled from it, thereby ensuring they are robust, individualised and outcome focussed. Our
in-house family group conferencing and restorative family work will optimise the chances for
successful family reunification and problem-solving.

What will success look like?
Outcome Statement

Source of outcome
measure

Resettlement promise delivered to young people

Reduced numbers of young people sentenced to
custody

Performance at
March 2021

Resettlement audit of Data unavailable
each young person
on release and three
months after release
Childview
10 young people
sentenced to
custody in 20/21
Page 20 of 47

Page 130

Reduced numbers of young people remanded to
custody

Childview

Reduced remand nights annually

Childview

Improved ETE provision on release from custody

Childview

6.

24 young people
remanded in
custody in 20/21
1853 remand nights
in 20/21
In 20/21, 3 young
people were NEET
on release, 3 had
part time provision
and 2 had fulltime
provision.

Workforce profile, learning and development needs

As of June 2021, Leeds Youth Justice Service was working with 26 volunteers, with the following profile:
M

F

Asian

0

1

Black

2

3

Mixed

0

0

White

8

12

Other

0

0

Our Leeds City Council staffing profile is as follows:
Ethnicity

Strategic managers

M
Asian
0
Black
0
Mixed
0
White
0
Any other 0
ethnic
group
Not
0
known
TOTAL
0

Practitioners

Total

F
0
0
0
1
0

Operational and
Practice managers
M
F
0
0
2
0
0
0
3
8
0
0

M
2
4
4
14
0

F
1
3
1
21
0

M
2
6
4
17
0

F
1
3
1
30
0

0

0

0

1

0

1

0

1

5

8

24

26

29

35

We have 9 secondees in total from West Yorkshire Police, the National Probation Service, and health
services, all of whom are White British, with 8 females and 1 male. We have 8 administrators attached
to our Service, all White British and 7 female, 1 male. Recognising the need to do all we can to encourage
Black and Minority Ethnic people to apply for jobs with us and have the right skill set and experience to
succeed in their applications, we have a longstanding partnership with PATH Yorkshire, and currently
have 1 PATH trainee placed with us, with recruitment ongoing for an additional individual.
We recognise that although our organisation is diverse, our Black and Minority Ethnic staff are mostly
employed at our lowest practitioner grades. Our race and diversity action plan details our plans to
address this imbalance.
Page 21 of 47

Page 131

Leeds Youth Justice Service workforce development strategy is in line with the Youth Justice Service
Professional Framework and aims to develop and maintain a high quality workforce. Our induction
processes for practitioners detail their learning for the first six months of their employment in the
Service; it includes the minimum training required, expectations around informal learning and
competency expectations.
We also provide an affordable route for unqualified practitioner staff to become qualified within the
service. We currently have two members of staff enrolled in the Foundation Degree in Youth Justice
(FDYJ) which we part fund and continue to fully fund staff to complete the Youth Justice Effective Practice
Certificate. The majority of our frontline Youth Justice Workers now hold this qualification. We are
reviewing our support offer to practitioners undertaking the Foundation Degree in Youth Justice to
ensure they fully capitalise on the opportunity this presents. This will include scheduled sessions to
reflect on learning with a lead manager, a West Yorkshire peer support group, developing Court skills
and knowledge and an opportunity for involvement in a project outside of the core business of their
team.
Despite the challenges posed by Covid 19 we have continued to offer a good range of training and
development opportunities for staff. In the past year we have offered sessions on gambling awareness,
far right extremism, constructive resettlement and identity shift, adultification, assessment of young
people involved in harmful sexual behaviour and technology assisted harmful sexual behaviour. As a
direct result of our last HMIP inspection we commissioned bespoke training covering the core practice
principle and assessment and analysis skills. Further training has been commissioned from the same
provider to focus specifically on assessing risk of serious harm and risk to safety and wellbeing. The YJS
training plan details the training offer to staff and includes in-house, LCC and external training. All staff
are expected to demonstrate the learning and impact of training attended in their work.
A recent working party comprising frontline staff and managers has looked at our 1 to 1 arrangements
and has developed a new template for use across the service and updated our 1 to 1 policy. All staff
have regular and timely 1 to 1s and annual appraisals which form part of the wider Leeds City Council
employee performance and development process. This encourages self-care, ensures that the wider
aims of the Authority are linked with those from the local service and, in addition, gives an opportunity
to develop an individualised training and development plan for each member of staff.
We are aware that our practice managers have a big responsibility in coaching and developing staff
practice and that they too need opportunities for development and support. Two operational managers
are working with the practice manager group to develop their skills and confidence in this area. We will
relaunch a series of themed ‘practice forums’ for staff to enhance consistency between teams and
ensure that the latest research and processes are understood.
We have recently signed up for a Community Cohesion Quality Mark and have committed to training to
improve our understanding of issues such as unconscious bias and cultural competence. We have also
completed an internal questionnaire to establish the service experience of our Black and Minority Ethnic
members of staff and have also conducted a peer audit of Black and Minority Ethnic young people to
encourage greater reflection of our practice with this particular group of young people. The CCQM
process will provide a framework over the next year to further develop our cultural competence and
improve our ability to work successfully with over-represented groups of young people.
Additional priorities for training will be around developing our practice in our priority areas, ensuring
that all staff understand and are supported to develop and maintain a trauma informed approach with
the children and families with whom they work.
In Leeds Youth Justice Service we monitor performance regularly to inform ourselves about our successes
and our areas for improvement. We have regular communication around performance at team
meetings, analysis and risk assessment of active cases in one to ones, a robust data monitoring process
and strong case management system support both internally and from our suppliers. A monthly
performance report monitors the key performance indicators and emerging issues. Over the next year
Page 22 of 47

Page 132

we plan to develop a bespoke, individualised performance reporting tool to improve consistency across
the workforce.
We have a range of service-wide auditing processes in place. Our comprehensive National Standards
audit was helpful in highlighting areas of progress since our 2019 inspection and indicating where we
need to improve, for example in consistently recording information from the secure estate and
timeliness of some processes, such as Referral Order panels. Our revised reporting arrangements will
allow our Partnership Board to hold us to account in these areas. Over the last year we have in addition
completed thematic audits on domestic violence, services to Black and Minority Ethnic young people and
resettlement as well as audits on good practice as defined by HMIP, with findings discussed in the
management team before being rolled out to staff. Domestic violence, disproportionality, resettlement,
education and serious youth violence will all be the subject of themed audits over the forthcoming year,
alongside more general casework audits to review our compliance with HMIP and National Standards.
Gatekeeping and management oversight arrangements also provide an opportunity for staff to learn and
develop. We have improved management oversight of Assetplus and assessments and reports being
submitted to Leeds Youth Panel as a result of feedback from HMIP. We have given particular attention
to reviewing all custody cases and feeding back to practitioners any points of learning.
In achieving our priorities, relationships will be key; relationships between workers, between partners
and services, with young people and families and with communities. We will continue to invest in those
relationships and invest in our fabulous staff team, without whom we would achieve nothing.

7.

Responding to the pandemic

Our Covid Recovery Plan detailed the challenges for Leeds Youth Justice Service posed by the pandemic
and the steps taken to address those challenges. These have included:
• Reviewing all young people’s cases to ascertain their needs, vulnerabilities and concerns. Face to face
contact has been maintained with higher risk young people throughout the pandemic; for others face
to face contact has been regularly re-established more recently. Staff remained committed to seeing
young people and families face to face whenever possible, despite the challenges posed by the second
lockdown and the arrival of winter.
• The Youth Justice Centre in Hunslet has remained open and during the first wave of the pandemic
was transformed into a food distribution centre, with YJS staff receiving food donations and
purchases and delivering food to young people and families who were under greater financial
pressure or in isolation, whilst checking also on their welfare. Fareshare deliveries continue to be
received and distributed to those in need.
• All our office bases have been open from late summer 2020 as venues for appointments with young
people and families and have provided a safe work space for a number of staff when needed.
• YJS staff have adapted to working remotely and can access relevant council systems from home. A
great deal of time and effort has been put into supporting staff, maintaining morale and finding new
ways of working constructively and positively with young people and partners and setting up systems
to run processes remotely.
• Leeds YJS has contributed to the wider COVID corporate response, by providing staff to help run
priority services such testing centres and services for Children Looked After (CLA) and care leavers.
• As Courts have continued to run throughout the pandemic, our Court team has provided officers
physically located in the court building throughout.

Page 23 of 47

Page 133

• It became clear early on that there was a significant impact from digital exclusion on children and
families in the justice system and a large number of young people had no meaningful access to phones
or other IT equipment. We were fortunate to obtain a significant number of devices from the DfE
digital services scheme to support vulnerable learners.
• Our staff have proved themselves to be creative and adaptable during these challenging times.
Programmes have been redesigned to be delivered remotely or individually, we have made good use
of outdoor activity centres and other public spaces to see our young people safely and we have found
ways of enabling young people to undertake reparation activities through creative challenges. Work
has been undertaken in specific communities where young people have struggled to adhere to
lockdown rules to help families understand what was expected of them and why.
At the time of writing, COVID restrictions are still ongoing, with continuing guidance on working from
home where possible, limited space in offices and social distancing and hygiene measure still required.
This continues to impact on the way in which we undertake our work with children and families, with
greater use of outdoor space, limited group work activity and a more flexible and creative approach
required from staff. Whilst schools have reopened, many of our children remain disengaged from
learning; some have been bereaved and many families have struggled to cope with the numerous
challenges the prolonged pandemic has presented. We are proud of the way our city and our service
has responded in such a highly pressured, fast moving and challenging time, to meet the needs of our
children and families, whilst coping at the same time with the issues the pandemic has presented to us
as individuals. The past year has presented a particular demand on our management team who have
had to make decisions and adjust processes at pace whilst covering for absent colleagues and keeping
the service running. We owe them a big debt of gratitude.
The pandemic has presented both challenges and opportunities. We are all now more familiar with
newer technologies and in the future are likely to be have much more flexible working arrangements.
We are mindful of the need to ensure we invest in systems of informal staff support, collaboration and
learning at a time when there remains a reduction in physical and frequent co-location. We are hopeful
that a renewed awareness of inequalities and the importance of communities and relationships will in
the longer term reap rewards for all of us.

8.

Challenges, risks and issues

Leeds YJS have completed four critical learning reviews into community public protection and
safeguarding incidents in 2020. One of these incidents was eligible for the process due to a MAPPA
serious further offence, and the other three reports were completed because of significant concerns
around the use of serious violence. All of the incidents have led to learning around how as a service we
work with serious youth violence and how we understand child criminal exploitation. All four young
people had poor experiences of education and had limited experience of the early help and targeted
youth support offers with the city. We have completed the multi-agency review process and shared our
learning within the YJS, at the Partnership Board and contributed to strategic discussions on structures
and processes within the city as a result and rolled out relevant training to staff.
We also review the cases of all young people sentenced to or remanded to custody in order to reflect on
whether custody was inevitable in the circumstances or whether there was more we could do. The
reviews give us an opportunity to identify themes or trends in this cohort to better target our resources,
direct our services and train our staff. We have identified that the majority of this cohort are either
clearly victims of or assessed to have been at risk of child criminal exploitation. The young people
concerned have very complex family backgrounds, frequently with parents having significant mental
health needs, with young people having experienced loss and abandonment, with abuse and neglect
experienced in their early years and with domestic violence prevalent in families. The cohort comprises
of boys, with a disproportional number from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds. The issues
presented are complex and illustrate the importance of partnerships across sectors to make the
difference which is needed.
Page 24 of 47

Page 134

At the time of writing we find ourselves in an unprecedented position due to the ongoing pandemic and
associated financial challenges. Whilst the funding gap in Leeds City Council’s budget for 2021/22 has
been addressed, there will be ongoing financial pressure on the city council in the following financial
years. In addition to this, specific grant funds remain subject to annual renewal, meaning funds may
reduce or potentially cease altogether. Short-term funding streams are available to the YJS but their
time limited nature means it is often difficult to adapt our delivery model and staffing arrangements in
the required timescales. Currently this affects grants from the Police and Crime Commissioner, the Youth
Justice Board, the Constructive Resettlement project and the Violence Reduction Unit.
As part of our strategy to manage risks to future service delivery through reducing resources, the Youth
Justice Service will work together with the city’s Youth and Early Help Services to identify potential
synergies and join together to support and enhance youth crime prevention. It is anticipated that this
work will be developed through service-wide consultation with full engagement from our partnership
and stakeholders through the Youth Justice Partnership Board. We are also working in partnership with
a range of statutory and third sector partners to better coordinate our efforts to deal with increased
levels of serious youth violence in the city. As a result of a recent external review of our current
arrangements we anticipate closer alignment of our joint resources to improve information sharing,
safety planning and public protection regarding this particularly complex and worrying issue.
Finally, the social and educational impact of the pandemic remains unknown. We are concerned about
the long-term impact of poor physical and mental health on the families with whom we work, as well as
the long-term educational impact on our young people. We know that young people in particular have
paid a heavy price during the pandemic and that their opportunities to find meaningful training or work
and become economically independent will have been affected. Inequalities already existing in our
society have been reinforced and this may impact on levels of social exclusion, disaffection and crime.
Despite these challenges, we remain optimistic that we are able to work together effectively and
proactively to deliver on this plan. Our child-friendly city is strong and our partnerships are positive and
determined to improve outcomes for children and young people in the years ahead.

Page 25 of 47

Page 135

Inspection improvement plan
Key objective (1)

Supporting / linked objectives

Quality of assessment and planning in out of court disposal work improved
•
•

Rigorous and effective management oversight of all cases
Assessment of risk of harm to others analytical and robust, drawing key information together, with the quality
of risk planning and reviewing improved

Page 136

Actions 2020

Progress

Status

Training for all staff and managers in
assessment and analysis

Recently retired lead inspector from HMIP was commissioned to deliver targeted assessment and
analysis training, based on feedback from HMIP. Staff training took place 2nd, 8th, 9th, 10th October and
12th November 2019. Updated staff guidance on planning launched with staff September 2020. Training
for new members of staff accessed through West Yorkshire commissioning arrangements.

Closed

Youth Panel assessments (LARPs) gate- All LARPs are now gate-kept by a member of the YJS management team. In addition, the panel chair
kept by managers
gives feedback on the quality of the assessment report to the report writer and their manager.

Closed

Develop tracking system to monitor
correlation between proposal and
outcome at youth panel

Tracking system now in place and monitored in performance improvement meetings.

Closed

Leeds Assessment Review and Plan
(LARP) template updated with revised
guidance on completion for YJS staff

LARP template and guidance was updated in September 2019 with input from former lead HMIP
inspector and launched to staff in October 2019.

Closed

Audit of out of court disposal
casework

Completed as part of National Standards audit, completed March 2020.

Closed

Additional actions for 2021
Ensure learning from thematic
inspection on work with black and
mixed heritage boys is embedded
within the Service

Regular feedback from Youth Panel
chairs about good practice and areas
for improvement
Practice forums to be reinstated

Page 137

Embed learning from the West
Yorkshire OOCD Pathfinder

Progress
Learning from thematic inspection was discussed in team meetings and the Youth Justice Partnership
Board and specific actions embedded within the race and identity action plan 2021. Report on progress
on the Race and Identity Action Plan presented to YJS Partnership Board in December 2021.
Thematic inspection report published in November 2021. YJS briefing event for all staff in December
2021, covering recommendations of the report and including input from YJS volunteers.
This is ongoing.

Actions 2020

Closed

There have been delays in instigating the practice forums due to staff sickness and other staff absence
Ongoing
and the stretched capacity of the management team in covering case management work. A manager has
now been identified to take a lead on practice forums and a monthly timetable and themes for all of
2022 is now in place.
Regular whole-Service events have taken place throughout 2021 with practice improvement themes on
education, training and employment, anti-social behaviour, improving links with the Youth Service,
resettlement and diversity.
Pathfinder now established, with ToR agreed and project plan in place. Leeds Service Manager on the
steering group.

Key objective (2)

Supporting / linked objectives

Closed

Ongoing

Rigorous and effective management oversight of all cases
•
•

Quality of assessment and planning in out of court disposal work improved
Assessment of risk of harm to others analytical and robust, drawing key information together, with the quality
of risk planning and reviewing improved

Progress

Status

Page 27 of 47

Page 138

Sample of out of court disposal
outcomes, LARPs and police
information subject to monthly
scrutiny by YJS and police managers
Recruit additional practice manager to
add to management team capacity

Monthly scrutiny sessions took place until the Covid lockdown in spring 2020. Since then, panel
recommendations which are outside of standard policy are referred to police inspector to oversee.
Controversial outcomes are discussed with OOCD Pathfinder lead. Leeds continues to be represented at
the West Yorkshire Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny panel.
With one of our practice managers taking early retirement, our practice manager team has reduced to
five individuals. We will review our structure and management capacity in in 2022.

Closed

Training for all managers with a focus
on improving quality and impact of
management oversight
All LARPs gate kept by YJS manager
before being submitted

Management oversight training commissioned and delivered by recently retired lead inspector from
HMIP in January 2020.

Closed

Gatekeeping system now in place

Closed

External audit of out of court disposal
cases will include audit of
management oversight processes

Completed as part of National Standards audit in March 2020.

Closed

Dedicated managers meeting in June 2021. Practice managers meetings increased to weekly and include
reviewing individual pieces of practice to increase levels of consistency. Feedback from panel chairs aids
consistency of approach.
Two operational managers now working alongside PM group to develop more consistent approaches
and peer support. Practice managers now meeting on a weekly basis

Closed

This action is waiting for the new Childview update which contains additional reporting capability. The
update was due in August but will finally be available to us in mid-December.

Ongoing

Not
achieved

Additional actions in 2021
Develop a service-wide approach to
gatekeeping practice
Improve support for practice
managers as a group
Develop reporting tool for individual
practitioners to monitor their own
performance in key areas of practice

Closed

Page 28 of 47

Key
objective (3)

Assessment of risk of serious harm to others is analytical and robust, drawing key information together, with the quality of risk planning and
reviewing improved

Supporting / linked
objectives

•
•
•

Quality of assessment and planning in out of court disposal work improved
Rigorous and effective management oversight of all cases
Reduced barriers to delivering safeguarding and educational services to children and young people in the justice system

Page 139

Actions 2020

Progress

Status

Training for all YJS staff on quality of risk
assessment, planning and reviewing

Following the training delivered by former HMIP inspector, all practitioners and managers
attended in depth Assetplus assessment training delivered by externally commissioned training
provider in May/June 2020. Top up training for practitioners and managers focussing on risk
management has been commissioned for late 2021.

Closed

Embed formulation as a mechanism to analyse
risk and to draw key information together

Embedded CAMHS nurses delivering formulation for high risk and ‘stuck’ cases. Key
practitioners have attended ReThink sessions and facilitation training. Formulation principles
now routinely used within the Service. Scale of formulation meetings increasing.

Closed

Review of risk management panel system

New risk panel system, based on Sheffield’s MARP arrangements, has now been introduced.

Closed

Review and revise risk panel policy and
paperwork

YJS risk management policy reviewed and updated in December 2019 and subsequently
reviewed in October 2021. Guidance to staff on risk management panel process provided to staff
in summer 2020 and updated in October 2021.
Training completed by all managers and practitioners by June 2020.

Closed

Completed as part of National Standards audit.

Closed

Refresher training for YJS staff and managers
on completion of Assetplus assessment tool
External audit of risk management in of
statutory cases

Closed

Page 29 of 47

Additional actions in 2021
Commission further refresher training on risk
of serious harm

Refresher training to improvement risk sections in Assetplus commissioned for December /
January 2021/22.

Closed

Further training has been commissioned for youth justice practitioners on using evidence,
research, and developing analytical skills for April 2022.
Review risk panel system to ensure it is fully
sustainable and value for time invested
Risk panel chairs to feed back to practitioners
and PMs to celebrate good practice and to aid
learning and improvement
YJS Service manager to attend the risk panels
for ‘cases of concern’.

Closed
Review was completed in October 2021. Changes in process have been welcomed.
Closed
This routinely happens.
Cases of concern list reviewed monthly at performance improvement meeting. Service manager
now routinely attends and contributes to meetings and can escalate issues if necessary.

Closed

Page 140

Key objective (4)

Reduced barriers to delivering safeguarding and educational services for children and young people in the justice system

Supporting / linked
objectives

•

Youth Justice Partnership have clear overview of practice

Actions 2020

Progress

Status

Proactive use of LSCP’s escalation processes

Conversations ongoing between YJS and external partners to ensure appropriate support is in
place for individual young people. Formulation and revised risk panel system provide forums for
joint planning and decision making and now attended by CSWS / Early Help. Graduated
approach devised to target education officer and educational psychologist support to the right
young people and challenge to schools where appropriate.

Closed

CSWS representative on Leeds Youth Panel

Manager from Early Help now routinely attends Leeds Youth Panel.

Closed

Page 30 of 47

Monthly multi-agency meetings to address
barriers for children missing out on education,
with tracking of cases needing to be escalated

YJS education officers, specialist Virtual School officer and seconded educational psychologist
meet weekly to track cases needing to be escalated and to address barriers for children missing
out on education.

Closed

Management audit on young people with
SEND
Themed YJS Partnership meeting to focus on
reducing barriers to educational services for
children and young people in the justice
system.

Audit completed in November and December 2019.

Closed

Themed discussion took place in two partnership meetings in July 2020 and October 2020.

Closed

Senior managers from YJS, Virtual School, Educational Psychology Service and Vulnerable
Learners continue to meet to discuss barriers to educational services for children the justice
system.

Additional actions in 2021

Page 141

Undertake ‘deep dive’ into the educational
histories of a cohort of young people and
share the findings.

This exercise proved to be more complex than anticipated with historical information not always
available or accessible. Learning from this exercise integrated into report on ETE submitted to
YJS Partnership in December 2021.

Closed

Review the potential for alignment between
VRMP and RMP processes

Review has taken place and concluded that the two processes serve different functions and in
most circumstances need to remain separate. VRMP processes currently being reviewed and YJS
will feed in to that process to try to improve alignment.
Plan has been completed and circulated to YJS staff, with ‘plan on a page’ specifically designed
for YJS practitioners. Plan available to the YJS Partnership Board ETE themed meeting in
December 2021.

Closed

Separate ETE action plan developed

Key objective (5)

Supporting / linked
objectives

Closed

Youth Justice Partnership have clear overview of practice
•

Improved attendance at Youth Justice Partnership meetings

Page 31 of 47

Actions 2020
Quarterly reporting to the YJS Partnership of
progress against actions and outcomes in
relation to this action plan
Partnership overview of National Standards
Audit self-assessment
Themed sections of YJS Partnership meetings
to include attendance by relevant YJS staff and
lead YJS manager
Review Partnership terms of reference

Page 142

Review performance information provided to
YJS Partnership meetings
Additional actions in 2021

Progress

Status
Closed

Completed.
Named Partnership members led on individual National Standards audit themes, alongside lead
manager from YJS.

Closed

Themes adopted in 2020-21 were education, governance, racial disproportionality and Covid 19
arrangements. Meetings now scheduled for 3 hours to allow more discussion. The YJS Plan
2021 – 24 has identified 6 key priorities which will form the themes for future Partnership
meetings.
The review of Partnership Terms of Reference took place January 2020. A further Partnership
Board workshop March 2021 reviewed the vision, practice and cross over with other Board
arrangements
This was reviewed as part of TOR review on January 2020.

Closed

Closed

Closed

Closed
Hold a Partnership Board workshop to improve
effectiveness and review processes

Workshop took place 23rd March 2021
Closed

Review performance data submitted to the
Board

New overview report format presented to the Board meeting in July 2021. In depth data report
focussing on one of the key priorities has been provided for each Partnership Board meeting.
Closed

Lead members of Partnership Board for each
of the 6 identified priority areas
Partnership Board members to lead on
themed sessions with YJS staff to build
interagency understanding on an issue

Partnership Board leads have now been identified
Themed all-YJS sessions have taken place and led by Partnership Board members on anti-social
behaviour, closer working between YJS and Youth Service, safeguarding practices and
developments in children’s social work services, and working with vulnerable learners.

Closed

Page 32 of 47

Chair of YJS Partnership and Lead Member for
Children’s Services to gain better
understanding of key YJS processes

Chair of YJ Partnership Board and lead member for Children’s Services have shadowed risk panel
and youth panel. Chair of YJ Partnership Board has chaired series of multi-agency reviews of
casework with black and mixed heritage boys. A visit to the Youth Justice Centre to look at the
garden work undertaken by young people, meet Skill Mill young people and meet members of
staff has also taken place.

Key objective (6)

Supporting / linked
objectives

Closed

Improved attendance at YJS Partnership meetings
•

YJS Partnership have a clear overview of practice

Page 143

Actions 2020

Progress

Status

Register kept and reported upon

Partners not attending / sending deputies have been individually contacted to encourage future
attendance.

Closed

Partnership membership to be reviewed on an
annual basis

Took place January 2020 and further reviewed at Partnership Board workshop March 2021

Closed

Page 33 of 47

Leeds Youth Justice Service race and identity action plan
2021
What we will do
Why
Organisational culture
Oversight of this
The Board needs to
plan is provided
hold the whole YJ
by the YJS
Partnership in Leeds
Partnership Board to account in
addressing any issues
of disproportionality

How

When

Update November 2021

Who

Race and identity is
one of the six
priorities identified
in the draft 3 year YJ
plan

Already
started
and
ongoing

Priorities in Youth Justice Plan ’21 – ‘24 agreed in Board meeting Feb ’21.
Priority 2 is ‘identify and address racial inequality in the youth justice
system and support cultural cohesion’. Lead Board members responsible
for this priority identified as Julie Longworth and Joedy Greenhough.
Updated race and identity plan also provided to February Board meeting.

Chair of YJS
Partnership
Board

Page 144

New performance report submitted to Partnership Board provides greater
depth of information on ethnicity.
Race and identity was the theme of the Board meeting on 6th May.
Detailed data report and needs analysis provided for this meeting.
Partnership Board very involved in preparation for HMIP thematic
inspection on YJS services to black and mixed heritage boys and part of
the inspection process during week beginning 10th May. Excellent
feedback from inspectors on the impact of the YJS values and Child
Friendly City principles on organisational culture.
Discussion of HMIP thematic inspection report at Partnership meeting in
December ’21. Dedicated YJS briefing on inspection report scheduled for
December ’21 and will include lead Board members.
Needs of black and mixed heritage young people in the justice system
informing wider Children’s Services Equalities Plan.

Page 34 of 47

Ask each manager
to take personal
responsibility for
action across their
team, based on
the lived
experience of
BAME colleagues.

To show that we have
strong leadership and
ensure action takes
place in all teams to
improve everyday
experience for all
BAME colleagues

Through listening to
BAME colleagues
and conversations
with and updates to
all staff

Already
started
and
ongoing

Ongoing discussions in team meetings and in 1 to 1s.

All
managers

Dedicated race and identity managers meeting on 1.2.21, leading to
agreement of managers ‘pledge’ as part of the CCQM. YJS all staff
briefing event took place on 15.4.21 to launch CCQM, the manager’s
pledge, reminder of this plan and the commitment to prioritise
improvements in our approach to race and identity in the draft YJ plan.
Managers undertook ‘identity exercise’ first two weeks of March. Similar
exercise completed in some teams. Manager have completed training on
equality and diversity in May and unconscious bias in January. Film made
by BLM Leeds giving voice to black children on mental health discussed at
managers meeting October ’21. Some team development days in October
’21 focussed on developing anti-racist practice.

Page 145

HMIP feedback that managers have clearly demonstrated commitment to
improving services to black and mixed heritage boys and to improving
organisational understanding of the issues they face. Feedback from
HMIP discussed in team meetings.

Share this action
plan to all staff
and volunteers

Take a zero
tolerance
approach to
racism within the
workplace

To ensure all YJS staff
understand what is
expected of them

To reduce levels of
racism that staff
experience and to
send a strong
message that we will
not tolerate any

By email; in team
meetings and at staff
briefing event

By actively
participating in the
city-wide activities
on this theme. By
tracking success

Dec/Jan
2020/1

Already
started
and
ongoing

Plan has been shared with staff via HoS updates and discussed in team
meetings. Dedicated briefing event to launch CCQM took place on
15.4.21.
YJS weekly email updates have very regular equalities themes, with this
plan frequently referenced.
Managers have undertaken training on unconscious bias and equality and
diversity in January and May 2021. Further training on cultural
competency is booked for summer 2021.

RG

All

Ongoing discussions on race, racism, identity in team meetings.

Page 35 of 47

Undertake a staff
survey focussing
on issues of race
and identity

forms of abuse
towards our staff. To
enable BAME staff to
feel safe within our
organisation
To find out staff views
about what needs to
happen to improve
the experiences of
BAME colleagues and
BAME young people

through the staff
survey

Staff survey
circulated via email.
Findings to be
analysed and
discussed in team
meetings and
managers meetings.

Unconscious bias training delivered to all staff in Jan/Feb 2021. Equality
and diversity training for all staff will be in November ‘21.

Nov/De
c 2020

Page 146

Staff survey completed December 2020 and findings report discussed in
Race and Identity working group, managers meetings and team meetings.
Issues identified include:
• Some staff have experienced racism in the workplace
• Challenging courts
• Developing understanding around on culture and identity
• Importance of young people’s feedback on what we need to
improve on
• Need for guidance on best practice in working with interpreters
• Staff progression seen to be an issue by some respondents
• Profile of management team not representative
• Need good practice examples

RG

These issues are addressed within this plan.

Create more
diverse and
representative
recruitment and
selection panels

To make sure our
panels are a diverse
mix of people which
facilitates fairness in
decisions. It will also
send a positive
message to applicants
to help develop trust

Ask for expressions
of interest amongst
BAME YJOs for
involvement in YJW
recruitment. Involve
BAME Partnership
members when
necessary for more
senior posts.

Already
started
and
ongoing

Staff survey will be repeated December 2021.
Commitment given to the Service that all interview panels will have a
gender and ethnicity mix.

RG

This has been delivered in all recruitment processes at all levels this year.
BAME staff have had the opportunity to participate in PATH trainee
interviews as a development opportunity.
Two black and minority ethnic staff undertaking the foundation degree in
youth justice this year and a further two are completing the effective
practice certificate.

Page 36 of 47

Support our staff
to reflect and
learn about issues
of race,
discrimination,
allyship, disparity

To bring the whole
organisation with us
on our learning
journey

Sharing of reading
material.
Discussions and
exercises in team
meetings. Sharing of
data. Training
events. Logging what
we do and what we
have learnt

Already
started
and
ongoing

All materials shared are stored on Sharepoint in dedicated folder. YJS is
benefitting from corporate materials available. Race and Identity group
gives the opportunity for shared discussion and challenge between
practitioners and managers. Staff survey has been discussed in team
meetings. Unconscious bias training completed by managers and has
been rolled out to all staff during February 2021. Practice guidance from
Children’s Services monthly theme has been shared.

All
managers

Appraisal target for all staff set:

Page 147

We want to build a culturally responsive YJS which promotes equality,
reduces discrimination and enables all of our staff, young people and
families to thrive. In order to achieve this I will
• Introduce young people and their families / carers to the YJS
values as part of their induction
• Inform myself about issues of race, culture, equality, identity and
structural barriers by actively participating in the learning
opportunities available, including learning from colleagues
• Ensure all assessments appropriately explore race, culture,
identity and structural barriers faced by young people
Dedicated briefing to disseminate learning from the inspection report
scheduled for December ’21 and will include input on working with
interpreters, lived experience and privilege.
Log of activity started through the CCQM process.
Ensure YJS values
are widely
remembered,
understood and
used to

To set an ethical
standard for our
work, both for
ourselves and the

Discussion in team
meetings. Review of
induction processes
for young people

January
2021

CCQM process should help with this. Induction processes for young
people reviewed and relaunched in January 2021 and include introduction
to YJS values. Appraisal target includes reference to YJS values.

Operational
managers

Page 37 of 47

benchmark our
work

young people with
whom we work

Work towards the
Cultural Cohesion
Quality Mark

To give us a structure
for our work on this
issue and to keep us
focussed

Page 148

Provide an annual
report to the YJS
Partnership on
race and identity

Create and sustain
active race and
identity working
group

To be held to account
by the YJS
Partnership.
To be guided by the
YJS Partnership

To generate ideas,
feedback, aid
communication and
to work on aspects of
this plan
Data: Explain or Reform
Have confidence
To give us a good
that we have an
understanding of any
accurate data set
areas of
disproportionality

Gaps identified in young people’s induction processes through audit: YJS
practice forums are recommencing, with first identified theme to be
induction processes.
Identify project lead.
Learn from the way
other parts of
Children’s Services
are implementing
this. Implementing
this action plan will
get us most of the
way there!
Last report provided
July 2020, including
details from the
YJB’s
disproportionality
toolkit.

April
2021

Monthly meetings,
reps from all teams
and chaired by the
HoS

Already
started
and
ongoing

Reduce numbers of
unknown ethnicity,
nationality and
language.

Already
started
and
ongoing

Service being supported in CCQM process by Jhardine Farrell.

RG

Dedicated managers meeting to explore CCQM held on 1.2.21.
Dedicated briefing event publicising the pledge 15.4.21.
Ongoing log of activity in place. YJS now in CCQM stage 4.

July
2021

This action plan was shared with Partnership Board at meeting on 10.2.21

RG

Dedicated Partnership Board meeting on race and identity on 6th May,
informed by detailed needs analysis.
Updated plan shared with Partnership on 19th July. Discussion on
thematic inspection report scheduled for Partnership meeting in
December ’21. This updated action plan will be also provided to Board
members.
Group is productive, ongoing and meeting monthly.

RG

Ethnicity and nationality part of quarterly performance report.

RC

Disproportionality toolkit published in March 2021 and discussed by
managers on 21st April.

Page 38 of 47

in relation to race
and identity

Detailed report and needs analysis prepared for HMIP, including data
from a wide range of processes, including access to referrals and
opportunities.
Thematic inspection led to other agencies reviewing their data to identify
disproportionality and develop plans to address it.
This information is now being routinely recorded and was included in the
report prepared for HMIP. A new report and needs analysis will be
prepared in the spring of 2022.

To reduce levels of
disproportionality
within the youth
justice system by
addressing any
disparities we identify

We will report on
ethnicity breakdown
of young people
accessing:
• YJS
intervention
s
• ReConnect
• AQA
• Positive
activities
• Skill Mill

Already
started
and
ongoing

Ensure we know
about the
educational
outcomes and
needs of our
young people

To identify and
address any
disproportionality in
exclusions, school
offer or educational
support to different
groups of young
people
To understand the
extent to which the
workforce of the YJS

Include ethnicity and
nationality in the
annual education
snapshot

October
2021

The theme of the YJS Partnership Board meeting in December ’21 will be
education training and employment and the data set prepared for this
includes an ethnicity breakdown. snapshot due in October 2021.

JB / RC

We will continue our
partnership with
PATH Yorkshire in
order to provide a

Ongoing

YJ Plan 2021 – 24 includes this information.

RG

Page 149

Ensure we know
who is accessing
services and
positive
opportunities

Report on the
ethnic makeup of
the YJS in the
Youth Justice Plan

RC

New PATH trainee started in May ’21. Our last three PATH trainees have
been successful in applying for and obtaining permanent employment in
Page 39 of 47

reflects the ethnicity
of the city

supported
traineeship in youth
justice for BAME
people.

the YJS. Partnership with PATH noted as an exemplar of good practice by
HMIP. YJS has been instrumental in encouraging contact between PATH
Yorkshire and senior managers within CSWS.
There are ongoing conversations about utilising the YJB’s apprenticeship
framework to access the apprenticeship levy to support our partnership
with PATH.

Analyse the needs
of our BAME
young people

To understand what
services should be
delivered to address
that need, and how

Annual needs
analysis from
Childview

April
2021
and
ongoing

We are improving our support of staff undertaking the Foundation Degree
to better prepare them for the YJO role.
Report looking at risk, referrals, Assetplus profiles, flags, breach and
ethnicity prepared in March 2021 in preparation for thematic inspection.
Information was considered by YJS Partnership Board in May 2021. This
will be repeated in the spring on 2022.

RG

Page 150

Summary of key findings prepared for managers to share in team
meetings following the inspection.
Direct work with young people
Introduce all
To build trust with
young people and young people and to
their families to
enable them to hold
our values
us to account
statement when
they first start
working with us
Develop an
understanding of
the impact of
racial trauma on

To better understand
the experiences of
young people and the
impact of those
experiences on their

YJS values are
Ongoing
integrated in with
young people’s
induction processes.
Review to see the
extent to which this
is visible in CV
recording
This should be
Ongoing
evident in our
assessments and
report writing and be
acknowledged in our

Induction process have been reviewed in January 2021 and have been
relaunched to staff.

Team
managers

Practice forum to further embed this work and will take place before the
end of the year.

We will integrate this into our next audit of work with BAME young
people. Last audit took place autumn 2020.

All

Page 40 of 47

our young people
and families

current thoughts and
behaviours

Annual case
review of BAME
young people

To share good
practice and identify
areas for
improvement

Page 151
Listen to what
young people are
telling us about
our Service

In order to
understand what
works and what
needs to be improved

ongoing
interventions with
young people and
their families
First case review
completed in
Nov/Dec 2020 by
matching all YJS
practitioners,
identifying GRT and
mixed ethnicity
young people,
developing audit tool
for them to
complete together.
This exercise will be
reviewed, refined
and repeated
Nov/Dec 2021
Improve numbers of
young people’s exit
questionnaire being
completed.
Design separate plan
around young
people’s voice and
influence.

Jan
2021

Audit completed and findings disseminated to staff. It presents a largely
positive picture.

LS

In depth multi-agency audits completed with 10 black or mixed heritage
boys in April / May ’21. Gaps identified around educational experiences,
SEND needs and access to early help. A theme across agencies around
assessments lacking a proper analysis of culture and identity and its
impact on need.

April
2021

Black and minority ethnic YJS staff have led in consultation exercise with
14 black and mixed heritage young people, involving face to face semi
structured interviews to explore their needs and views of the Service.
Report has been written up and disseminated to staff in May 2021. A very
positive picture.

DL

HMIP thematic inspection included a young people’s consultation.
Positive feedback received, with inspectors saying that it is clear that
young people value the relationships they have with their YJS worker and
depend on them.
Concerns were raised by YJS staff in the staff survey about the potential
for black and minority ethnic young people to be treated unfairly at Court.
In response we conducted a survey of 21 young people who attended
Page 41 of 47

Court (May – August 2021) asking them for their views about their
experiences in Court. The feedback from young people was very positive
about the support of the YJS staff in the Court setting and most felt that
they were treated fairly, though some did not feel able to have a voice or
understand what was happening. The survey has been shared with the
multi-agency advanced problem solving working party working on making
Court processes more child friendly.
Improve our
response to Child
Criminal
Exploitation in the
city

To offer a more
targeted, joined up
prevention service for
young people at risk

Page 152

Participate in
reviews of MACE,
Early Help review to
ensure all partners
are aligned and
working to single
strategy.
Improve
identification of CCE
risks when young
people first enter the
Service

Ongoing

YJS part of city-wide MACE meetings and all teams developing mapping
processes.

JL / SR

CLRs have identified learning for the Service around exploitation. This has
been shared at team meetings by the CLR authors. CLR on ZJ has been
discussed with a range of external partners, including dedicated session at
CSDM meeting.
Team manager for exploitation attended managers meeting on 2.3.21.
Review of young people referred to CSWS with an exploitation risk matrix
identified a significant disproportionality. Exploitation team developing a
plan around this.
Custody reviews now include remanded young people and findings are
shared more widely, including managers meetings.

Improve our
service to young
people resettling
into the
community from
custody

To reduce reoffending
by young people on
release from custody

Implement
resettlement action
plan and
resettlement
promise. Review six
monthly.

Ongoing

Review of resettlement plan took place at managers meeting 21st April.
Resettlement identified as one of six priorities in Youth Justice Plan 21 –
24.

TW

Ongoing case audits of the extent to which we deliver the resettlement
promise.

Page 42 of 47

SWYRC workshop on constructive resettlement will be delivered to the YJS
Partnership in February 2022. Constructive resettlement training for staff
is scheduled for Nov/Dec ’21.
Offer a culturally
sensitive service
to all our young
people

To properly engage
and understand our
young people and
value their
perspective

Page 153
Court
To further
understand our
data.

To identify areas of
disproportionality.

Continue to offer
bespoke service to
Romanian young
people in
partnership with
Catch
Improve links to
third sector
organisations
reaching into specific
communities
Increase our use of
community
mentoring

Ongoing

Embed custody and
remand review
process.

Ongoing

All

Romanian young people’s service developed in partnership with Catch.
We now have a Romanian speaking member of YJS staff.
Youth offer review should enable the city to commission appropriate third
sector providers of youth crime prevention services.

Discuss themes at
WY HoS meeting and
identify potential
next steps.
View and utilise the
next

Links made with third sector community organisations providing
mentoring but this needs to be developed further.

Analysis of custody figures are integrated into the YJS Performance
Information Meeting. A custody review is written to explore background
to each custodial episode. Analysis of themes from recent custody
reviews discussed at managers meeting on 5th May ’21 and presented to
YJS Partnership Board in July 2021.

SR/RG

YJS data now included in corporate equalities plan.
SR
When
publishe
d

Disproportionality toolkit shows us that mixed heritage boys continue to
be over-represented in all parts of the system.

Page 43 of 47

disproportionality
toolkit.

To proactively
address and
positively frame
diversity issues for
the court.

To improve analysis
around
diversity/welfare/trau
ma/exploitation/
offending behaviour
and the content and
language used.

Continue to gather
examples of good
and poor practice
and discuss at court
team meetings.

Page 154

To take findings to
managers’ meetings
and future practice
forums re verbal and
written reports.

To ensure that the
court process is
perceived as fair
and accessible.

To address
disproportionality
at bail/remand
stage.

To act upon young
people’s views and
include their voice.

Ongoing

Recommendations around YOT access to police data on RUI and stop
search in HMIP thematic inspection report followed up with West
Yorkshire Police. RUI information, including age, timeliness and ethnicity
now integrated into the LCJB quarterly data report prepared for West
Yorkshire YOT managers.
Ongoing piece of work within the court team meeting – to remain as
standing item.

SR

Raised in the Enhanced Problem Solving Approach working party on
1.12.20 and 18.3.21 Action points set on learning re court reports.

Spring
2021

Clarification gained from CPS around processes for young people to be
returned from Court for an OOCD.
Issues raised by HMIP thematic have been discussed at LCJB dedicated
meeting May ’21 and within West Yorkshire YOT managers group.
The need for further training around trauma for all YJS staff has been
identified.
Court questionnaire (described above) provides a largely reassuring
picture but identifies an issue around young people’s understanding of
court processes.

Young person’s
survey

DL

SR

Local and national
data shows that there
is a disproportionality
for groups of BAME
young people.

Training input to
magistrates
Bail & remand
protocol has been
updated with recent
agreements around
CCE, strategic
discussions, NRM
processes.

Ongoing

Discussed in Enhancing Problem Solving working group, though very
limited opportunity for YOT input to magistrates training.
Checklist disseminated to managers to aid strategic meeting discussions
05/03/21.

SR

Discussions with Ben Finley re. placements for young people at risk of
remand in custody, to align processes between services. National
shortage of appropriate placements for adolescents acknowledged.

Page 44 of 47

One minute guide re. remand and bail processes produced.
All young people remanded in custody have a custody review to capture
any learning.
Dedicated meeting around bail and remand with key partners took place
June ’21. Agenda item at YJS Partnership meeting July 2021 on bail and
remand issues, with follow-up meeting with WY police.

Page 155

To actively
address instances
where young
people missed
opportunities for
OOCDs.

Awareness of national
disproportionality.

Discussion and
challenge where
necessary

Ongoing

Discussions already happening with police officers and CPS lead about
how best we can work within DPP guidance.

SR

Feedback from HMIP suggests there may be additional opportunities to
divert young people.
Leeds HoS is representing West Yorkshire in YJB funded OOCD pathfinder
and addressing disproportionality is part of the terms of reference for this
project.
Review of OOCD processes has included a change in the LARP template to
promote child-first principles.

To scrutinise
enforcement
processes to
ensure
proportionality.
Partnerships
Work with and
learn from others

To ensure fair process
is applied and there is
no unconscious bias.

Annual review of
breach action,
reporting back
findings to teams

March
2021

Review completed as part of the BAME needs analysis prepared for HMIP.
No disproportionality identified.

RC

To draw on the
expertise, support
and resources of
partner organisations,

By looking at what
other YOTs and
authorities do; and
learning from third

Already
started
and
ongoing

We are benefitting from training and seminars provided corporately as
well as regionally and nationally.

SR

Page 45 of 47

locally, regionally and
nationally

sector organisations
with specific
knowledge or
expertise in this area

HMIP thematic inspection has shone a spotlight on disproportionality for
mixed heritage young people across the partnership. Specific learning
identified through multi-agency audits.
HMIP thematic published in October ’21. Dedicated YJS briefing meeting
scheduled for December ’21. YJS HoS will attend HMIP convened
roundtable to consider the issues arising from the report.
Our volunteers may be embedded in their communities and can be a
source of expertise as to what might be needed. We will find ways of
working with our volunteers on this agenda. YJS volunteers have cofacilitated a volunteers training event on working with interpreters,
privilege and lived experience. This event will be replicated for YJS staff in
December 2021.

Page 156

Build strong local
partnerships with
local third sector

Develop greater
understanding
about the links
between
ethnicity,
exclusion and
criminalisation

To integrate young
people and their
families into
appropriate and
sustainable local
services
To ensure all children
benefit from the
advantages that
education attendance
and attainment can
provide

Identify which
organisations have
services targeting
our young people
and make proactive
links.
Work in partnership
with partners to
ensure review of
AIPs and
improvements to
services for
vulnerable learners
address
disproportionality

Already
started
and
ongoing.

Already
started
and
ongoing

We are in contact with a group of concerned parents / community
members around issues of serious youth violence / exploitation and this
may develop into a specific workstream
Links made with third sector community organisations providing
mentoring but this needs to be developed further.

Regular meetings between YJS HoS, lead YJS manager for education and
senior managers in specialist education services to develop ways forward.
Education identified as one of six priority areas in Youth Justice Plan ’21 –
’24.

HH

Area
operational
managers

RG with YJS
Partnership
Board
members

Vulnerable learners strategy for the city has been developed.
Themed YJS Partnership Board meeting planned for December ’21.
Page 46 of 47

Page 157

Improve
understanding of
the ‘journey of
the child’ for overrepresented
children in the YJS
Improve
identification of
young people at
risk of
involvement in
gangs / organised
crime / serious
youth violence in
order to target
improved support
offer

To improve
prevention and
diversion services for
over-represented
children in the YJS
To divert young
people away from
involvement in violent
and organised crime

issues, particularly
for black and mixed
heritage boys
Undertake multiagency audit of black
and mixed heritage
boys in the HMIP
thematic inspection
sample
Improved mapping
arrangements
Build on the Leeds
VVU report to
develop multiagency partnership
and city-wide
systems around SYV

Audit days took place for 20th and 27th April and learning shared with YJS
Partnership Board on 6th May.

Chair of
Board

Mapping meetings now happening, but need to be more systematic and
better resourced.

JL

VVU report will be discussed at the Safer Leeds Exec which will identify
next steps.
YJS delivering on the A and E navigator, offering targeted support to
young people presenting in health settings with injuries caused by
violence.

Page 47 of 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service and
functions, both current and proposed have given proper consideration to equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the process
and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines relevance for
all new and revised strategies, policies, services and functions. Completed at the earliest
opportunity it will help to determine:
 the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration.
 whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion and integration is being/has already
been considered, and
 whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate: Children and Families

Service area: Youth Justice Service

Lead person: Rebecca Gilmour

Contact number: 0113 3782038

1. Title: Leeds Youth Justice Plan
Is this a:
Strategy / Policy

Service / Function

x

Other

If other, please specify This is the statutory Youth Justice Plan for Leeds for the next
three years.

2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening

Local authorities have a legal duty under Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
produce a Youth Justice Plan that shows how they will provide and fund youth justice services.
Leeds Youth Justice Plan 2021 -24 sets out our ambitions and priorities for the next three years,
including arrangements to ensure that we continue to deliver our successful Youth Justice
Partnership in the city. It provides the detail as to how Leeds Youth Justice Service intends to
deliver services to improve outcomes for children, families and communities through delivery of
six key priorities:
 Reducing the number of children and young people entering or re-entering the
criminal justice system
 Identifying and addressing racial inequality in the youth justice system and
supporting cultural cohesion
EDCI Screening

Updated February 2011

Page 159

1

 Doing the simple things better
 Reducing serious youth violence
 Attendance, achievement and attainment
 Reducing custody and positive resettlement children and young people from
custody

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
All the council’s strategies/policies, services/functions affect service users, employees or
the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a greater/lesser
relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and any other relevant
characteristics (for example socio-economic status, social class, income, unemployment,
residential location or family background and education or skills levels).
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
 Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and
harassment
 Advancing equality of opportunity
 Fostering good relations

Yes
x

No

x
x

x
x

If you have answered no to the questions above please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and;
 Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion
and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
 Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.
4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and integration
EDCI Screening

Updated February 2011

Page 160

2

If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
 How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
The Youth Justice Plan indicates how services for young people who offend will be
delivered over the next three years. It includes our ‘values’ which are the principles
which underpin the work of the Youth Justice Service. These include the ambition to be
child-friendly and our belief that young people in the justice system are children first and
offenders second. We recognise that many of the children and young people with whom
we work are amongst the most disadvantaged in the city, with many having learning or
communication difficulties, experiencing multiple trauma, poverty and victimisation, with a
disproportionate number having care experience and having black and minority ethnic
heritage. Over 80% of our young people are boys. Issues of equality, diversity,
cohesion and integration are referenced throughout the plan since these principles are
central to what we do as a youth justice partnership.
Our relationships with young people and their parents/carers are restorative and we try to
with WITH people, keeping them as fully informed as possible and involving them in
decisions which concern them, to foster resilience and independence. As a multi-agency
partnership, consultation and joint working is key to the YJS methodology. Public safety
is the principle aim of what we do and through our dedicated victim liaison officers we
keep the victim’s voice clear in the work we do with young people. The Youth Justice
Plan contains information about the young people we work with and the Youth Justice
Partnership Board receives quarterly performance reports which indicate trends, activity
and profile.
 Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
The six priorities as outlined above are designed to address equalities issues; ethnic
disproportionality within the youth justice system, the impact of custody (which is
disproportionately experienced by boys and by mixed heritage young people), ensuring
all our young people benefit from an individualised education, training or employment
offer; ensuring that our partnership does all it can to reduce numbers of young people
entering into and staying within the youth justice system and addressing the complex
issues behind serious youth violence in our city (which disproportionately affects boys
from specific parts of the city and specific ethnic groups). Delivering on these priorities
will improve outcomes for children and young people in the justice system or at risk of
offending and will have a positive impact on the communities in which they live.
 Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)
EDCI Screening

Updated February 2011

Page 161

3

In order to deliver on the priorities identified in the Youth Justice Plan, each priority will
have its own action plan and lead Youth Justice Partnership Board member. Board
meetings will be themed to provide detailed feedback on progress regarding individual
priorities and a detailed data set will be provided. The annual refresh of the plan will
provide a formal review structure to identify areas of good progress and for improvement.

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:
Date to complete your impact assessment
Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)
6. Governance, ownership and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
Joel Hanna
Head of Service, Children 22.10.21
Looked After
7. Publishing
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to equality and diversity
has been given. If you are not carrying out an independent impact assessment the
screening document will need to be published.
Please send a copy to the Equality Team for publishing
Date screening completed
Date sent to Equality Team
Date published
(To be completed by the Equality Team)

EDCI Screening

Updated February 2011

Page 162

4

Agenda Item 9
Report author: Simon Hodgson
Tel: 0113 3789662

Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)
Date: 12th January 2022
Report of: Director of Communities, Housing and Environment
Report to: Council
Will the decision be open for call in?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?

☐ Yes ☒ No

What is this report about?
Including how it contributes to the city’s and council’s ambitions



Following consideration of this report at Executive Board in November 2021 this report
presents to Council the appended Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24) for
adoption as a Council Policy.
The report sets out the strategic direction of Leeds community safety partnership, the Safer
Leeds Executive, which has responsibility for holding partners to account in keeping
communities in Leeds safe by tackling crime and disorder.



The Plan focuses on three strategic outcomes:
 Keeping people safe from harm,
 Preventing and reducing offending and
 Creating safer and stronger communities



The Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24) will replace the Safer Leeds
Strategy 2018-21 and forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. As such, its
adoption is in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework procedure rules and was
considered by Executive Board who referred the Plan to Full Council for formal approval.
This Plan will contribute directly to the Best Council Plan (2020-2025) specifically in relation
to the Safe, Strong Communities element and the overarching ambition that: ‘People in
Leeds are safe and feel safe in their homes, in the streets and the places they go’



Recommendations
a) Council is recommended to approve and adopt the Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds
Plan (2021-24) as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.

Page 163

Why is the proposal being put forward?
1

The Safer Leeds Executive has a statutory requirement to prepare and implement a Local
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy. Locally, this strategy will be known as the ‘Safer,
Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan’.

2

The Plan sets out the overarching ambition of the Partnership: ‘People in Leeds are safe
and feel safe in their homes, in the streets and the places they go’.
The Strategic Priorities are:
 Keep people safe from harm (victim)
 Prevent & reduce offending (offender)
 Create safer, stronger communities (location)
The proposed Shared Priorities are:











ASB and Public Order
Domestic Violence and Abuse
Hate Crime
Illicit Drugs and Substance Use
Offending Behaviours
Organised Crime and Street Gangs
Exploitation and Radicalisation
People with multiple needs (Inc. Rough Sleepers and Sex Workers)
Violence and Sexual Crime (Inc. Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking)
Violence Against Women and Girls

3

The partnership’s strategic priorities of ‘victim, offender and location’ denotes a universal,
targeted, and specialised approach to addressing community safety concerns, regardless
of the issue, with a recognition that to achieve the desired outcomes the emphasis must be
on ‘people and place’.

4

As a partnership, we are ambitious and will look to maximise all opportunities to apply and
embed the newly formed, Safer, Stronger Communities approach, which places a greater
emphasis on early identification, prevention, and intervention, so we can be responsive to
local needs by working with communities before a crisis point and thus prevent future
victimisation and offending.

5

The Safer, Stronger Communities approach will guide strategic thinking and operational
activity across all the shared priorities, so we can seek to address the impact of inequalities
experienced by some members of our communities, who may be more affected by
incidents and/or crimes, and thereby:
 Strengthen the safer and stronger elements of partnership working,
 Address crime and anti-social behaviour to keep people safe from harm, and;
 Be responsive to local needs, to create thriving, resilient communities that promotes
respect.

6

The approach is based around a ‘people and place’ approach encompassing all aspects of
lifestyle and identity. This includes neighbourhoods where people live and the places they
go, but also communities of interest and groups with which a person will interact and can
be applied at the following levels: Individual/family, community/ neighbourhood, city-wide/
strategic.

7

Fundamental to this approach will be connecting the wider social and economic
determinants that impact on safer and stronger communities and the independences and
cross-cutting nature and issues of community safety, regardless of the presenting crime.
We will look to do this through effective partnership collaboration with communities and
through joint work with local connected boards (e.g., Health and Wellbeing Board, Leeds
Page 164

Safeguarding Children Partnership, Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board) and key West
Yorkshire boards, including the West Yorkshire Combined Authority, and our wider valued
and trusted voluntary and community sector.
8

Much has been achieved over the last three years across the community safety agenda,
including reductions in some recorded crimes and real positive changes in the way victims
are supported and encouraged to report crimes but we are not complacent, and we know
there is always room for improvement. The pandemic has shone a light on a host of
inequalities and through this new Plan we will strengthen our commitment to work with, and
for, communities. As a partnership we recognise there is more we can collectively do to
keep people safe from harm, prevent and reduce offending and create safer and stronger
neighbourhoods.

9

From listening to our communities, we have heard how the impact of crime on individuals,
families and neighbourhoods can be devastating and we understand how the fear of crime
can affect people in their homes, on the streets and the places they go. Some communities
will experience crime and anti-social behaviour because of who they are, or where they
live, and some may not feel comfortable in coming forward and reporting it. In turn, peoples’
experiences and perceptions can have a detrimental impact on their lives. At the same time
we know the nature and type of crime is changing and evolving.

10 As a compassionate city, preventing victimisation and supporting people harmed by crime
is central to the city’s work, as is tailoring our response to individual needs. We will listen to,
be informed by, and work with people with lived experience to shape services. We will
place a collective emphasis on meeting the needs and demands of people in this dynamic
and diverse city, as well as preventing future victimisation and offending, ensuring we strive
to make every contact count. Everyone has the right to live in a safe, clean and tolerant
society and everyone has a responsibility to behave in a way that respects this right.
11 The issues and challenges which the Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan seeks to
address are being put forward for formal approval by Leeds City Council.

What impact will this proposal have?
Wards affected:
Have ward members been consulted?

☒ Yes

☐ No

12 The Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021- 24) sets out the strategic direction of
Safer Leeds Executive and will guide the work of the partnership and its work with and for
communities across the city.
What consultation and engagement has taken place?
13 Safer Leeds has a statutory requirement to produce an annual Joint Strategic Assessment
(JSA) to assess the scale and nature of crime and disorder in the city and to identify
medium to long term issues affecting community safety. The JSA includes analysis of a
range of both quantitative and qualitative data from across the partnership. This information
and intelligence identified several reoccurring themes to shape strategic thinking. Extensive
consultation has taken place to inform the development of the draft Plan 2021-24. This has
included a Joint Strategic Assessment of the scale and nature of crime and disorder in the
city to identify medium to long term issues affecting community safety.
Page 165

14 Evidence from public consultation via the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner was
collated along with intelligence from residents accessing Community Safety services, such
as those delivered by Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team. This information has been used
to inform the contents of the strategy. Similarly, a range of Outcomes Based Accountability
sessions held with operational professionals and service users during the last 18 months
has provided further evidence to inform the proposed approach.
15 In addition, this Plan was opened to public consultation during September and October
2021. This also included a direct request for feedback from the equality hubs within the
City Council.
16 As part of due diligence and scrutiny, at its remote consultative meeting on 15th July 2021
the Environment, Housing and Communities Scrutiny Board received early sight of the draft
Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24). On the 23rd September, in
accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework procedure rules, the draft Plan was
presented to Scrutiny Board (Environment, Housing & Communities) and supported as part
of the formal consultation, prior to proceeding to the Executive Board for its consideration.
What are the resource implications?
17 Finally, partners and representatives from a range of stakeholders (Leeds City Council;
West Yorkshire Police; West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service; National Probation Trust;
Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group, the Voluntary and Community Sector, West
Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company; HM Prison Service, Leeds Children’s Trust
Board; Leeds Health and Welling Board, Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board; and the Leeds
Safeguarding Children Partnership have helped shape the new Plan.
18 Since coming to Office in November 2012, the West Yorkshire Police and Crime
Commissioner has provided funding to Safer Leeds on an annual basis to support the
partnership's work. This has been in line with the West Yorkshire Policing and Crime Plan
with an emphasis on ‘people and place’. Agreement has been made to continue to
passport the Community Safety Fund to local government partners for an additional year, at
the same level as 2020/21, demonstrating a commitment to the strong partnership working
on this agenda. This year sees transitional arrangements between the Office of the West
Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner and the West Yorkshire Combined Authority’s
new Mayoral arrangements. This was agreed prior to the development of the new Safer,
Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24).
19 Accountability for the delivery of the funds sits with the Safer Leeds Executive, through the
delegated authority of the Director of Communities, Housing and Environment, who are
responsible for ensuring value for money and excellence in service delivery. The table
below outlines the proposed local funding allocation for 2021/22.

Page 166

Programme of
Activity

Community Safety Fund

Community
Safety - Safer
Leeds

Creating safer, stronger communities (location)

DIP Drug and
Alcohol
Programme

Keeping people safe from harm (victim)

Youth
Offending
Service

Preventing and reducing offending (offender)

Funding
Allocation
2021/22
£398,180

 Supporting the Front Door Safeguarding Hub
 Delivery of a domestic violence campaign
 Delivery and dissemination of lessons learnt from the
DHR reviews
 Support the prevention of nuisance and anti-social
behaviour and Reduce the occurrence and impact of
hate crime through the Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour
Team (LASBT)
 Providing extra capacity to support intelligence
products to inform the deployment of resources (via
the Safer Leeds Intelligence Team)
 Mental Health additional provision
 Prevent domestic violence and abuse for those at risk
 Implement partnership referral processes and
pathways and approaches to tackle domestic violence
and abuse
 Enhanced security provision via LeedsWatch (CCTV)
£679,712

 Reduce the aggravating effects of alcohol and drugs
on crime and ASB
 Support delivery of Integrated Offender Management

 Breaking cycles of offending
 Early identification and interventions for those at risk
of becoming involved in criminality
Total

£198,067

£1,275,959

20 The table below outlines the funding allocations to local priority areas of work for the
Community Safety Programme
Community Safety - Safer Leeds
Front Door Safeguarding Hub

£128,128

Publicity Campaigns

£10,000

Domestic Violence

£94,000

Intelligence Support

£38,000

Anti-Social Behaviour

£50,000

Locally determined priorities

£78,052

Total

£398,180

21 The Community Safety Fund has now transferred to the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority Mayoral arrangements and will be reviewed for the year 2022/23. No further
Page 167

information is available on the timescales for this process, but it is likely to align with the
development and approval of the new Police and Crime Plan for West Yorkshire.
22 A process is in place to facilitate effective budget management and reporting to the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority on a quarterly basis.
23 Resources are in place to progress activity against the delivery of the strategy. Efficiencies
of £382k have been delivered over the last three years against the net managed budget for
Safer Leeds.
24 Further efficiency savings have resulted from the work to bring both Safer Leeds and the
Communities Team together, to form one new service area the: “Safer and Stronger
Communities Team”. This coordinated service will build on existing relationships to
contribute to the priorities within the new Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan, to take
forward the plan, share examples of best practice, review areas of connectivity between
teams and to ultimately provide better outcomes for the people of Leeds.
What are the legal implications?
25 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. The matter has been
designated a key decision however it is not eligible for Call-in. The Safer, Stronger
Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-2024) will replace the existing Safer Leeds Strategy, which
features within the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. As a document within the
Budget and Policy Framework, the Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-2024)
is not open to the Call-in process, as Para 5 of the Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rules provides that “The power to call in decisions does not extend to….
Decisions made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules;”.
What are the key risks and how are they being managed?
26 National changes to government legislation and prioritisation have bought both challenges
and opportunities for the city, which the Plan aims to address.
27 Several strategic operational boards are in place, as part of the governance and
accountability framework of Safer Leeds, to manage both the risks and threats presented
within the Plan as well as provide flexibility to adjust to any new national priorities and/ or
emerging local issues. In addition, connections to other significant boards in Leeds and
across West Yorkshire will be maintained and strengthened.









Anti-Social behaviour Board
Domestic Violence and Abuse Board
Hate Crime Strategic Board
Reducing Reoffending Board
Serious & Organised Crime Board
Strategic Sex Working Board
Street Support Improvement Board
Safer Leeds: City Centre Board

28 There are potential risks associated with budget reductions and these have been managed
ensuring value for money and by reviewing existing service delivery.

Page 168

Does this proposal support the council’s three Key Pillars?
☒ Inclusive Growth

☒ Health and Wellbeing

☐ Climate Emergency

29 This plan supports the Health and Wellbeing Strategy’s outcome of: ‘People will live in
healthy, safe, and sustainable communities’. Specifically, it links directly to the safer,
stronger communities active application of working with and for communities, families, and
individuals, so people are safe and feel safe in their homes, in the streets, and the places
they go. The impact of crime and disorder has a direct correlation with people’s health and
wellbeing, experienced by some members of the communities and different population
groups.
30 This plan also supports the Inclusive Growth pillar and the ambition for Leeds to have a
strong economy within a compassionate city. Specifically, it links directly to the safer,
stronger communities emphasis on early identification, prevention, and intervention, so as a
city we can be responsive to local needs by working with individuals, families and
communities before a crisis point and prevent future victimisation and offending.

Options, timescales and measuring success
a) What other options were considered?
31 No other option was considered in producing a strategy as Safer Leeds has a legislative
requirement to do this based on the locally produced Joint Strategic Assessment and
consultation.

b) How will success be measured?
32 A performance, accountability framework is in place to monitor and track progress against
outcomes, performance indicators and activity, including regular highlight reports from the
Chairs of the respective Boards.
33 Safer Leeds Executive has also agreed to produce on annual report as part of its review,
during this cycle, including an annual Joint Strategic Assessment, an intelligence product
on risk, threat, and harm of the pertinent issues.
c) What is the timetable for implementation?
34 The Safer, Communities: Leeds Plan will be in place for the next 3 years.

Appendices
35 Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)
36 Equality, Diversity, Cohesion, and Integration Screening
37 Safer Leeds Community Safety Strategy 2018-21 ~ Annual Update 2020/2021

Background papers
38 None

Page 169

This page is intentionally left blank

`

SAFER, STRONGER
COMMUNITIES
Leeds Plan: 2021-2024

1

Page 171

Foreword ............................................................................................................................................................3
About this Plan ...................................................................................................................................................4
Approach ............................................................................................................................................................5
Shared Priorities .................................................................................................................................................6
Key Deliverables .................................................................................................................................................7
Implementation Framework............................................................................................................................ 10
Focus on our Strategic Outcomes .................................................................................................................... 11

#TogetherLeeds
#BeSafeFeelSafe
Safer, Stronger Communities
2

Page 172

Foreword
Welcome to the Leeds Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan, which sets out our statement of intent and
what we will collectively focus on to achieve better community safety outcomes.
Much has been achieved over the last three years, including reductions in recorded crime and real positive
changes in the way victims are supported and encouraged to report crimes but we are not complacent, and
we know there is always room for improvement. The pandemic has shone a light on a host of inequalities
and through this new Leeds plan we will strengthen our commitment to work with and for communities. As
apartnership we recognise there is more we can collectively do to keep people safe from harm, prevent and
reduce offending, and create safer and stronger neighbourhoods.
From listening to our communities, we have heard how the impact of crime on individuals, families and
neighbourhoods can be devastating and we understand how the fear of crime can affect people in their
homes, on the streets and the places they go. Some communities will experience crime and anti-social
behaviour because of who they are, or where they live and some may not feel comfortable in coming forward
and reporting it, this is not right. In turn, peoples’ experiences and perceptions can have a detrimental impact
on their lives. At the same time, we know the nature and type of crime is changing and evolving; cyber related
crime has become more prevalent, and there are a multitude of platforms that are now used to facilitate,
exploit, and groom people. There are young people and adults in this city who are being abusedor exploited
into criminality.
As a compassionate city, preventing victimisation and supporting people harmed by crime is central to our
work, as is tailoring our response to individual needs. We will listen to, be informed by, and work with people
with lived experience, to shape services.
Within the plan we outline our shared priorities; all have a ‘victim, offender, location’ basis and all are strongly
connected, as one impacts on the other both directly and indirectly. Our ‘safer, stronger communities’ model
will place a greater emphasis on early identification, prevention and intervention so wecan be responsive to
local needs and work with others to create thriving, resilient communities that promoterespect. We will place
a collective emphasis on meeting the needs and demands of people in this dynamic and diverse city, as well
as preventing future victimisation and offending; ensuring we strive to make every contact count. Everyone
has the right to live in a safe, clean, and tolerant society and everyone has a responsibility to behave in a way
that respects this right.
Our approach denotes both universal and targeted approaches to addressing community safety themes,
regardless of the issue, with a recognition that to achieve the desired outcomes, emphasis has to be on both
‘People’ and ‘Place’.
Finally, we would like to thank all staff and volunteers across the partnership for your continued commitment
and passion to serve the people and communities of Leeds. We are truly a compassionate and courageous
city and you have demonstrated this during the pandemic.
We are therefore pleased to introduce the Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan and ask you to consider
your offer in supporting and securing better community safety outcomes for the people of Leeds.
We are firmly believe we are stronger when we work together.
Kind regards
Councillor Debra Coupar
Deputy Leader of Leeds City Council and
Executive Member for Resources

James Rogers
Chair of Safer Leeds Executive and
Director of Communities, Housing
and Environment: Leeds City Council

3

Page 173

About this Plan
This Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan sets out the strategic direction of Safer Leeds Executive and
willbe used to hold the partnership to account for keeping communities safe.
Safer Leeds is the city’s statutory Community Safety Partnership, responsible for tackling crime, and disorder;
we have a strong record of partnership working, which was embedded as part of the Crime and Disorder Act
(1998) and subsequent legal enhancements. Safer Leeds aims to serve all members of its communities, giving
due regard to implications for different groups to ensure people are not excluded or disadvantaged because
of Age, Disability, Gender, Race, Religion and Belief, or Sexual Orientation.
Our Ambition
To be the best city in the UK with the best community safety partnership
and services:
 Working with and for communities, families and individuals, so
people are safe and feel safe in their homes, in the streets, and the
places they go
 Developing a shared sense of the assets of individuals and
communities, with a focus on building self-reliance and resilience
 Getting to the root causes of issues, developing effective solutions
and creating new ways of working to enhance locality working
 Building real opportunities so there is potential for people and
places to prosper
Our Strategic Outcomes
As the end result, we want to:
I.
II.
III.

Keep people safe from harm,
Prevent and reduce offending and
Create safer and stronger communities

Accountability
The Safer Leeds Executive has a statutory requirement to:
 Regular engage and consult with the community
 Prepare and implement a Community Safety Plan
 Produce Joint Strategic Assessments
 Ensure information sharing arrangements
 Produce a strategy to reduce reoffending
 Be responsible for establishing Domestic Homicide Reviews and applying learning
 Be responsible for establishing Anti-Social Behaviour Reviews and applying learning
Recognising no single agency can address these complex risks, threats, and harms alone, the following are
committed to working collectively through the Safer Leeds Executive, in line with agreed terms of reference
and information sharing protocols: - Leeds City Council, West Yorkshire Police, Leeds NHS, West Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Service, West Yorkshire Probation Services, HMP Service, and the Voluntary & Community
Sector.

4

Page 174

Challenge and Change
As a partnership, we are ambitious and look to maximise all opportunities, review and refresh where needed,
and apply lessons learnt, to:
 Apply a Safer, Stronger Communities model which places a greater emphasis on early identification,
prevention, and intervention, so we can be responsive to local needs by working with communities before
a crisis point, preventing future victimisation and offending.
 Deliver results efficiently and cost effectively, with clear accountability. We will use this plan to direct
resources and activity, working with and for the people of Leeds to achieve better community safety
outcomes.
 Work jointly with local connected boards (e.g. Health and Wellbeing Board, Leeds Safeguarding Children
Partnership, Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership), and key West Yorkshire boards, including the West
Yorkshire Combined Authority, on shared priorities.
 Address the impact of inequalities experienced by some members of our communities, who may be more
affected by incidents and/ or crimes.
 Undertake an annual review and refresh of our delivery plans.

Approach
The Safer, Stronger Communities model will guide strategic thinking and operational activity across all the
shared priorities, so we can:
 Strengthen the safer and stronger elements of partnership working
 Address crime and anti-social behaviour to keep people safe from harm, and
 Be responsive to local needs, to create thriving, resilient communities that promotes respect
When developing, implementing, and reviewing delivery plans against the shared priorities, respective
boardswill consider:
Identification
Early
Recovery and
and Prevention
Intervention
Resilience
and Responses
Using
information to
inform and
prompt
appropriate
responses

Working in
partnership in
a flexible
manner
tailored to local
need

Working with
individuals,
families and
groups

So people or
communities
do not become
involved or
affected by
crime and
disorder in the
first place

Ensure issues
do not escalate
further and/ or
increase risk

Helping people
to recover
building
resilient
communities
and deal with
future risk

The model is based around a PEOPLE and PLACE approach encompassing all aspects of lifestyle and identity.
This includes neighbourhoods where people live and the places they go, but also communities of interest and
groups with which a person will interact and can be applied at the following levels:
 Individual/ Family…Community/ Neighbourhood…City-wide/ Strategic
Fundamental to this model will be connecting the wider social and economic determinants that impact on
safer and stronger communities, through effective partnership collaboration.
5

Page 175

Shared Priorities
We have listened to our communities, consulted stakeholders and through the 2021 Strategic Intelligence
Assessment identified a number of priority themes and issues affecting safety and feelings of safety, for
individuals, neighbourhoods, and communities. Listed here are the core community safety shared priorities
that negatively impact on people and places. We will focus on these priorities, flexing to respond to need and
demands ensuring we are intelligence led and agile in our partnership response.
Shared Priorities

What are the key issues?

ASB and Public Order





Victims/ witnesses who suffer from the impacts of ASB
Youth nuisance and disorder
Communities where there is high prevalence of incidents

Domestic Violence
and Abuse



Victims/ witnesses of traumatic incidents, including young people
living in abusive households and repeat victims
High risk offenders

Hate Crime




Impact on victims’ and communities’ feelings of safety
Rises in tensions and incidents following local/ national/
international events

Illicit Drugs and
Substance Use




Impacts of illicit drug markets on communities and families
Complex drug supply networks

Offending Behaviours




Offender management and repeat offending
Use of violence/ intimidation, including targeting associates and
families of individuals
Communities where there is high prevalence of offending





Organised Crime and
Street Gangs





Community impacts of organised criminality
Individuals at risk of becoming involved in organised criminality, or
who have or may potentially be targeted
Street gang violence

Exploitation and
Radicalisation





Online radicalisation, including lone actors
Instability in other countries and communities
Exploitation/ trafficking of adults and families, and criminal and
sexual exploitation of children

People with multiple
needs (Street Users
and Sex Workers)



Individuals with highly complex needs, including historical trauma,
mental health, and substance misuse
Specific street user groups: Begging, Rough Sleeping, Sex working

Violence and Sexual
Crime









Victims and witnesses of traumatic incidents
Repeat and organised offending, especially on street offending,
youth violence, and knife crime
Night Time Economy related Violent and Sexual Offences,
Neighbourhoods/ communities with high prevalence of offences

These priorities interrelate and interlink with wider social and economic determinants, such as impacts of
poverty and deprivation, mental health and chronic effects of trauma, substance use, family/peer
relationships, education, housing and homelessness, employment, and community/ neighbourhood design.
All have a potential ‘Victim-Offender-Location’ basis, and all provide clarity for defining and measuring
outcomes.
6

Page 176

Key Deliverables
Safer Leeds will continue to improve current core services, but we will also focus on programmes and projects
that help us move closer to our desired strategic outcome. At the end of the yearly cycle a review of what
has been achieved and what needs improving will inform Yr2 key deliverables.
Ascribed to
relevant Silver
Board

Focus on Change YR1 Key Deliverables
ASB and Public Order

 Prevention and Early Intervention ~ enhance operational working between Leeds Anti-Social behaviour Team and
Youth Justice Service by using an intelligence led approach to identify, support and divert young people away
from the Criminal Justice System. Examine and improve referral pathways at an early stage to address factors
which contribute to anti-social behaviour, working closely with existing programmes, linking in with earlyHelp
Hubs.
 Targeted Responses ~ reduce the impact of anti-social behaviour on communities by targeting ‘hotspot’ areas.
Facilitate and support co-ordinated, multi-agency approaches at a local level and increase targeted operations
with Safer Stronger Communities partners during peak months.
 Problem Solving ~ further develop and embed community-based applications to address ASB, enhancing work
with targeted communities through a multi-agency approach to reduce risk, threat and harm. For example:
i) address concerns around motorcycle/ quad bike related anti-social behaviour, ii) address arson and nuisance
fires, through the ‘Enough is Enough’ campaign

Domestic Violence and Abuse
 Complete a local comprehensive needs assessment and a refreshed DVA strategy as part of the new statutory
requirements ~ specifically working with housing providers to ensure timely availability and suitable
accommodation and place-based support for DVA victims.
 Actively engage with providers of services to children and young people who are living in abusive households ~
to fully recognise them as victims in their own right and provide the right support at the right time.
 Enhance the offer of support to perpetrators of domestic abuse through service improvement, workforce
development and identifying opportunities to develop specialist projects ~ to ensure more perpetrators are
supported and the risk/ harm caused by them is reduced.

Hate Crime
 Increasing the reporting of hate crime by making it easier for those affected to report, and increasing victim
confidence ~ Improve third party reporting in schools and explore opportunities to increase and strengthen hate
crime reporting centres in a range of community-based settings, educational establishments, and businesses; by
focussing on the settings that have proven to be high-risk environments for hate crime
 Preventing hate crime by tackling the beliefs and attitudes that can lead to hate ~ Undertake city wide targeted
campaigns in line with #LeedsNoPlaceForHate, including messages around ‘Upstanders not Bystanders’, urging
people to stand with those who have experienced hate crime, as well as providing practical tips on reporting,
creating a sense of reassurance, solidarity and unity
 Improving support for the victims of hate crime by ensuring effective provision is available at the time of reporting
~ Promoting the Community Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (Community MARAC) so that agencies
supporting hate crime victims are encouraged to make appropriate referrals to access the right support and
working with the CJS and Victim Support to ensure victims of hate crime are adequately supported throughtheir
involvement with the criminal justice process.

7

Page 177

Drugs and Substance Use
 Maintain the high performing drug and alcohol treatment service in the city, taking a blended approach to service
delivery i.e., a combination of remote and face-to-face working, tailored to individual need.
 Continue to explore innovative, evidence-based approaches and incorporate them into the service, as appropriate
~ including developing partnership working to expand promotion of current, and future, drug and alcohol
campaigns and conduct the preparatory work for the new drug and alcohol treatment contract.

Offending Behaviours
 Working collaboratively with the criminal justice services and healthcare/ wellbeing services to support the
rehabilitation and resettlement of adult offenders ~ Continue to support and enhance liaison and diversion and
those serving under 12 months custodial sentences, and delivering community based rehabilitation programmes.
 Work with the Leeds Youth Justice Partnership to implement a local Youth Justice Plan to deliver services to
improve outcomes for young people, families, and communities.
 Develop a Female Offender Plan for Leeds, in line with the Home Office strategy to ensure female offenders and
at-risk women are being supported in the community, providing gender-informed approach to individual needs,
through partnership arrangements.

Organised Crime and Street Gangs
 Reinvigorate and refocus partnership capacity to tackle organised crime groups in the city, in line with Operation
Precision and the 4Ps Plan (Prepare: Improve victim protection and support Pursue: Disrupt and prosecute
perpetrators Prevent: Harm to people Protect: Vulnerable people and increase resilience)
 Work in partnership to develop the early identification and intervention agenda to reduce youth violence through
a collaborative approach; delivering universal and targeted services, based on intelligence led work in localities
of concern.
 In line with addressing Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking plans, continue to align activity around the 4Ps plan
(Prepare-Pursue-Prevent-Protect) by i) Raising public awareness and workforces development; ii) Increase
intelligence sharing to identify more victims and prosecute more perpetrators; iii) Provide a quality, partnership
response to victims.

Violence and Sexual Crime
 Produce and implement a local Reducing Serious Violence Plan, including a focus on Youth Violence, and deliver
a programme of activity aligned to Violence Reduction Unit desired outcome.
 Develop a local strategy to address Violence against Women and Girls, in line with the forthcoming national
strategy and local needs ~ establish a partnership development group to take forward and develop a coordinated city-wide approach.

Exploitation and Radicalisation
 Work in partnership to identify children at risk of child sexual exploitation and/ or child criminal exploitation and
mitigate risks through early identification and intervention plans.
 Using safeguarding principles, provide tailored multi-agency to: i) support those identified most at risk of
radicalisation; ii) look to rehabilitate individuals known to have ideologies that potentially put themselves and
the wider community at risk of serious harm.
 Strengthen existing local partnerships, specifically working online and offline to empower young people, families
and communities, to build capacity through community engagement and civil society organisations.

8

Page 178

People with multiple needs (Street Users and Sex Workers)
 Relaunch, refresh and refocus the city-wide Homeless Prevention Forum to ensure local plans continue to develop
a blended accommodation offer ~ Work with housing providers to create movement in the supported housing
pathways and examine requirements of emergency accommodation.
 Further develop/ enhance provision for service users with mental health issues ~ Work with health
commissioners to further develop collaboration, joint commissioning, and delivery models.
 Look to develop a city centre commissioned Health and Wellbeing Centre for the homeless and people in need on
the streets ~ Strengthen the work with grass roots organisations, moving from on street kitchens to indoor
provision, including befriending and mentoring in neighbourhoods.
 Take forward the on-street sex working governance arrangements, through the strategic Sex Working Board.

Placed Based ~ Delivery: Localities
 Deliver a high quality and responsive offer to the 10 Community Committee’s, Community Committee Chairs
and Community Committee Champions, including the management of the Wellbeing Fund, Youth Activity
Fund, Capital Budget, and Community Infrastructure Levy Budget across the Community Committees,
integrating with other place-based budgets to maximise impact.
 Using a place-based approach, lead on the management of strategic multi-disciplined programmes of work across
the each of the priority neighbourhoods and target wards:
o
o
o
o
o

Use intelligence and data to explore innovative solutions to tackling longstanding concerns.
Early intervention and prevention work
Responsive to critical community incidents or concerns
Development of strong place-based stakeholder connectivity and relationships
Lead and support the development and delivery of innovative partnership projects and
approaches which attract new investment and funding opportunities, which bring about real
change and opportunity for local people…Building self-reliance and resilient communities

 Covid-19 legacy programme:
o Continue to work in partnership with Public Health to build and further develop targeted interventions in
wards of concern. Work with the Health Inequalities Board and other partners to develop programmes of
work which help to address health inequalities and promote better life style choices and improved quality
of health for those living in the most disadvantaged areas of the city post Covid.

Placed Based ~ Delivery: Leeds City Centre
 With an emphasis on people, places and premises, take forward our local early intervention approach to the
evening and nighttime economy, utilising Purple Flag principles and through an active #BeSafeFeelSafe thematic
communications and engagement framework.
 Undertake an ‘on-street’ resources review to create a welcoming and reassuring environment for the public, and
an effective response to ASB in partnership with law enforcement agencies.
 Take forward tactical and operational activity to address violence and abuse against women and girls, ensuring
this is in collaboration with the voice of women with lived experience.
As the safer, stronger communities agenda is cross cutting we will continue to work closely with connected
partnerships on shared issues, ensuring increased synergy and focus. For example, listed here are just two policy/
practice changes, led by other boards, which Safer Leeds will endorse and implement:




Leeds approach to ‘Self-neglect’ policy and procedures ~ can be found here Home
(leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk)
Leeds approach to ‘Think Family, Work Family’; principles and practice guidance ~ can be found here LSCP Leeds Safeguarding Children Partnership (leedsscp.org.uk)
The link to the Safer Leeds partnership council pages

9

Page 179

Implementation Framework
To support and manage the delivery of this Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan, Safer Leeds Executive
hasundertaken a review and refreshed its governance and accountability arrangements including:

Safer Leeds Executive (Gold)

Connected Boards
Anti-Social
Behaviour Board

Hate Crime
Strategic Board

Safer
Leeds
Delivery
Boards

People
and
Place
(Silver)












Neighbourhood
Improvement
Board
Drugs and Alcohol
Board

Reducing
Reoffending
Board

Serious Violence
Partnership
Board

Violence Against
Women and Girls

Leeds Youth
Justice Board
Safer Roads
Partnership Board

Street Support
Improvement
Board

*To

Domestic
Violence & Abuse
Partnership
Board

Serious and
Organised Crime
Board

Sex Work
Strategic Board

Contest Board

Connected
Partnerships
Leeds
Safeguarding
Adults
Partnership
Leeds
Safeguarding
Children
Partnership
Health and
Wellbeing
Partnership

Safer Leeds City
Centre
Partnership

Safer Leeds Executive (Gold), consists of officers from the ‘Responsible Authorities’ and ‘Co-operating
Bodies’, and includes political representation from the Lead member for Community Safety and coopted local representation from the West Yorkshire Police Crime Panel.
Delivery Boards (Silver), are chaired by a member of Executive reporting on progress, risks or threats as
part of their duties. Below are subgroups and/ or where appropriate Task and Finish Groups (Bronze)
Task & Finish Steering Groups, will be assigned by the Executive, as when required…these could be to
consider cross cutting opportunities, for example around communication / campaigns, funding/ bids,
and/ or specific commissioned intelligence products
Connected Boards/ Significant Partnerships, play a significant role in contributing to Safer Leeds
shared priorities and at least one person from the Executive is a member of these Boards, to ensure
synergy at a strategic and operational level. In addition, this strategy links to other strategic plans,
priorities, and other Boards, including alignment to and contributing directly to West Yorkshire’s
Policeand Crime Plan.
Community Safety Champions, are elected members, who ‘champion’ the work of Safer Leeds through
their activity with local people and with local service providers.
Funding, is primarily funded by mainstream resources of each organisation and work ‘in-kind’ and/ or
other grants where additional funding is secured; including the West Yorkshire Community Safety Fund.
Governance, Information Sharing and Accountability Arrangements, governance arrangements are
through Leeds City Council.
10

Page 180

Focus on our Strategic Outcomes
To achieve our strategic outcomes we will work with and for communities, and collaborate with trusted
third sector organisations and connected partnerships who share our ambitions.
Our Strategic Outcomes…we want to:
I.
II.
III.

Keep people safe from harm,
Prevent and reduce offending and
Create safer and stronger communities

Keep people safe from harm…what does this mean?
We want all people who live, work, and socialise in Leeds to be safe and feel safe. This outcome is at the heart
of the work that all partner agencies do. Anti-social behaviour and crime can cause considerable distress to
people, it is damaging to individuals, families, and communities, affecting their health and wellbeing and can
escalate into other serious behaviours. People who come into contact with services may have multiple and
compounding complex needs, so having person-centred approaches and improving our collective response
in a trauma informed manner is fundamental.
It is about:
 Protecting people who are victims of crime or at risk of being victimised and safeguarding people
from harm
 Preventing people from being victims and/ or being exploited
 Promoting feelings of safety and confidence in policing and community safety, building resilience
and recovery

Prevent and reduce offending…what does this mean?
We want people who commit crime and anti-social behaviour to change their behaviour. This outcome is
fundamental to keeping people safe and is central to services working for and within the criminal justice
systems. Offending takes many forms, and for those causing harm there are and should be appropriate
consequences, including diversionary and rehabilitation programmes, custodial sentences, supervision in the
community etc. With support people should be given opportunities to turn their lives around and desist from
commit offences. People who offend, reoffend or who are at risk of first-time offending do so for a host of
different reasons but is their behaviour that has a direct impact on their victims, their families, and
communities and ultimately themselves.
It is about:
 Preventing acts of ASB and criminal behaviour
 Problem solving justice, across services with and for people
 Intervening early to reduce the risk of escalation of offending and rehabilitating people to change
their lives

Create safer and stronger communities…what does this mean?
We want Leeds to continue to be a compassionate and caring city that tackles poverty, reduces inequalities,
and promotes tolerance and respect. This outcome is fundamental to the city’s visions of being welcoming,
fair, with a sustainable strong economy that brings opportunities to all. With existing and new crime and
disorder demands there is a requirement to focus the right resources in the right place at the right time.
It is about:
 Building resilient communities, supporting those in need as well as ensuring people are empowered
to help themselves
 Strong local leadership, system change through listen to and acting on community conversations to
resolve problems and conflict locally, raising aspiration and creating better links to social and
economic opportunities
 Protecting the places where people live, socialise, travel to and creating places that are safe and
promote/ engender feelings of safety
11

Page 181

#TogetherLeeds
#BeSafeFeelSafe
Safer, Stronger Communities

12

Page 182

Equality, Diversity, Cohesion, and
Integration Screening
As a public authority we need to ensure that all our strategies, policies, service, and
functions, both current and proposed have considered equality, diversity, cohesion,
and integration.
A screening process can help judge relevance and provides a record of both the
process and decision. Screening should be a short, sharp exercise that determines
relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, services, and functions.
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine:
 the relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion, and
integration.
 whether or not equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration is being or has
already been considered, and
 whether or not it is necessary to carry out an impact assessment.
Directorate:
Communities, Housing and
Environment
Lead person:
James Rogers

Service area:
Safer, Stronger Communities
Contact number:
0113 3788654

1. Title: Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)
Is this a:
X Strategy / Policy

Service / Function

Other

If other, please specify

2. Please provide a brief description of what you are screening
Safer Leeds Executive has a statutory requirement to prepare and implement a Local
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy. Locally, this strategy will be known as the
‘Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan’, within the next three years cycle.
The Plan sets out the overarching ambition of the Partnership: ‘People in Leeds are
safe and feel safe in their homes, in the streets and the places they go’.
The Strategic Priorities are:
 Keep people safe from harm (victim)
 Prevent & reduce offending (offender)
 Create safer, stronger communities (location)
This Plan will be aligned where appropriate to the West Yorkshire Police and Crime
Plan.
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 183

1

3. Relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration
All the council’s strategies and policies, service and functions affect service users,
employees, or the wider community – city wide or more local. These will also have a
greater or lesser relevance to equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration.
The following questions will help you to identify how relevant your proposals are.
When considering these questions think about age, carers, disability, gender
reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Also, those areas that
impact on or relate to equality: tackling poverty and improving health and well-being.
Questions
Is there an existing or likely differential impact for the different
equality characteristics?
Have there been or likely to be any public concerns about the
policy or proposal?
Could the proposal affect how our services, commissioning or
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by
whom?
Could the proposal affect our workforce or employment
practices?
Does the proposal involve or will it have an impact on
 Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation, and
harassment
 Advancing equality of opportunity
 Fostering good relations

Yes

No
X
X

X

X
X

If you have answered no to the questions above, please complete sections 6 and 7
If you have answered yes to any of the above and.
 Believe you have already considered the impact on equality, diversity,
cohesion, and integration within your proposal please go to section 4.
 Are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion, and
integration within your proposal please go to section 5.
4. Considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration
If you can demonstrate you have considered how your proposals impact on equality,
diversity, cohesion, and integration you have carried out an impact assessment.
Please provide specific details for all three areas below (use the prompts for guidance).
 How have you considered equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration?
(think about the scope of the proposal, who is likely to be affected, equality related
information, gaps in information and plans to address, consultation and engagement
activities (taken place or planned) with those likely to be affected)
1. Equality, diversity, and cohesion are embedded throughout the Plan
 The draft Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24) refers to the Safer
Leeds Partnership’s commitment to serve all members of its communities
EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 184

2

effectively and acknowledges that all of its actions and plans should give due
regard to implications for different groups and sections of the community.


A key aim of the Plan is to work closely with a range of communities of interest,
and in particularly to improve all forms of victimisation, including hate crime
reporting and domestic violence and abuse related incidents both of which are
under reported.



Equality, diversity, and cohesion will be relevant to all the strategic operational
Boards delivery plans.

2. Equality related information and intelligence


Safer Leeds has a statutory requirement to produce an annual Joint Strategic
Assessment (JSA) to assess the scale and nature of crime and disorder in the city
and to identify medium to long term issues affecting community safety.



The JSA includes analysis of both a range of quantitative and qualitative data from
across the partnership. It identified a number of reoccurring themes and this
information and intelligence has therefore been used to inform the strategic
direction of the Plan.

3. Consultation and engagement


Evidence from public consultation via the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner was collated along with intelligence from residents accessing
Community Safety services, such as those delivered by Leeds Anti-Social
Behaviour Team. This information has been used to inform the contents of the
strategy. Similarly, a range of Outcomes Based Accountability sessions held with
operational professionals and service users during the last 18 months and
provided further evidence to inform the proposed approach.



In addition, this Plan was opened to public consultation during September and
October. In addition, this Plan was opened to public consultation during
September and October 2021. This also included a direct request for feedback
from the equality hubs within the City Council.



As part of due diligence and scrutiny, at its remote consultative meeting on 15th
July 2021 the Environment, Housing and Communities Scrutiny Board received
early sight of the draft Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24). On
the 23rd September, in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework
procedure rules, the draft Plan was presented to Scrutiny Board (Environment,
Housing & Communities) and supported as part of the formal consultation, prior to
proceeding to the Executive Board for its consideration



Finally, partners and representatives from a range of stakeholders (Leeds City
Council; West Yorkshire Police; West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service; National
Probation Trust; Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group, the Voluntary and
Community Sector, West Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company; HM
Prison Service, Leeds Children’s Trust Board; Leeds Health and Welling Board,
Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board; Leeds Safeguarding Children Board have
helped shape the new Safer Leeds Plan.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 185

3

 Key findings
(think about any potential positive and negative impact on different equality
characteristics, potential to promote strong and positive relationships between groups,
potential to bring groups/communities into increased contact with each other, perception
that the proposal could benefit one group at the expense of another)
Positive impact
1. Equality, diversity, and cohesion is embedded throughout the Plan and
incorporated within the shared priorities.
The Strategic Priorities are:
 Keep people safe from harm (victim)
 Prevent & reduce offending (offender)
 Create safer, stronger communities (location)
The proposed Shared Priorities are:











ASB and Public Order
Domestic Violence and Abuse
Hate Crime
Illicit Drugs and Substance Use
Offending Behaviours
Organised Crime and Street Gangs
Exploitation and Radicalisation
People with multiple needs (Inc. Rough Sleepers and Sex Workers)
Violence and Sexual Crime (Inc. Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking)
Violence Against Women and Girls

2. A strong ethos of partnership working collaboration, consultation, and
engagement


Safer Leeds will work with and support other partnership boards and delivery
groups on the following issues through it new Safer, Stronger Communities
approach which places a greater emphasis on early identification, prevention, and
intervention, so we can be responsive to local needs by working with communities
before a crisis point, and thus prevent future victimisation and offending.



The Safer, Stronger Communities approach will guide strategic thinking and
operational activity across all the shared priorities, so we can seek to address the
impact of inequalities experienced by some members of our communities, who
may be more affected by incidents and/ or crimes, and thereby:
 Strengthen the safer and stronger elements of partnership working
 Address crime and anti-social behaviour to keep people safe from harm,
and
 Be responsive to local needs, to create thriving, resilient communities that
promotes respect



The approach is based around a ‘people and place’ encompassing all aspects of
lifestyle and identity. This includes neighbourhoods where people live and the

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 186

4

places they go, but also communities of interest and groups with which a person
will interact and can be applied at the following levels: Individual/
Family…Community/ Neighbourhood…City-wide/ Strategic.


Fundamental to this approach will be connecting the wider social and economic
determinants that impact on safer and stronger communities, the independences
and cross-cutting nature and issues of community safety, regardless of the
presenting crime and with due regard to equalities.

3. Positive progress to date
 Much has been achieved over the last three years (examples of work done to date
are included in the Executive Board report) around the equality, diversity,
cohesion, and integration across the community safety agenda, including
reductions in recorded crime and real positive changes in the way victims are
supported and encouraged to report crimes but we are not complacent, and we
know there is always room for improvement.


The pandemic has shone a light on a host of inequalities and through this new
Plan we will strengthen our commitment to work with and for communities. As a
partnership we recognise there is more we can collectively do to keep people safe
from harm, prevent and reduce offending, and create safer and stronger
neighbourhoods.



From listening to our communities, we have heard how the impact of crime on
individuals, families and neighbourhoods can be devastating and we understand
how the fear of crime can affect people in their homes, on the streets and the
places they go. Some communities will experience crime and anti-social behaviour
because of who they are, or where they live and some may not feel comfortable in
coming forward and reporting it. In turn, peoples’ experiences and perceptions can
have a detrimental impact on their lives. At the same time, we know the nature and
type of crime is changing and evolving.



As a compassionate city, preventing victimisation and supporting people harmed
by crime is central to our work, as is tailoring our response to individual needs. We
will listen to, be informed by, and work with people with lived experience, to shape
services.



We will place a collective emphasis on meeting the needs and demands of people
in this dynamic and diverse city, as well as preventing future victimisation and
offending; ensuring we strive to make every contact count. Everyone has the right
to live in a safe, clean, and tolerant society and everyone has a responsibility to
behave in a way that respects this right.

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 187

5

 Actions
(think about how you will promote positive impact and remove/ reduce negative impact)

1. Strong review processes, accountability, and transparency


During 2021, as part of the planning cycle Safer Leeds Executive has put in place
refreshed arrangements; a performance, accountability framework to monitor and
track progress against outcomes, performance indicators and activity and process
for review and regular highlight reports from the Chairs of the respective Boards.



Throughout the consultation there was a real sense of commitment to work
together to address community safety issues. There was a clear enthusiasm and
passion to continually improve both policy and practice in order to achieve better
outcomes for individuals, families, and communities.



This governance arrangements will ensure work across the shared priorities are
managed more effectively and there are clear lines of accountability and
opportunities to escalate risk.



The Plan and work of the respective Boards will be open to the relevant Scrutiny
Board as part of the work programme.

2. Communication and Engagement


A Communications and Engagement Plan will accompany the Safer, Stronger
Communities: Leeds Plan, connected to the work of the strategic delivery boards,
ensuring the communication of key messages and outcomes, and engaging with
the public and relevant agencies remains is a priority.

5. If you are not already considering the impact on equality, diversity, cohesion, and
integration you will need to carry out an impact assessment.
Date to scope and plan your impact assessment:

N/A

Date to complete your impact assessment

N/A

Lead person for your impact assessment
(Include name and job title)

N/A

6. Governance, ownership, and approval
Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening
Name
Job title
Date
James Rogers

11th October 2021

Director

11th October 2021

Date screening completed

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 188

6

7. Publishing
Though all key decisions are required to give due regard to equality the council only
publishes those related to Executive Board, Full Council, Key Delegated Decisions, or
a Significant Operational Decision.
A copy of this equality screening should be attached as an appendix to the decisionmaking report:
 Governance Services will publish those relating to Executive Board and Full
Council.
 The appropriate directorate will publish those relating to Delegated Decisions and
Significant Operational Decisions.
 A copy of all other equality screenings that are not to be published should be sent
to equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk for record.
Complete the appropriate section below with the date the report and attached screening
was sent:
For Executive Board or Full Council – sent to
Date sent:
Governance Services
13/10/2021
For Delegated Decisions or Significant Operational
Decisions – sent to appropriate Directorate

Date sent:
13/10/2021

All other decisions – sent to
equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk

Date sent:

EDCI Screening

Template updated January 2014

Page 189

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Safer Leeds Community Safety Strategy 2018-21 – Annual Update 2020/2021
The information here provides a brief overview of some of the core activity undertaken.
I

Tackle crime and ASB

Development of an ASB Service Offer
 The Council’s service offer forms part of our Terms of Reference and it states what can be
expected of the service. The offer clearly explains that we conduct impartial investigations
into reported cases of anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance and how we will try to
resolve problems at the earliest opportunity.
Implementation of a Triage Team
 A triage system has now been implemented for all incoming referrals so that cases can be
appropriately prioritised. It is supported by a system of performance monitoring that reflects
the fact that different responses are appropriate for different priorities of cases. The
identification and assessment of vulnerabilities is embedded in the process from the first point
of contact with service users. This works on standardised scripts around threat, harm, risk,
investigation, vulnerability, and engagement. Where cases are assessed as not being ASB,
but a support need is identified customers are signposted to appropriate, alternative services.
For complex cases and if felt appropriate there is the option of referring to the ASB MARAC
for consideration. We identified it is crucial that strong partnerships were in place to enable
officers to access support from colleagues in other services such as mental health, youth
offending, children’s services, adult social care, and housing, as well as partners such as West
Yorkshire Police.
ASB Strategy
 An Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy has been developed for the city which sets out our strategic
framework for activity moving forward. This is focused on the themes of prevention,
intervention, enforcement, community empowerment and integrated intelligence. This informs
the allocation of capacity and resources and ensure that activity is reflective of the ambitions
set out in both the Safer Leeds Community Safety Strategy and the Best Council Plan. At the
heart of the ASB strategy there is recognition that a holistic, multi-agency approach to
resolving the problems associated with ASB, has the potential to deliver longer term solutions
for all involved.
Noise Nuisance
 Most incoming referrals relate to noise nuisance within LASBT. As resource could not meet
the demand and expectation of the service the provision has therefore been revised, joining
up daytime and out-of-hours services more effectively and delivering increasingly flexible in
terms of coverage. The implementation of an evening Triage is now in place and can better
manage customers’ expectations. There has also been the development of a new way to
report noise nuisance via our website, a noise nuisance decision triage has been created.
The option of reporting noise nuisance that is not for LASBT will go directly to the relevant
service, also advise is provided on the website around ‘what is and isn’t’ acceptable. Where
a case is already open, information is provided around our service standards i.e., the time
scale when an update should be expected.

Creation of ASB MARAC
 If a case is identified as complex or persistent, and where appropriate it is referred for
consideration to the ASB MARAC. This helps promote early resolution of cases, joint
decision making and more effective problem solving. As identified as part of the review, it is
Page 191

crucial that strong partnerships are in place to enable officers to access support from
colleagues in other services such as mental health, youth offending, children services etc.
Communication/Social Media:
 External communications have been reviewed to provide more clarity and advice to those
seeking to use the service and to manage customer expectations. Clear information about
details such as anticipated response times is now accessible via our website. It was also
highlighted a gap in terms of social media presence. All service areas including LASBT Triage
now have their own Twitter account to publicise successful enforcement along with advice or
information.
Enhanced Team
 The University of Leeds and Leeds Beckett University joined forces to help tackle ASB student
behaviour by funding an additional patrol as part of a trial initiative. The new Enhanced service
aims were to reduce noise and nuisance behaviour in areas where students live. The trial
initiative is part of an ongoing commitment to maintain an inclusive community and now sees
an increased LASBT Officer and PCSO presence in the area.
Created a New PSPO for Headingley/Hyde Park & Little London/Woodhouse
 It was identified that the current 4 PSPOs that were in place did not tackle all the issues that
the above areas were suffering, therefore as of 1st July we introduced one new PSPO (area
extended) to help combat the issues around anti-social behaviour in public spaces (including
use of psychoactive substances) and leaving bins and bags of waste on the streets.

II

Domestic Violence and Abuse
 The Leeds Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board continues to develop. Working groups
have been established to develop the needs assessment and strategy/action that will allow
the Local Authority to meet its duty to provide support in safe accommodation as set out in
the Domestic Abuse Bill. The Board has enabled the creation of a third sector group – the
Domestic Abuse Voice and Accountability Forum – that will ensure the voices of survivors
are represented in the work of the board. Discussions relating to the funding allocation for
2021/22 have commenced. Further details on this are contained in a separate report as part
of this meeting’s agenda
 An audit of the Front Door Safeguarding Hub was undertaken and because of the audit
findings and recommendations we are reviewing our current daily MARAC arrangements.
Given the high volume of referrals, the pressure on all involved in the daily meetings is
becoming unsustainable and resourcing the meetings is proving a real challenge. In the
short term, we have taken the decision to reduce the number of daily meetings from 5 down
to 4 a week, except for bank holidays and any announcements in relation to relaxing any
lockdown rules, where numbers are likely to increase. This arrangement is a moveable feast
and is closely monitored on a weekly basis.
 All our partner agencies involved continue to work incredibly hard to support the meetings
despite the current pressures and supporting victims of domestic abuse, their families and
perpetrators remains our priority.
 Work has been carried out with the health economy around extending routine enquiries
across GP surgeries in Leeds. We have also supported other local authorities in adopting
this approach, through Local Government funding. We have quality marked a third of GP
practices, this is work in progress with an ambition that all GP practices will achieve the
quality mark.
 In addition, a range of briefings on supporting victims of DVA from LGBT+ community and
those with No Recourse to Public Funds were delivered by the Good Practice Officers as
Page 192









III

part of the MHCLG programme in other areas of West Yorkshire 1000 practitioners across
West Yorkshire
The flagship event of the 2019 16 days of action campaign was a Coercive Control and
Stalking Conference organised by Safer Leeds and LSAB at LUFC conference room, Elland
Road on Monday 2nd December. The event was over-subscribed and evaluation on the day
was positive. The event included presentations from key services (WYP, LDVS and CPS)
and survivor testimony from three keynote speakers. The event was a valuable learning and
networking opportunity and featured on the ITV news that evening.
Alongside the yearly campaign around the 16 days of action Leeds has achieved White
Ribbon Campaign status for the next 3 years. Our relationship with the council
communications team has led to an improved social media approach to raising awareness
around DVA. Leeds United Football Club produced a video with players from the first team
and a survivor of domestic abuse promoting the White Ribbon campaign. The video was
screened at their home games on Saturday 30th November and on Tuesday 3 rd
December. Players were wearing White Ribbon t-shirts during match warm-up; the
message was shown on screens in the ground and in the match day programme and both
teams shared the video across their social media channels. On the 13th October 2020 at
the Civic Hall Councillors and the Lord Mayer showed their support of the White Ribbon
Campaign at the full council meeting. A second video has been produced with male senior
leaders and sporting leaders with a focus on the pandemic.
DVA awareness sessions continued city wide over the last 3 years. Moving this delivery
online has led to efficiencies with up to 70 practitioners at any one time. Over the last 3
years we have delivered training as follows: 2499 (2019), 1603 (2020) and so far, 706
(2021).
A strategic review of perpetrators services was completed leading to the Development of a
matrix of support for practitioners and a Perpetrator framework.
Drugs and Alcohol

 Leeds is now one of the best performing cities for drug and alcohol treatment in England and
is supporting the highest number of people to complete treatment in the country. In 2020/21,
1,675 Leeds residents had a successful outcome.
 The service quickly and effectively responded to the COVID-19 pandemic, to ensure
continuous effective service delivery e.g., remote working with service users. There have
been several successful grant applications (e.g., PHE, NIHR), to develop innovative
approaches, expand capacity, and enable evaluation of service delivery.
 The development of partnership working and collaboration around harm reduction has been
extended significantly during this time, particularly through Leeds Street Support for
IV

Hate Crime

Instigation and development of the Hate Crime Strategic Board. (HCSB)
 Leeds recognised the need for a city-wide response to hate in all its forms working in
partnership with key stakeholders. It set clear strategic priorities developing an Operational
Hate Crime Group (OHCG) designed to deliver on the priorities. The work below shows the
strength of this process. There are always areas for review which are incorporated in this
document.

Hate crime MARAC
Page 193

 This process was developed to address the difficult cases where there were questions
regarding how as a whole or individual partners, we could not find any solutions or to hold
partners to account. Nationally recognised as best practice by 2019 Her Majesty
Inspectorate of Constabulary, Fire and Rescue. HMICFR.
Development of Disability Hate crime and its broader reach
 This has been the most under reported strand of Hate crime/incidents for many years.
Highlighted in 2010 via the Pilkington enquiry. In the last three years we have developed
wide reaching training resources that have been delivered to professional and communities.
It is nationally recognised.

V

Leeds Street Support
 This integrated multiagency team, established in Sept 2018, provides a person-centred
delivery model to improve service co-ordination and delivery for people in need on the
streets, one that is high support and high challenge. Some examples of system change
and new ways of working across the system include, include:











Daily tasking and co-ordination, utilising collective intelligence and insight to identify and
prioritise individuals in need. A revised daily programme of assertive outreach and
positive engagement, to encourage take up of offers of services and where required
assigning lead professionals and key workers to work with individuals to undertake
assessments and develop tailored ‘move-on’ plans.
Introduction of ‘in-reach’ staff provision at the local hospital and prison to reduce risk of
people returning to the streets.
Introduction of on street medical provision with access to patient records and increase
access to health and wellbeing services.
Improved the allocations of people to properties through a partnership meeting and
includes the existing pathways through Housing Services and Registered Social
Landlords.
Pilot of a female Somewhere Safe to Stay Hub, a gender informed response
Developed an innovative spice detox programme and provided training and equipping
the team with Naloxone, a lifesaving drug.
Embedded a partnership approach to adult safeguarding, utilising risk management tools
and pathways
Worked with grass roots charities and developed the Leeds Homeless Charter and
devised a set of standards of how organisations should work people in need on the
streets, shaped by the voice of people with lived experience.
Introduction of ‘navigators’ to support people in their homes to maintain tenancies and
reduce the risk of returning to the streets.

 During the last 12 months we have also worked on increasing the accommodation offer, a
blended approach to meet the needs of people and at the same time ensuring where
needed people are assigned a named ‘navigator’ as part of a planned wrap around support
package, to aid move-on and reduce attrition rates. This strategy has included both the
Council’s provision and new offers through external funding.
 Below provides a flavour of the key components of our ongoing strategy during Covid and
will provide a legacy for the city, through external funding primarily MHCLG and PHE:


Purchased 10 one bed properties, off the open market, currently preparing allocations
which will be for rough sleepers/persons at risk of rough sleeping/or a history of.
Page 194









VI

Remodelling the Somewhere Safe to Stay Hub, a female only emergency
accommodation provision. A new premise in the city centre is on track for an end of
October completion, this will have 9 single units with an additional 2 emergency
spaces if required.
For the cohort of people with NRPF, we have been able to flexibly utilise Public
Health funding for 6 months to aid 3rd sector partners to secure several HMOs, which
have been sourced through the private sector for guests formally in the night
shelter. For those sleeping rough, again we have been creative and worked with
partners to provide accommodation in 2 HMOs
Remodel Kirkstall Lodge, a large property of 9 x 1-bedroom flats owned by
Homegroup in Kirkstall, now full of individuals being allocated a flat as part of the
hotels exit planning.
Through the Assisted Support Rough Sleeper scheme, we have been active in
facilitating and maintaining assisted and support to tenancies, including assisting to
allocate individuals to tenancies, overseeing benefit claims and navigating issues,
overseeing rental payments, and conducting viewings and sign ups where necessary.
Overall Private Sector Landlord Scheme has progressed well with 58 lets in April
alone.

Prevent
 Over the last 3 years, significant progress and outcomes have been delivered that have
contributed to building resilience in our communities and support for the Prevent agenda.
For example, following the terrorist attack in Christchurch, New Zealand we held a
reassurance event for Muslim communities in Leeds outlining our support and commitment
to making them feel safe in our city. In 2019-20 (prior to the pandemic) we engaged 3350
beneficiaries through 275 Prevent workshops that we commissioned through our community
projects. We also reached 39 educational establishments and, in the process, directly
benefited over 5,500 students and 130 teachers.
 The last three years have also seen a significant growth in the Prevent Partnership boards in
the city. A range of partners and agencies attend these governance meetings
demonstrating their commitment and support to Prevent and a joined up citywide approach
to tackling terrorism and extremism.
 Our multi-agency partnership, Channel, has been meeting monthly to provide bespoke
support to individuals that have been identified as vulnerable to radicalisation. A review of
Channel arrangements two years ago has led to an improved understanding of referral
pathways, partnership working, and demonstrable outcomes for those referred to the
Channel programme. The Channel partnership in Leeds is regarded as a model of best
practice in the country.

VII

Modern Day Slavery
 Leeds City Council were one of six local authorities to pilot approaches to improve and
develop pathways and mechanisms to tackle issues of modern slavery and provide better
support to victims. A grant of £196,000 was awarded by the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Governments (MHCLG) through their Controlling Migration Fund, to
enable Leeds to deliver the project. The project delivered with our partners Palm Cove
Society was successfully evaluated and is identified as national good practice – follow this
link to evaluation report. Comment from Palm Cove resident/modern slavery survivor:
“I was being sexually exploited but too scared to ask for help – they said they would hurt my
family. When I did leave, I got help with accommodation, financial support and now I need
to get a job to have a purpose in life and get over what’s happened to me.”
Page 195

 We have refreshed the governance arrangements; this including a mapping exercise with
partners and survivors to develop the new strategy and action plan to refocus activity and
achievements. Key achievements include:
 Development and publication of our Supply Chain Statement and through improved
procurement processes we are seeking out exploitation in the supply chains of our high
value contracts for goods and services.
 Development and publication of the Modern Slavery Pocketbook as well as refreshed
information online and on Insite to raise awareness and improve responses.
 Agreed updated pathways to ensure child and adult victims get consistent access to the
appropriate support.
 Hosting an event for hoteliers to highlight their responsibilities to tackle child exploitation on
their premises.
VIII

Tackling On-Street Sex Work

 The strategy to tackle the on-street sex work issue in Leeds has been subject to ongoing
development and evolution including in this last 12 months with the significant developments
through the corporate governance arrangements most recently in the June exec board. As a
consequence of these developments some improved outcomes include:






VIII

a large reduction in the number of women involved in street sex work in recent years,
improved service delivery with regards meeting the complex needs of sex workers,
joined up partnership working at an operational and strategic level – focussed on our
strategy
enhanced provision in the city including gender specific accommodation offer with
appropriate support in line with Housing First principles,
improved intelligence from sex workers (crime reports and Ugly Mugs intel)
reduction in complaints from resident

LeedsWatch

 Over the last two years the LeedsWatch service has undergone a full-service review, the
objectives were:
 To ensure LeedsWatch are at the centre of service delivery meeting the needs and
ambitions of Safer Leeds that is both effective, efficient, and dynamic to change.
 To build on and develop a positive working environment at LeedsWatch where staff
engaged whilst working to deliver the Safer Leeds ambitions in a safe and inclusive
environment.
 With the support and direction of a Steering group; key stakeholders, Safer Leeds SMT and
LeedsWatch staff, it was recommended that the service undergo a full-service redesign
which would deliver:








a more agile and resilient work force, who are better able to meet existing and new service
demands, including peaks and troughs in service.
Supporting staff to develop a better understanding of the varied roles and responsibilities
that operate across the service
A new structure which will provide adequate resource when service demand is at its
highest.
A structure which can be flexible to meet the budget implications now and in the future.
Create new opportunities for staff development and career progression
Provide a better work life balance for staff.
The service redesign and restructure were approved in January 2021. Work is currently
being progressed to complete implementation with an expected implementation date in
the Autumn of 2021.
Page 196

IX

Serious Violence
 The Serious Violence Duty, outlined in the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill 2021 will
require local authorities, the police, fire, and rescue authorities, specified criminal justice
agencies and health authorities to work together to formulate an evidence-based analysis of
the problems associated with serious violence in a local area, and then produce and
implement a strategy detailing how they will respond to those particular issues.
 Safer Leeds has created of a Serious Violence Partnership Board to support the preparation
for the new serious violence partner statutory duties.
 Safer Leeds has also been working closely with the Violence Reduction Unit supporting
community-based projects that have worked with over 600 young people that are at risk of
engaging in violence crime.

Page 197

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
MONDAY, 6TH DECEMBER, 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor F Venner in the Chair
Councillors S Arif, S Golton, M Harland and
N Harrington

Representatives of Clinical Commissioning Group
Tim Ryley – Chief Executive of NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Group
Directors of Leeds City Council
Victoria Eaton – Director of Public Health
Cath Roff – Director of Adults and Health
Chris Dickinson – Head of Commissioning, Children and Families
Third Sector Representative
Pat McGeever – Health for All
Pip Goff – Forum Central
Representative of Local Health Watch Organisation
Hannah Davies – Chief Executive of Healthwatch Leeds
Representatives of NHS providers
Phil Wood - Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust
Representative of Leeds GP Confederation
Jim Barwick – Leeds GP Confederation
18

Welcome and introductions
The Chair welcomed all present and brief introductions were made.

19

Appeals against refusal of inspection of documents
There were no appeals.

20

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There were no exempt items.

21

Late Items
There were no formal late items. However, updated versions of Appendix 1 &
2 to Item 12 were circulated and published in advance of the meeting.

22

Declaration of Interests
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 199

There were no declarations of interests.
23

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Dr Sara Munro, Jane Maxwell,
Julian Hartley, Dr Alistair Walling, Jason Broch, Thea Stein, Dr John Beal, Sal
Tariq and Superintendent Richard Close. Chris Dickinson and Dr Phil Wood
were in attendance as substitutes.

24

Open Forum
No matters were raised on this occasion.

25

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held 16th September 2021 be
approved as an accurate record.

26

Trauma Awareness, Prevention and Response
The Leeds Trauma Awareness, Prevention and Response Steering Group
submitted a report that set out the Leeds ambition, approach, progress to date
and next steps in developing our Compassionate Leeds: Trauma Informed
City.
The following were in attendance:
-

Jane Mischenko, Children's Partnership Development Lead, NHS
Leeds CCG
Emmerline Irving, Programme Manager for Improving Population
Health and Maternity (Public Health), West Yorkshire & Harrogate
Health and Care Partnership

Representatives introduced the report and provided a presentation to
Members, providing an overview of plans to create the children and families’
trauma service to prevent, raise awareness of and respond to Adverse
Childhood Experience’s (ACEs) in Leeds, led in partnership by the NHS
Leeds CCG and Leeds City Council. It was explained that community
adversities such as poverty, community violence and discrimination are now
recognised as ACEs, and all forms of traumatic experience require a holistic
response from all agencies who have key relationships with vulnerable
children and young people. Members were advised that colleagues are also
working to develop a local place-based strategy alongside the WY&H
Integrated Care System programme strategy, to align and ensure synergy,
whilst also reflecting the distinct needs of the city. It was also acknowledged
that Leeds is the first city nationally to create a dedicated trauma service and
strategic plan.
Members discussed a number of matters, including:
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 200







Members recognised the challenge associated with developing clear
indicators that evidence the impact of the programme on key mental
health indicators but sought more information on the actions for
agencies and organisations and how they will be measured. Members
were advised that the strategy and action plan is currently being coproduced and will include clear actions for specific agencies involved
that will be measured and evaluated, but that the initial focus will be to
generate a cultural shift and gain commitment from agencies to key
ambitions.
Members welcomed the broader definition of ACEs to include nonrelational adversities, along with the ambitions for cultural change and
focus on overcoming trauma and as opposed to unhelpful diagnosis
based on self-soothing behaviours, such as drug or alcohol abuse.
Members noted the importance of involving third sector organisations
and smaller grass roots projects in shaping the strategy and ambitions,
as well as providing the resources and funding to help groups deliver
trauma awareness and support projects locally.

RESOLVED – That the Health and Wellbeing Board:
a)
b)
c)
d)

27

Note the ambitious vision and scope of the Leeds work
Recognise progress to date in Leeds
Note proposed next steps in Leeds
Recognise the synergy of the WYICS programme and benefit of
working together

An Update on the Physical Activity Ambition
The Director of Public Health and the Director of City Development submitted
a joint report that provided an update on the development of the Physical
Activity (PA) Ambition for Leeds which is being led by Active Leeds and Public
Health together with partners across the city.
The following were in attendance:
-

Anna Frearson, Chief Officer, Public Health
Steven Baker, Head of Active Leeds, City Development

The Executive Member for Public Health and Active Lifestyles introduced the
report, advising Members that activity levels have significantly reduced due to
the impact of Covid-19 and there has been evidence of increasing inequalities
for people from different socio-economic backgrounds and age groups.
Therefore, two priorities around ‘Active Environments’ and ‘Active People –
Reconditioning’ are proposed as a next stage focus, along with work
progressing to develop a new Physical Activity Governance structure, which
involves the establishment of a Physical Activity Partnership Board.
Members discussed a number of matters, including:
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 201





In response to a request for more detail in relation to the governance
structure, it was confirmed that a structure chart would be circulated to
Members once finalised. Members were advised that it had been
agreed that the Physical Activity Partnership Board (to be set up early
2022) will have a relationship with climate change and inclusive growth
as well as health, and that the governance structure chart will reflect
those relationships.
Members suggested that Local Care Partnerships, Community
Committees and Parish/Town Councils all be engaged with, along with
local third sector organisations, who will be able to provide knowledge
and understanding of the needs and geography of the local area for
new facilities and programmes.

RESOLVED – That the Health and Welling Board:
a) Note the progress presented and support the proposed next stage
priorities of Active Environments and Active People - Reconditioning.
b) Support the establishment of the Physical Activity Partnership Board as
part of governance arrangements.
c) Note their role in realising a number of system leadership outcomes to
support the achievement of the Physical Activity Ambition.
28

Review of the Leeds Housing Strategy
The Head of Housing and Homelessness submitted a report that informs the
Board of the review underway to produce a new 5-year Leeds Housing
Strategy. The strategy review will be underpinned by the Council’s 3 strategic
pillars including the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Consultation and
engagement on the housing strategy priorities will take place during
November and December, with a view to finalising the updated strategy by
April 2022.
Mandy Sawyer, Head of Housing and Homelessness, introduced the report
and provided an overview of the review of the Leeds Housing Strategy
currently underway and will be considered by Executive Board in April 2022.
Members were advised that the review will focus on establishing the city’s
housing need and how the Council works with other housing providers and
key agencies to improve housing conditions across the city with three main
priorities - housing quality and affordability, age friendly housing, and
supporting healthy and active communities.
Members discussed a number of matters, including:


Members welcomed the report and the priorities aligning to health
inequalities, however suggested that narrative around links between
good housing and good health, and poor housing and poor health,
could be strengthened. Particular reference was made to deaths and
serious health conditions linked to poorly heated and/or damp homes.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 202






It was suggested that the recently published housing chapter of the
health and social care White Paper be used to inform the development
of the strategy.
Members also queried how the strategy will seek to address standards
in new build homes moving forward. Members were advised that the
Government are currently reviewing the Decent Homes Standard,
which unfortunately will not be published in advance of the publication
of the strategy, however, the strategy will reinforce the Council’s
commitment to housing standards.
Affordable warmth and hoarding were also raised as key issues to
focus on and were assured that both will feature as critical elements of
the strategy.

RESOLVED –
a) Note and comment on the proposed approach to reviewing the
Housing Strategy.
b) Note the comments made on how the Housing Strategy, including the
health and housing theme can support the delivery of the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.
c) Note the health and housing agenda item planned for the Health and
Wellbeing Board meeting in February 2022.
29

Better Care Fund Plan
The Chief Officer, Resources & Strategy, Adults & Health (Leeds City Council)
and the Head of Planning & Performance (NHS Leeds CCG) submitted a
report that sought sign off from the Health and Wellbeing Board of the End of
Year 2020/21 Template.
RESOLVED – That the Board noted the submission of the Leeds BCF End of
Year 2020/21 Template attached as Appendix 1.

30

Leeds Health and Care Financial Reporting at end of September 2021
(M6 2021/22)
The Board received, for information, the report of the Leeds Health and Care
Partnership Executive Group (PEG) that provides the Health and Wellbeing
Board with an overview of the financial positions of the health and care
organisations in Leeds, brought together to provide a single citywide financial
report.
RESOLVED – That receipt of the report be noted.

31

Connecting the wider partnership work of the Leeds Health and
Wellbeing Board
The Board received, for information, the report of the Chief Officer, Health
Partnerships, that provides a public account of recent activity from workshops
and wider system meetings, convened by the Leeds Health and Wellbeing
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 203

Board (HWB). It contains an overview of key pieces of work directed by the
HWB and led by partners across the Leeds health and care system.
RESOLVED – That receipt of the report be noted.
32

Any Other Business
No matters were raised on this occasion.

33

Date and Time of Next Meeting
The next meeting will be held Tuesday, 22nd February, 2021 at 1:30 p.m.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022

Page 204

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 17TH NOVEMBER, 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor J Lewis in the Chair
Councillors S Arif, A Carter, D Coupar,
S Golton, M Harland, H Hayden, J Pryor,
M Rafique and F Venner

71

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
There was no information contained within the agenda which was designated
as being exempt from publication.

72

Late Items
There were no late items of business considered by the Board.

73

Declaration of Interests
There were no interests declared at the meeting.

74

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 20th October
2021 be approved as a correct record.
ADULT AND CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS

75

Youth Justice Plan 2021 - 2024
The Director of Children and Families submitted a report presenting the
proposed Leeds Youth Justice Plan for the period 2021 – 2024 following the
related consultation exercise which had been undertaken, with a
recommendation that the Board referred the Plan to full Council for approval
and formal adoption in line with the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework
Procedure Rules.
The Executive Member introduced the report and in doing so highlighted the
priorities set out in the plan, together with the range of cross-directorate and
partnership work taking place to deliver such priorities. Also, it was noted that
further information from Government was awaited regarding the extent to
which any potential additional funding could be accessed to support work in
this area following the recent Spending Review.
Responding to a specific enquiry regarding the preventative work in place to
support those young people who may be deemed at higher risk of becoming
involved in the justice system, the Board received information on the
partnership approach being taken in this area, with an offer that further detail /
a briefing could be provided to the Member in question, if required.
The Board acknowledged the priorities set out within the Plan which included
the provision of support for those communities and cohorts which were
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 205

disproportionately represented in the overall statistics of those involved in the
youth justice system. In response to a Member’s specific question, details
were provided on the actions being taken to support other communities and
cohorts in Leeds where involvement in the justice system was prevalent.
Also, the Board received information on the expected timeframe regarding
future review and inspection of the service by H.M. Inspectorate of Probation.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the Leeds Youth Justice Plan 2021 – 24, as appended to the
submitted report, be endorsed, and that agreement be given to refer
the Plan to full Council in January 2022 for the purposes of approval
and formal adoption, as part of the Council’s Budget and Policy
Framework;
(b) That the preferred approach, which is for the Board to endorse the
Youth Justice Plan on a 3-year cycle and refer to full Council for
approval and formal adoption, be approved;
(c) That it be noted that the responsible officers for the implementation of
such matters are the Service Manager, Leeds Youth Justice Service
and the Head of Service, Children Looked After.
(The matters referred to within this minute, given that they were decisions
being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules, were not eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to Call In decisions does not
extend to those decisions being made in accordance with the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules)
ECONOMY, CULTURE AND EDUCATION
76

Learning Places Programme Update Report and Authority to Spend for
the expansion proposals at Allerton High School and Boston Spa St.
Edwards
The Director of Children and Families and the Director of City Development
submitted a joint report which provided an update on the delivery of the
Learning Places programme and which sought approval to spend on
previously approved expansion works to Allerton High School and Boston Spa
St. Edward’s.
A Member enquired about the levels of charges that had been incurred by the
Local Authority arising from PFI schools in Leeds where a Deed of Variation
had been obtained, together with information on the related value for money
exercises undertaken as part of such processes. In response, officers
undertook to provide the relevant details to the Member in question.
With regard to Special Educational Needs and the circumstances regarding
the growth in the number of places required for children and young people
with Education and Health Care Plans (ECHP), the Board considered the
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 206

current position, and responding to a specific enquiry regarding the provision
of such places and the processes and timescales by which funding for them
was received, the Executive Member invited Board Members to make him
aware of any specific cases, so that they could then be investigated.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the progress made to date with the delivery of the Learning
Places Programme, be noted; and that the progress being made
regarding current schemes in development, the delivery across
primary, secondary and SEN provision, together with the forward
programme, also be noted;
(b) That the progress made regarding the Planned Maintenance
Programme delivery, together with the changes made to the
governance processes in order to support the programme, be noted;
(c) That the challenges and issues being experienced across the
programme, be noted, together with the mitigation measures in place;
(d) That the request for the ‘Authority to Spend’ £7.3m for the expansion of
Allerton High School and £1.1m for the expansion of Boston Spa St.
Edward’s, be approved;
(e) That the reduction of the Risk Fund Allocation from £7.1m to £6.5m,
albeit at a rate slightly higher than the 10% of the value of planned
schemes, which is in response to current market conditions, be
approved.
INFRASTRUCTURE AND CLIMATE
77

Streets for People - The Recreations, Holbeck
The Director of City Development submitted a report regarding the ‘Streets for
People’ initiative, part of the West Yorkshire Transport Strategy which aimed
to create high quality places for people, improve physical activity and air
quality. As part of the ‘Streets for People’ initiative the report noted that each
West Yorkshire Authority had been invited to develop a demonstration project
to facilitate meeting the strategy’s ambitions. The submitted report proposed
The Recreations area of Holbeck and detailed the reasons for this proposal.
Responding to a Member’s specific enquiry regarding the consultation which
had been undertaken with local residents, further details were provided.
Whilst assurance was given that the consultation with residents to date had
been extensive and would be ongoing, it was undertaken that further
information on the scope and form of the consultation, together with detail on
the level of responses received would be provided to the Member in question.
The Board discussed the objectives of the initiative and in acknowledging a
Member’s comments around how the initiative could potentially be used to
encourage more stability in this community, it was undertaken that this could
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 207

be incorporated into the ongoing evaluation of the initiative and taken into
consideration when measuring its success.
With regard to the levels of additional green space which could potentially be
provided by the scheme, the Board acknowledged the green space already in
and around this area and the physical constraints which would need to be
considered when looking to increase it. However, the importance of looking to
maximise greenspace as part of the initiative was highlighted.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the submitted report, be noted, and that the
selection of The Recreations as Leeds City Council’s ‘Streets for
People’ project, be approved;
(b) That expenditure of £900,000 to deliver the project, be approved, and
that it be noted that the Highways and Transportation service will be
the lead service for this delivery;
(c) That it be noted that the Chief Officer (Highways and Transportation)
will receive further reports to enact statutory powers and processes in
order to deliver the proposals, as detailed within the submitted report.
RESOURCES
78

Estate Management Strategy
The Director of City Development submitted a report presenting a proposed
Estate Management Strategy for the period 2021 – 2025. The report
presented the principles by which the Strategy was underpinned and how it
looked to respond to the Council’s financial position and the evolving
approaches taken towards ways of working and service delivery, with the aim
of driving greater benefits for the city, its residents and its businesses.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received assurance that
sufficient provision was in place to enable those residents who did not use
digital methods to interact with the Council and its services. In addition, detail
was provided on the actions being taken to promote digital inclusion within the
community.
The Chief Executive highlighted how the development of the Council’s
workforce plan aligned closely with the Estate Management Strategy, and
through the ongoing staff consultation which was taking place, the aim for the
Council was to ensure that it continued to provide effective services for the
people of Leeds, whilst also being able to adapt to new ways of working.
Responding to a Member’s comments, it was suggested that the Member in
question liaise with officers within the Asset Management service in order to
discuss any proposals they had regarding the review of assets within their
own Ward, and also regarding any sites where there may be potential for
commercial investment.
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 208

Also, responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board noted that there was no
intention to introduce a moratorium upon the sale of assets, given the financial
position of the Council and the important source of income played by the
Council’s Capital Receipts programme.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the 2021-2025 Estate Management Strategy, as appended to the
submitted report, be approved;
(b) That it be noted that the Director of City Development intends to
develop and maintain an Implementation Plan which will set out the
specific asset changes for the coming years, from which maintenance
and management plans can be established;
(c) That it be noted that further reports will be presented to Executive
Board in due course regarding specific estate rationalisation proposals,
along with the annual Capital Receipt programme update, and any
other estate changes which fall outside of approved delegations.
79

NPS Leeds Ltd. 2022 Joint Venture Review
The Director of City Development submitted a report which presented
proposals regarding the Council’s future relationship with Norfolk Property
Services (NPS) Leeds Ltd., a company providing technical services for a
range of construction projects. The matter was being submitted to the Board
for consideration, given that the current Joint Venture Company agreement
was due to expire in 2022.
Members welcomed that the proposed 10 year agreement would include 3
break clause points, as opposed to the 2 in the existing contract, in order to
provide greater flexibility.
Also, responding to a Member’s enquiry, assurance was provided that should
specialist expertise be required for a specific development which was not
available from NPS, then the proposed agreement would enable this to be
sought externally.
RESOLVED –
(a) That an extension of the current agreement between Leeds City
Council and Norfolk Property Services until 31st of March 2022, be
agreed;
(b) That the extension of the Joint Venture Company between Leeds City
Council and Norfolk Property Services for a further 10 years (with a
break clause in years 2, 5 and 7), be agreed;
(c) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City
Development, in order to enable the Director to finalise the contractual
terms between Leeds City Council and NPS Leeds Ltd.;

Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 209

(d) That it be noted that the implementation and management of the
contract with NPS is overseen by the Chief Officer for Asset
Management and Regeneration.
80

Financial Health Monitoring 2021/22 - September (Month 6)
The Chief Officer, Financial Services, submitted a report which provided an
update on the financial health of the Authority in respect of both the General
Fund revenue budget and the Housing Revenue Account as at month 6 of the
2021/22 financial year.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, clarification was provided regarding a
policy change which had been confirmed by Government in relation to claims
for Empty Rate Relief and the positive impact that this would have on the
Council’s budgetary position moving forward.
In response to a Member’s request for an update on the projected overspend
in respect of the Waste Management service and on the service’s operational
matters, the Board received a brief update regarding collection rates, with
Members being advised that it was intended for a report to be submitted to the
December 2021 Executive Board.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received details regarding the
allocation of Waste Management staff during the period of the year when
brown bin collections ceased, with it being noted that for the forthcoming
period, that extra capacity would be utilised to manage the excess black bin
waste which continued to be generated.
With regard to the forecasted underspend for energy costs in relation to street
lighting, Members were advised that this was due to the fact that the Council
was locked into a tariff which currently protected the Authority from increased
energy prices in this area, and in addition, it was noted that the progress
being made in respect of the LED programme also enabled an element of
cost benefit.
Responding to a Member’s question, the Board received further information
on the projected staffing underspend within the Highways and Transportation
service.
Finally, the Board received an update with regard to the highways gritting
service and its preparedness for winter, with it being noted that the depot was
currently well stocked.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the projected financial position of the Authority at the end of
September (Month 6), as detailed within the submitted report, be noted,
together with the projected impact of COVID-19 on that position;
(b) That, as at the end of August 2021, it be noted that for 2021/22 the
Authority is forecasting an overspend of £1.234m;
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 210

(c) That it be noted that the position as reported does not reflect the
potential effects of any further local or national lockdown arrangements
on the financial projections.
(At the conclusion of this item, Cllr Rafique left the meeting room)
81

Capital Programme 2021/22 – 2025/26: Quarter 2 Update
The Chief Officer, Financial Services submitted a report which presented the
Council’s updated Capital Programme for 2021-2026, split between the
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA), with a forecast of
resources available over that period. The report also provided a specific
update in respect of the 2021/22 programme.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received clarification regarding
the breakdown of the Capital Programme’s funding sources, as detailed within
the submitted report.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the following injections into the Capital Programme, as detailed at
Appendix A (iii) to the submitted report, be approved:- £805.0k of Green Homes Grant to support a range of measures to
increase energy performance and reduce fuel poverty for both private
and Council Housing;
- a £217.4k insurance receipt following storm damage at Benton Park
High School; and
- £32.0k of Environment Agency Grant to continue to progress the
design of a flood alleviation scheme at Lin Dyke, Kippax.
(b) That it be noted that the above resolution to inject funding of £1,054.4k
into the Capital Programme will be implemented by the Chief Officer,
Financial Services;
(c) That the latest position on the General Fund and HRA Capital
Programme, as at quarter 2 of 2021/22, as detailed within the
submitted report, be noted;
(d) That the additional Capital Receipts Incentive Scheme (CRIS)
allocations to Wards and Community Committees for the period April
2021 to September 2021 of £141.6k, be noted;
(e) That the Learning Places Programme be agreed as the spending
priority for investment of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Strategic Fund (financial year 2022/23), given the continued need in
particular for secondary school places.

82

Treasury Management Strategy Update 2021/22
The Chief Officer, Financial Services, submitted a report presenting a review
and update of the Council’s Treasury Management borrowing and investment
strategy for 2021/2022.
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 211

The Board acknowledged the likely interest rate rise which was anticipated in
2022. With this in mind and in response to a Member’s enquiry, officers
undertook to provide the Member with details of how an interest rate increase
of 0.75% would affect the Council’s debt repayment levels.
Linked to this, Members also received an update regarding the general
approach being taken by the Council towards longer term borrowing moving
forward.
RESOLVED – That the update provided on the Treasury Management
borrowing and investment strategy, as detailed within the submitted report, be
noted.
83

Domestic Violence and Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation Strategy
The Director of Communities, Housing and Environment submitted a report
which presented the Domestic Violence and Abuse Support in Safe
Accommodation Strategy for the Board’s approval. In doing so, the report
outlined the partnership approach which had been undertaken in the
development of the strategy and provided details of the new regulatory
framework in this area.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with an update
on the resource which remained in place to support the local community in
Holbeck where the Managed Approach operated prior to its cessation, and
also the support which continued to be provided to the vulnerable women
involved in sex work in that area. In providing such information, the Member in
question was offered a briefing on such matters, if required. Members also
discussed the extent to which there was a link between the specifics of the
proposed strategy, as detailed within the submitted report and the support
being provided to sex workers and the local community in the Holbeck area.
A Member highlighted the importance of ensuring that the proposed strategy
looked to improve engagement with those suffering from domestic violence
and signpost them to appropriate support. In response, those comments were
acknowledged, with it being noted that representations would continue to be
made to Government around the current restrictions on funding allocations in
this area so as to maximise the support available and build upon the provision
that was already in place.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the submitted report, be noted, and that the
Domestic Violence and Abuse Support in Safe Accommodation
Strategy, as appended to the report, be approved;
(b) That the new regulatory context for this strategy, be noted, with it also
being noted that as a result, the Local Authority will continue to work
with the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities in
order to respond to any amendments and changes to support the
implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021;
Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 212

(c) That it be noted that the Director of Communities, Housing and
Environment is responsible for the implementation of the strategy.
(At the commencement of this item, Cllr Rafique returned to the meeting
room)
84

Safer, Stronger Communities - Leeds Plan (2021-2024)
The Director of Communities, Housing and Environment submitted a report
presenting the ‘Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)’ which set
out the strategic direction of the Leeds Community Safety Partnership, the
Safer Leeds Executive, with a recommendation that, following the associated
consultation which had been undertaken, the Plan be referred to full Council
for the purposes of formal adoption, in line with the Council’s Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member highlighted the priorities of
the strategy and the partnership approach which had been taken to develop it.
Also, it was highlighted that the new strategy included a focus upon violence
against women and girls and it provided an undertaking that an annual update
statement would be produced.
With reference to the previous discussion regarding the former Managed
Approach in the preceding agenda item, specific reference was made to the
inclusion of sex workers in this proposed strategy, which was welcomed.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the ‘Safer, Stronger Communities: Leeds Plan (2021-24)’ as
appended to the submitted report, be endorsed, and that agreement be
given for it to be referred to full Council with a recommendation that it is
formally adopted as Council policy;
(b) That it be noted that the Director of Communities, Housing and
Environment will lead on, and implement such matters.
(The matters referred to within this minute, given that they were decisions
being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules, were not eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to Call In decisions does not
extend to those decisions being made in accordance with the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules)

DATE OF PUBLICATION:

FRIDAY, 19TH NOVEMBER 2021

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS:

5.00 P.M., FRIDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER 2021

Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting
held on Wednesday, 15th December, 2021

Page 213

This page is intentionally left blank

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 15TH DECEMBER, 2021
PRESENT:

Councillor J Lewis in the Chair
Councillors S Arif, D Coupar, S Golton,
M Harland, H Hayden, M Rafique and
F Venner

APOLOGIES:

Councillors A Carter and J Pryor

SUBSTITUTE MEMBER: Councillor A Lamb

85

Substitute Member
Under the provisions of Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 3.2.6,
Councillors A Lamb was invited to attend the meeting on behalf of Councillor
A Carter, who had submitted his apologies for absence from the meeting.

86

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public
RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt from
publication on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the
public were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information
so designated as follows:(A) That appendix B to the report entitled, ‘Wetherby High School Rebuild
Proposals and Business Case’, referred to in Minute No. 99 be
designated as being exempt from publication in accordance with
paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act
1972 and considered in private on the grounds that the information
contained within that appendix contains information relating to the
financial and business affairs of the Council and other parties. It is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing this information at this point
in time;
(B) That the designation of the appendix to the report entitled, ‘West
Yorkshire Devolution: Consent to Non-Transport Borrowing Powers’ as
being confidential under the provisions of Rule 9 of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules, be noted; and as such, agreement be
given that the appendix be exempt from publication and considered in
private on the basis of confidentiality and will be circulated during the
private part of the meeting, with it also being noted that the confidential
designation is due to the fact that it contains detail of the wording in the
draft order, which has not yet been published by Government, that
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 215

publication of the draft order has been vetoed at this stage and that the
information has been given to the Council by a Government
department on terms which forbid its public disclosure in accordance
with Access to Information Procedure Rule 9.2 (a). (Minute No. 96
refers)
87

Late Items
Late Item of Business – ‘Update on Leeds Vaccination Programme’
With the agreement of the Chair, a late item of business was admitted to the
agenda entitled, ‘Update on Leeds Vaccination Programme’.
Given the scale and significance of this issue, it was deemed appropriate that
an update report be submitted to this meeting of the Board. However, due to
the fast paced nature of developments on this issue, and in order to ensure
that Board Members received the most up to date information as possible, the
report was not included within the agenda as originally published on the 7th
December 2021. (Minute No. 95 refers).
Late Item of Business – ‘West Yorkshire Devolution: Consent to NonTransport Borrowing Powers’
With the agreement of the Chair, a late item of business was admitted to the
agenda entitled, ‘West Yorkshire Devolution: Consent to Non-Transport
Borrowing Powers’.
Unanimous approval of all five West Yorkshire Councils was required for this
matter to proceed, and Government had indicated its intention to lay a draft
Order in parliament in January 2022. Therefore, this report could not be
deferred to the next scheduled Executive Board meeting, and any delay would
risk prejudice to the Council’s interests (and those of the combined authority
and other constituent Councils). Also, it was not possible for the report to be
submitted to an earlier meeting or included in the original agenda, as notice of
the Government’s intention to lay the draft Order in January 2022 was
received after the agenda for this meeting had already been published.
(Minute No. 96 refers).
Supplementary Information - Update on Coronavirus (Covid-19) Pandemic –
Response and Recovery Plan
With the agreement of the Chair, supplementary and updated information was
circulated to Board Members ahead of the meeting in relation to agenda item
10, ‘Update on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic – Response and Recovery
Plan’. (Minute No. 94 refers)

88

Declaration of Interests
There were no interests declared at the meeting.

89

Minutes
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17th
November 2021 be approved as a correct record.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 216

RESOURCES
90

Financial Health Monitoring 2021/22 - October (Month 7)
The Chief Officer, Financial Services submitted a report which presented an
update on the financial health of the Authority in respect of both the General
Fund revenue budget and the Housing Revenue Account as at month 7 of the
2021/22 financial year.
By way of introduction to the report, the Executive Member for Resources
provided an overview of the key points included within it.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the projected financial position of the Authority, as detailed within
the submitted report and as at the end of October 2021 (Month 7 of the
financial year), be noted, together with the projected impact of COVID19 on that position;
(b) That it be noted that for 2021/22 the Authority is forecasting an
overspend of £0.909m, as at the end of October 2021;
(c) That it be noted that the position as reported does not reflect the
potential effects of any further local or national lockdown arrangements
on the financial projections.

91

Revenue Savings Proposals for 2022/23 to 2024/25
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report presenting several
revenue savings proposals following ongoing review processes which
continued to be undertaken across Council services. The proposals were
designated as either ‘Business as Usual’, which could be implemented within
the Council’s delegated decision making framework, or as ‘Service Reviews’
which may require meaningful consultation with relevant stakeholders prior to
any decisions being taken, with those decisions being informed by the
outcomes of such consultation.
Members discussed the approach being taken by the Council with regard to
Minimum Revenue Provision and also Council borrowing.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board discussed the service reviews
taking place, and the approach being taken across directorates in relation to
such reviews and savings proposals. In conclusion, the Member in question
was offered the opportunity of a briefing on such matters, if required.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the ‘Business as Usual’ savings, as detailed within the submitted
report, be noted, with it also being noted that decisions to give effect to
them shall be taken by the relevant Director or Chief Officer in
accordance with the Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive functions);
(b) That agreement be given for consultation to commence with regard to
the two ‘Service Review’ proposals presented, with it being noted that
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 217

decisions to give effect to them shall be taken by the relevant Director
or Chief Officer, following any consultation period, in accordance with
the Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive functions);
(c) That with specific regard to the ‘Review of Adult Social Work Provision’
Service Review as detailed within the submitted report:(i) Approval be given to the proposal to invest £660,253 to deliver a pilot
that uses Occupational Therapy and additional Social Worker staff
at “the front door” to maximise capacity to meet growing demand for
information and advice and demand for a social care assessment of
needs, embedding an “independence first” approach; with the
Board noting that this investment could generate £1.552m cost
avoidance savings during 2022-23;
(ii) Approval be given to the proposal to invest £646,323 to deliver a pilot
of a new Community Reviewing Team that includes Occupational
Therapy and Social Work staff to enhance the capacity of the
current Adult Reviewing Team, in order to deliver an increased
reviewing schedule; with the Board noting that this investment is
anticipated to deliver £3.3m from 2022–2025;
(iii) That it be noted that when accounting for annual investment costs over
the 3 years, total overall projected savings are £3.6m;
(iv) That it be noted that the impacts of the above proposals will inform a
longer-term model of area social work for the city;
(d) That it be noted that the savings proposals for 2022/23, as presented
within the submitted report, combined with the savings proposals
brought to the Executive Board at its September 2021 meeting support
a draft balanced budget for 2022/23 and the Council’s financial position
for the following two years, as set out within the accompanying report
submitted for consideration elsewhere on the agenda entitled,
‘Proposed Budget for 2022/23 and Provisional Budgets for 2023/24
and 2024/25’;
(e) That it be noted that further savings will be required in order to close
the Council’s estimated budget in the years 2023/24 and 2024/25, and
that related proposals will be brought to future meetings of this Board.
LEADER'S PORTFOLIO
92

Proposed Budget for 2022/23 and Provisional Budgets for 2023/24 and
2024/25
The Chief Officer (Financial Services) submitted a report presenting the
proposed budget for 2022/23, which subject to Executive Board’s approval,
was scheduled to be submitted to the respective Scrutiny Boards for their
consideration and review, with the outcome of their deliberations being
reported to Executive Board in February 2022, with the proposals also being
made available to other stakeholders as part of a wider and continuing
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 218

process of engagement and consultation. The report also invited the Board to
note provisional budgets for 2023/24 and 2024/25.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the proposed Budget for 2022/23, as presented within the
submitted report, which is based on the approval and delivery of
£17.7m of directorate savings for 2022/23, be noted, with it also being
noted that these matters have been brought to this Board through the
accompanying reports, ‘Revenue Savings Proposals for 2022/23 to
2024/25’ at its September meeting and elsewhere on this agenda;
(b) That agreement be given to consultation being undertaken upon the
proposed Budget for 2022/23, which includes the proposed increases
in core Council Tax and the Adult Social Care precept. Further to this,
agreement be given that these budget proposals are submitted to
Scrutiny for consideration and made available for wider consultation
with stakeholders;
(c) That the provisional budget position for 2023/24 and 2024/25, as
presented in the submitted report, be noted; and that it also be noted
that further savings proposals to address the updated estimated budget
gaps of £30.6m and £25.6m for 2023/24 and 2024/25 respectively will
be reported to future meetings of this Board;
(d) That should the application to form a 2022/23 Leeds City Region
Business Rates Pool be successful, approval be given for Leeds City
Council to become a member of the proposed Pool and to act as lead
Authority for it; with it being noted that the establishment of this new
Pool will be dependent upon none of the other proposed member
Authorities choosing to withdraw within the statutory period after
designation.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor S Golton
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute.
Also, it was noted that whilst Councillor A Lamb was attending the Board
meeting in a non-voting capacity, were he able to, he would have abstained
from voting on the decisions referred to within this minute)
(The resolutions referred to within Minute No. 92 (a), (b) and (c), given that
these were decisions being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy
Framework Procedure Rules, were not eligible for Call In, as Executive and
Decision Making Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to Call In
decisions does not extend to those decisions made in accordance with the
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. However, the resolution
referred to in Minute No. 92 (d) was eligible for Call In, given that this was a
decision not being taken as part of the Budget and Policy Framework
Procedure Rules)
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 219

93

Best City Ambition – Initial Proposals
Further to Minute No. 68, 20 October 2021, the Director of Resources
submitted a report presenting the initial proposals for the Leeds Best City
Ambition for the purposes of endorsement and approval that the proposals
were released for public consultation and referred to Scrutiny, as required by
the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.
Responding to Members’ comments regarding the identification of the
Ambition’s priorities and the importance of ensuring that the outcomes from
the consultation were taken into consideration, the Board received further
information on how the outcomes from the proposed consultation exercise
would play a key role in how the Ambition developed.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the Best City Ambition initial proposals, as detailed within the
submitted report be noted, and that the commencement of a public
consultation process, be approved;
(b) That the Best City Ambition initial proposals, as submitted, be referred
to Scrutiny for consideration;
(c) That it be noted that the Director of Resources will be responsible for
the production of the final Best City Ambition proposals, which are
scheduled to be received by the Board in February 2022.
(The resolutions referred to within this Minute, given that they were decisions
being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules, were not eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to Call In decisions does not
extend to those decisions made in accordance with the Budget and Policy
Framework Procedure Rules)

94

Update on Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic – Response and Recovery
Plan
The Chief Executive submitted a report outlining the latest position and
detailing ongoing activity across the multi-agency partnership, as the Council
together with its partners continued to respond to and recover from the Covid19 pandemic. Specifically, the report covered the period from the last report
considered by the Board in September 2021 to date.
Prior to the meeting Board Members were in receipt of supplementary
information to the submitted report which provided an updated position for
Members’ consideration as part of this item.
By way of introduction to the report, the Leader provided an update regarding
the latest developments with regard to the national and local position, with an
undertaking that the Council would continue to work with communities and
partner organisations in response to the pandemic.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 220

The Chief Executive provided an update on the Gold, Silver, Bronze ‘Team
Leeds’ approach which continued within the Council and with partners in
overseeing the actions being taken in relation to the pandemic. Also, updates
were provided regarding the planning and dialogue taking place within the
Council and with Government and relevant partners on:
 the continued financial implications of the pandemic;
 mitigating against the potential impact upon service provision and the
workforce as a result of Covid-19; and
 the dialogue with Government around providing greater flexibility in
relation to the delivery of decision making meetings during the
pandemic such as via remote means, with specific reference being
made to the budget Council meeting in February 2022.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the updates made to the Response & Recovery Plan, as detailed
at Annex A to the submitted report, which details ongoing response,
risks, and service pressures together with recovery efforts as the
Council plans for 2022, be noted;
(b) That the information presented in Annex B to the submitted report, be
noted, which is the usual Covid-19 Dashboard detailing information
across all seven themes;
(c) That it be agreed that the next Covid-19 update report will be submitted
to the Board in March 2022, dependent upon the local situation and the
national context.
95

Update on Leeds Vaccination Programme
The Chief Executive submitted a report providing an update on the Leeds
Covid-19 Vaccination Programme and which invited the Board to note the
range of initiatives that were being undertaken as part of that programme and
to endorse the approach taken by city partners under the leadership of the
NHS.
With the agreement of the Chair, the submitted report had been circulated to
Board Members as a late item of business prior to the meeting for the reasons
as detailed in Minute No. 87.
The Executive Member for Public Health and Active Lifestyles provided the
Board with an update on latest position regarding the vaccination programme,
with Members paying tribute to all of those who continued to be involved in its
delivery.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received further detail on the
actions being taken to encourage greater take up of the vaccine in
communities where this remained an issue. Also, the Board received an
update regarding the progress which was being made in improving the
accessibility of vaccine provision, with the latest position regarding the
delivery of vaccines from GP practices and pharmacies being provided.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 221

In response to a Member’s enquiry, the Board was provided with information
on delayed hospital discharges.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the submitted report, together with the current
position, as detailed within it, be noted; and that the approach being
taken by NHS vaccine programme leaders and partners in Leeds
working together as ‘Team Leeds’, be endorsed;
(b) That the Board’s continued support be provided to the balanced
programme which scales up booster delivery whilst also working to
reduce health inequalities and overcome the barriers including access
and increasing confidence in the vaccination, in addition to promoting
first and second doses and also working with people and communities
through the ‘no-one left behind’ inequalities programme;
(c) That the comments made during the discussion about how best to
ensure continued support from Elected Members to act as the conduit
of information to and from their communities, including helping to
manage expectations and sign-posting people to online and community
resources, be noted.
(NB. The published report was marked as being not eligible for Call In,
however, in line with the relevant Procedure Rules, the resolutions arising
from this report are eligible for Call In)
96

West Yorkshire Devolution: Consent to Non-Transport Borrowing
Powers
The Chief Executive submitted a report which brought forward the next steps
for the devolution of powers to West Yorkshire, and which sought in-principle
consent to an Order which would enable the West Yorkshire Combined
Authority to borrow for non-transport related functions.
With the agreement of the Chair, the submitted report had been circulated to
Board Members as a late item of business prior to the meeting with the
confidential appendix being circulated at the conclusion of the public part of
the meeting, for the reasons as set out in the submitted report, and as
detailed in Minute No. 87.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, it was undertaken that arrangements
would be made to provide Opposition Members with an opportunity to engage
and receive briefings in relation to the matters being proposed.
Overall, Members welcomed the proposals and the further benefits that the
devolved powers would bring.
In conclusion, the Leader highlighted that given the late submission of this
report, as required by the Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules,
the Chair of the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board had been consulted
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 222

and had provided his agreement in relation to the reasons for urgency which
had been provided.
Following consideration of the appendix to the submitted report designated as
being confidential and therefore exempt from publication under the provisions
of Access to Information Procedure Rule 9.2(a), which was circulated at the
conclusion of the public part of the meeting and considered in private at that
point, it was
RESOLVED –
(a) That the Board’s in principle consent to the regulations to provide the
Combined Authority with the power to borrow for non-transport related
functions, as set out in the ‘minded to’ Devolution Deal, be confirmed;
(b) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Managing Director of
the Combined Authority, in consultation with the Leader and Chief
Executive of each constituent council and the Chair of the Combined
Authority, to finalise and consent to the final draft of the regulations,
further to any technical issues which may arise;
(c) That approval be given for all of the decisions taken by Executive
Board from the submitted report be exempt from Call In on the grounds
of urgency and for the reasons as set out in paragraph 12 of the
submitted report.
(The Council’s Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules state that a
decision may be declared as being exempt from the Call In process by the
decision taker if it is considered that the matter is urgent and any delay would
seriously prejudice the Council’s, or the public’s interests. In line with this, the
resolutions contained within this minute were exempted from the Call In
process, as per resolution (c) above, and for the reasons as detailed within
sections 12 of the submitted report)
ADULT AND CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH PARTNERSHIPS
97

Review of Charging for Non-Residential Adult Social Care Services
The Director of Adults and Health submitted a report presenting the outcomes
from the consultation undertaken regarding the review of charging for nonresidential Adult Social Care services. Specifically, the report provided options
and made recommendations for changes to charging.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member for Adult and Children’s
Social Care and Health Partnerships provided a detailed overview of the
changes to the Council’s current non-residential care charging policy which
were being proposed and the reasons for such proposals. Information was
also provided on the measures proposed to monitor and mitigate against the
impact on those affected, as detailed within the submitted report.
Responding to Members’ enquiries, the Board received further detail on the
financial basis for the proposal, the number of service users who would be
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 223

affected, the phased approach being proposed, how the impact upon service
users would be monitored and the affected individuals supported, with
Members also receiving further detail regarding the level of response received
in relation to the associated consultation exercise.
As part of the review process and in response to a Member’s specific request,
it was undertaken that Executive Board Members would receive briefing
papers at 6 and 12 months in order to monitor how the changes were
progressing and the impact that they were having.
RESOLVED –
(a) That changes to the current charging policy, as detailed within the
submitted report, be approved, so that where more than one care
worker is required to deliver home care services at the same time, the
customer is required to contribute towards the costs of all workers
present;
(b) That approval be given to the removal of the Maximum Assessed
Charge (MAC) cap of £482 a week;
(c) That it be noted that the approach for the implementation of such
matters will be a phased approach; with it being noted that the
approach is recommended to be a staggered percentage increase, with
charges increasing by 25% of the difference between the current
charges and the new charges initially; by a further 25% after 3 months,
a further 25% after 6 months: and with customers expected to pay the
full amount of their new charges after 9 months;
(d) That further to resolution (b) above, it be noted that the charging policy
will be amended so that customers in Supported Living will be charged
for this service at the cost of their individual Placement Agreement
(subject to financial assistance);
(e) That it be noted that the officer responsible for the implementation of
the decision to amend the charging structure will be the Chief Officer of
Resources & Strategy;
(f) That it be noted that an update on the impact of this decision will be
brought to Executive Board within six months of its implementation,
with it also being noted (as detailed above), that Executive Board
Members would receive briefing papers at 6 and 12 months in order to
monitor how the changes were progressing and the impact that they
were having.
ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING
98

Waste Management Service - Response to Covid-19
The Director of Communities, Housing and Environment submitted a report
which provided an update on the Waste Management Service operational
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 224

response to the challenges being faced during the ongoing pandemic and
which also presented the related financial implications.
In introducing the key elements of the submitted report, the Executive
Member for Environment and Housing provided an overview of the current
performance statistics for the waste management service, the increased
workload and challenges which continued to be faced throughout the
pandemic and the budgetary implications arising from that. In conclusion, the
Executive Member for Environment and Housing, echoed by other Board
Members, paid tribute to the work of the refuse collection teams throughout
the pandemic.
In response to concerns raised, the Board discussed, and received further
information regarding:
 The measurement of performance and success for the service;
 The experience of service users;
 How the service had performed in light of continued challenges being
faced during the pandemic, including managing the levels of excess
waste which were being generated, the management of workforce
resource matters and budgetary pressures;
 The progression of the refuse service and route review;
 Comparisons with other Local Authorities.
As part of consideration of this matter, the Board received an update
specifically in respect of performance in Wetherby Ward, with officers
welcoming continued dialogue with Wetherby Ward Councillors to address
any issues arising. In addition, the Executive Member undertook to visit
Wetherby Ward to discuss service provision, in response to a request
received.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the contents of the submitted report, be noted;
(b) That the following be noted, together with the comments of the Board
during the consideration of such matters:
(i)
the performance of Waste Management Services in adapting to
the challenges presented by the coronavirus pandemic, in
particular the collection of additional waste produced by
households as more people work and learn from home;
(ii)

the breakdown of the additional cost of managing the additional
household waste produced during the pandemic, together with
the extra resources to ensure Government requirements for
isolation and safe working environments are being met; and

(iii)

the steps being taken to ensure that services are resilient to a
sustained change in the amount of household waste being
produced and other pressures such as the national LGV driver
shortage, together with the conclusion of the refuse
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 225

service/route review to address issues effecting the performance
of the service pre-pandemic.
ECONOMY, CULTURE AND EDUCATION
99

Wetherby High School Rebuild Proposals and Business Case
The Director of Children and Families and the Director of City Development
submitted a joint report which set out the current issues regarding the
condition of Wetherby High School estate, and following a review undertaken,
presented details of proposals regarding the principle of a rebuild of the
school.
Members welcomed the proposals and extended their thanks to all of those
who had been involved in progressing the proposals to the current position.
In considering this matter, a Member highlighted Royds School, and the
investment which it needed. The school’s academy status was acknowledged,
and with that in mind it was noted that the options available in respect of
taking Royds School forward would be looked into.
Following consideration of Appendix B to the submitted report designated as
being exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of
the public part of the meeting, it was
RESOLVED –
(a) That the principle of the rebuild of Wetherby High School and the
ringfencing of capital receipts, CIL and S106, be approved in order to
support its delivery, as set out in exempt appendix B (Business Case)
to the submitted report;
(b) That following resolution (a) (above), and subject to the successful
outcome of the S77 notice and Sport England discussions regarding
the release and development of land around Wetherby High School,
approval be given to the submission of the planning applications for the
school and housing development to support the delivery of a new
secondary school at Wetherby for September 2024 at the earliest;
(c) That the principles of the Business Case, set out in the submitted
report and exempt appendix B, which has been developed to support
the delivery of the proposed rebuild of Wetherby High School, be
approved;
(d) That approval be given for the submission of an Executive Board report
at a future point in time once the Secretary of State approval to release
the land is secured and the details of the Business Case required to
deliver the project are known.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 226

100

The Great Jobs Agenda and the Leeds Anchors Network
The Director of City Development and the Director of Resources submitted a
joint report that explored the city’s approach towards promoting the Living
Wage and Great Jobs Agenda across the whole of the Leeds district. The
report also focussed upon the Leeds Anchors Network, including the recent
successful bid for funding to the Health Foundation to expand the Anchors
programme within local communities. Furthermore, the report set out the
Council’s actions in the context of the West Yorkshire Mayor’s ambition to
establish a Fair Work Charter.
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received further detail
regarding the work being undertaken to progress the respective areas of
‘future talent’ and ‘green jobs’.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the Board’s continued support towards the Council’s Employment
Agenda, as set out in paragraphs 12 to 15 of the submitted report, be
confirmed;
(b) That an approach whereby the Council continues to pay Council staff
the Living Wage Foundation Real Living Wage, be endorsed;
(c) That it be noted that the officers responsible for the implementation of
the matters detailed within the submitted report are the Chief Officer
Human Resources and Chief Officer Culture and Economy, with it also
being noted that all employment issues within the Council, including
engagement with Trade Unions, is the responsibility of the Chief
Officer Human Resources, with the Chief Officer Culture and Economy
being responsible for supporting both the Leeds Anchors Network and
wider employer engagement.

101

A Framework for Delivering Major Events in Leeds
The Director of City Development submitted a report presenting a renewed
framework for attracting and delivering major events for Leeds following a
review of the Council’s existing events programme. The report also sought
approval to host the World Triathlon Championship Series event in 2022 and
2024.
Responding to a Member’s comments, the Board acknowledged the need to
ensure that the correct balance was struck between delivering major events,
whilst at the same time ensuring that quality of life for local residents in those
host communities was preserved, and that local communities were included
in, and benefitted from such events.
Also, assurance was provided that where new major commercial events were
delivered in Roundhay Park or similar venues, the commercial provider would
provide the levels of resource required, which meant that staffing from parks
services would not be diverted as a result.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 227

RESOLVED –
(a) That the adoption of the Events Framework as presented in the submitted
report, be approved, incorporating:(i)
a mechanism for assessing and bidding for major events;
(ii)
a Framework for delivery of major events held within Leeds; and
(iii)
including an internal strategy for actively curating events within the
City’s parks.
(b)

That approval be given to host the World Triathlon Championship
Series event in 2022 and 2024;

(c)

That approval be given for the Head of Arts Events and Venues to be
responsible for the implementation of Major Events Framework in
Leeds.

PUBLIC HEALTH AND ACTIVE LIFESTYLES
102

Leeds Parks and Green Spaces Strategy
The Director of Communities, Housing and Environment submitted a report
presenting the Leeds Parks and Green Spaces Strategy. The report set out a
vision for the Parks and Countryside Service, and the actions that would be
undertaken by the service to deliver that vision over the next 10 years.
Responding to a specific enquiry, the Board received an update regarding the
approach being taken in respect of flower bed planting in parks and other
areas.
In response to a Member’s comments, the importance of prioritising
accessibility in the city’s parks was emphasised, which it was noted was
reflected in the proposed strategy. With regard to the strategy’s priorities more
generally, the Board received an update on the ways in which the service
would look to deliver such priorities.
A Member highlighted the benefits of the service working with local Ward
Councillors as a means of engaging local communities. Also, responding to a
specific enquiry, the Board noted the undertaking to prepare a plan on a page
for each community park in the city.
RESOLVED – That the new Parks and Green Spaces Strategy, as presented
within the submitted report, and which is for implementation by the Chief
Officer, Parks and Countryside from January 2022, be approved.
INFRASTRUCTURE AND CLIMATE

103

Main Modifications to the Leeds Site Allocations Remitted Plan
Further to Minute No. 148, 17 March 2021, and further to the matter being
considered by Development Plan Panel on 14th December 2021, the Director
of City Development submitted a report which sought approval to commence
a six-week public consultation on the Main Modifications (MM’s)
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 228

recommended by the Independent Planning Inspector who had been
appointed to examine the Remitted part of the Leeds Site Allocation Plan.
In introducing the report, the Executive Member for Infrastructure and Climate
extended her thanks to the continued efforts of all of those who had
progressed the Leeds Site Allocations Remitted Plan to this advanced stage,
which was echoed by other Members.
In considering the proposals, support was given to the proposal to return the
36 housing sites back to the Green Belt, however one Member specifically
emphasised their Group’s view that the Barrowby Lane site should also be
returned to the Green Belt, at least until an employment review was
undertaken.
RESOLVED –
(a) That public consultation of the schedule of Inspector’s proposed Main
Modifications (as detailed at Appendix 1 to the submitted report) and
the supporting material (at Appendices 2 to 4 of the submitted report)
for a period of 6 weeks from 17th December 2021 to 28th January
2022, be approved;
(b) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Chief Planning
Officer, in consultation with the Executive Member for Infrastructure
and Climate, to enable the Chief Planning Officer to approve the detail
of any updates or corrections to the consultation material and any
technical documents and supporting evidence required.
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor S Golton
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the decisions
referred to within this minute)
(The matters referred to within this minute, given that they were decisions
being made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules, were not eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making
Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to Call In decisions does not
extend to those decisions being made in accordance with the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules)
104

Integrated Rail Plan for the North and Midlands: Outcome and
Implications for Leeds
The Director of City Development submitted a report setting out the key
issues in the Integrated Rail Plan for the North and Midlands (IRP) and the
specific implications for Leeds. In February 2020, the Government published
the outcome of the independent Oakervee report advising whether and how to
progress HS2 and recommending the need for an IRP for the North and
Midlands to be developed. The IRP was developed by Department for
Transport (DfT) and was published on 18th November 2021.
In considering the report, it was noted that this had been the first opportunity
to submit a report on such matters to the Board since the publication of the
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 229

IRP, and the purpose of it was to provide Members with the latest position and
invite the Board’s support to seek clarification from Government in a number
of areas.
The Board discussed a number of issues, including:
 The key importance of addressing the capacity issues at Leeds station
moving forward;
 The need for clarity around alternative proposals for highspeed
connectivity for Leeds, as an alternative to the HS2 eastern leg;
 The key importance of effective East-West connectivity;
 The disappointment of the current position, given the significant
planning that had been made on the basis of the HS2 route into Leeds.
The Chief Executive highlighted that in moving forward, the aim was now to
establish a partnership approach with Government and regional partners in
order to deliver real transport improvements, given the integral role that
transport connectivity played in the city’s development. Positives, such as the
funding which had been allocated towards the development of a new West
Yorkshire Mass Transit System were also highlighted.
Finally, confirmation was provided that the DfT held the £100m which had
been allocated in the IRP towards a review of how to bring high-speed trains
to Leeds and to consider Leeds Station capacity issues, with it being noted
that the Council was keen to progress such matters with partners as quickly
as possible.
RESOLVED –
(a) That the proposed approach to seeking the following from Government,
as set out below, be endorsed:a) To note the key issues in the Integrated Rail Plan for the North and
Midlands including the emerging specific implications for Leeds;
b) To support the request to DFT and Treasury for Leeds City Council to
joint client all proposed further studies impacting Leeds Railway Station
in defining the scope and remitting of the study into highspeed rail to
Leeds, including the critical link between Leeds and Sheffield and
Leeds Station capacity utilising the £100m made available through the
IRP;
c) For officers to liaise with WYCA and DfT to obtain clarity over the total
development funding contribution to Mass Transit, understand how and
when it will be paid and the specific scope of the funding contribution
proposed;
d) For officers to seek clarity from DFT over the implications of the
TRU/NPR works to Leeds Station and to understand what land will be
required to implement the Government’s proposals. Officers will also
seek clarity over the level of disruption anticipated to existing TransPennine services while the works are undertaken not just to the rail
network but also the highway network specifically including consenting
regime, timescales and any required land acquisition;
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 230

e) For officers to seek clarity from DFT on the timescales associated with
the safeguarding of land, and that impact on businesses and residents
have been updated by DfT on what the IRP and safeguarding now
means for them and for DFT to undertake further public engagement
on the ongoing implications;
f) For officers to seek greater clarity from DFT on the timescale for the
delivery of all the proposed enhanced journey times as stated in the
IRP and consenting powers/routes;
g) For officers to formally request a copy of the Mott MacDonald technical
report on alternative routes for the eastern leg of HS2;
(b) That subject to receiving clarification on resolutions (a) to (g) above,
officers bring back a further report to Executive Board to outline the
detailed implications of the IRP and any further recommendations for
the Council to take.

DATE OF PUBLICATION:
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS:

FRIDAY, 17TH DECEMBER 2021

5.00 P.M., FRIDAY, 24TH DECEMBER
2021

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 9th February, 2022

Page 231

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

COUNCIL MEETING – 12th JANUARY 2022
NOTICE OF:

Reference No:

Date Received:

Date Forwarded:

White Paper

WP1

3/1/22

4/1/22

Submitted by:
Relevant Board/Regulatory Panel:
Executive Member/Chair:
Relevant Director

Councillor James Lewis
Executive Board
Leader of Council
Director of City Development

This Council believes the Integrated Rail Plan does not deliver the current Government’s
promises to improve rail services for the people of Leeds and Yorkshire and follows decades of
underinvestment from successive governments.
Council is concerned that the plan does not address the shortage of capacity at Leeds Station or
the network around Leeds that we know impacts existing local and national rail services today
and will affect future growth until it is resolved.
Council further calls for a swift resolution for residents and businesses in Leeds affected by
safeguarded directions that are currently in place.
Council resolves to work with local leaders across the north and midlands on rail improvements;
supports the Executive Board’s response to the plan; and calls on ministers to provide clarity for
Leeds residents and businesses on how and when it will finally deliver the promised rail and
mass transit improvements our city desperately needs and deserves.

Deadlines for submission
White Papers
- 10.00 am on the day before the issue of the Summons
Questions
- 10.00 am on Monday before the meeting
Amendments
- 10.00 am on the day before the meeting
(including references back)
(All submissions should be made to Governance Services for receipt to be recorded and
distribution made)

Page 233

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

COUNCIL MEETING – 12th January 2022
NOTICE OF:

Reference No:

Date Received:

Date Forwarded:

White Paper

WP2

3/1/2022

3/1/2022

Submitted by:
Relevant Board/Regulatory Panel:
Executive Member/Chair:
Relevant Director

Councillor Matthew Robinson
Executive Board
Executive Member for Resources
Director of City Development

This Council notes with concern the recent YEP article relating to the Fantasia knife store on
Ludgate Hill and is deeply concerned about the Council’s commercial involvement in those
premises.
Council calls for the establishment of a refreshed and more robust policy, including the power of
veto, that ensures commercial lets of this nature cannot happen again.
This Council therefore asks for a report to be brought to the February Executive Board
addressing this issue, including a review of all current commercial lets and setting out a new
proactive policy approach that will ensure council owned premises are never used for this
purpose again.

Councillor Matthew Robinson

Deadlines for submission
White Papers
- 10.00 am on the day before the issue of the Summons
Questions
- 10.00 am on Monday before the meeting
Amendments
- 10.00 am on the day before the meeting
(including references back)
(All submissions should be made to Governance Services for receipt to be recorded and
distribution made)

Page 235

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

COUNCIL MEETING – 12th JANUARY 2022
NOTICE OF:

Reference No:

Date Received:

Date Forwarded:

White Paper

WP3

3/1/22

4/1/22

Submitted by:
Relevant Board/Regulatory Panel:
Executive Member/Chair:
Relevant Director

Councillor Jonathan Pryor
Executive Board
Executive Member (Economy, Culture and Education)
Director of City Development

This Council believes that everyone should be paid the Real Living Wage and is proud to be
leading the way by paying its employees the Real Living Wage since 2015.Council notes that the
Government has so far failed to ensure the National Living Wage matches the Real Living Wage
and so accurately reflects rising living costs.
Council further notes with regret that a worker earning the National Living Wage would today
earn £1,930 a year less than a worker earning the Real Living Wage.
Council recognises the devastating impact of Covid-19 on many people’s lives including pushing
many more into poverty and job uncertainty and supports the establishment of a Fair Work
Charter as proposed by the West Yorkshire Mayor.
Council believes that Leeds is ideally placed as a desirable location for businesses and
recognises the success of attracting businesses such as Channel 4, Utterberry,
Covance/Labcorp, Snowflake, Aspire, and Burberry into the City.
Council is proud that its Employment Agenda is in alignment with the Great Jobs Agenda as we
continue to be a key influencer in terms of good employment practice which includes our
condemnation of the ‘fire and re-hire’ practices undertaken by some companies.
Council commits to promoting both the Real Living Wage and the Great Jobs Agenda across the
City through our Anchor Institutions who form an integral part of the ambition to make Leeds a
Real Living Wage City as this is something that can only be achieved through partnership
working across all sectors. Council notes the Leeds Anchors Network contains 13 organisations
who employ over 58,000 people in Leeds, and is made up of: Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS
Trust, Leeds Beckett University, Leeds City College, Leeds and York Partnership Foundation
NHS Trust, University of Leeds, Leeds College of Building, Leeds Community Healthcare NHS
Trust, Leeds Trinity University, Leeds City Council, NHS Digital, Yorkshire Water, British Library
and Northern Gas Networks.
Council calls on Government to:
 Introduce the Real Living Wage as a replacement to the National Living Wage to ensure
residents of Leeds and across the Country can meet rising living costs.
 Commit to the principles of the Great Jobs Agenda
 Support the establishment of a Fair Work Charter.
Page 237

Deadlines for submission
White Papers
- 10.00 am on the day before the issue of the Summons
Questions
- 10.00 am on Monday before the meeting
Amendments
- 10.00 am on the day before the meeting
(including references back)
(All submissions should be made to Governance Services for receipt to be recorded and
distribution made)

Page 238

